
NIRAJ D. ADATIA & ASSOCIAT~S 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS 
PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company'') which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 
2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), statement 
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting 
Standards (lnd AS), of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at March 31, 
2019, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash 
flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit ofthe financial statements under the provisions 
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key aud it matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in 
form ing our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
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Responsibility of Management and those charged with governance for the Financial 
Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position),profit and 
loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income}, changes in equity and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) specified under Section 133 of 
the Act . 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting f rauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Compnny's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liqu idate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 
to do so. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a who le are free from materia l misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assur<mr e, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs w ill always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
state t Pr :1ts. 

As p·11 t of an audit in accordance w ith Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion . The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the overri ~1lA d nal 
control. '?' U'IP 
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• Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design 
i1Udit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i} 
o f the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 

Com pany has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

• Eva luate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use ofthe going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the 
re lated disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion . Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
'c the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We con1municate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
plann ed scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficicnc :es in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with rel "'vant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them 
all rel "l innships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
indepe11rlence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I. As rr quired by section 197(16} of the Act, we report that the Company has not paid 

rerr· • 'leration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and 

limit s laid down under Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act. 

II. As · " quired by the Companies (Auditor's Report} Order, 2016 ("the Order"}, issued by 

t h . rentral Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the 

Co 1 Pnnies Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure A" statement on the matters specified 

in p tr ilgraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

A5 rP'luired by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, we report that: 

(a) \l'.'p h "~ve sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 

bcs of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 



(c) Tl e Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 
inrome}, the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by 

thi <; Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
St -. ndards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 

(fiLcounts) Rules, 2014; 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 
M rch, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
di c,qualified as on 31st March, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Sl ~tion 164 (2) of the Act; 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
R· port in "Annexure B"; and 

(g) v~ i ( h respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
w ith Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 

t l 2 best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. I he Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as on 315t March, 
2019 on its financial position in its financial statements. 

ii. f he Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for 
'Nhich there were any material foreseeab le losses; and 

iii. Th2re were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

FOR N l f\ J D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES 

Firm Registra1ion No.: 129486W 

Charter "'cl Accountants 

NIRAJ ADATIA 

Partner 

Membc. ;hip No.: 120844 

UDIN: 1~ 120844AAAAAY9974 

Place : " 111Jmbai 
Date . 1 7'h )pptember, 2019 



ANNEXURE "A" REFERRED TO IN INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS 
Or: AC'VRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 
YEAR ff-J DED 31st MARCH, 2019; 

On ti ·, basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information 
and c. planations given to us, we state that:-

(i) a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets; 

b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the Management during the 
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification; 

c) As per the information and explanation given to us, lease deed and transfer 
formalities with respect to lease hold land included in immovable properties are 
yet to be executed. 

(ii) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by 
the Management during the year. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification 
of inventory as compared to book records were not material and have been 
appropriately dealt with in the books of accounts. 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability 
partnerships, or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 
of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any 
guarantees or any security to the parties covered under section 185 and 186. 
Accordingly, pa ragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable. 

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
accepted any deposits from the public during the year within the meaning of 
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder to the extent 
notified. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

(vi) The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records 
under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company and 
accordingly paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable. 

(vii ) a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of 
the Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular 
in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including income-tax, sales tax, value 
added tax, duty of customs, goods and service tax, service tax, cess and other 
material statutory dues, wherever applicable, with the appropriate authorities. 
There was an amount of GST of ' 32,474 outstanding as at the last day of the 
f inancial year for a period exceeding six months from the date the become 

payable. ~~1\A &-1. 
~ 0'01 

Q CHAC ·~"'D 0 
-~- ' () rc:.\:.;,., ~ 

il C:> 



b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of 
the Company examined by us, the particulars of dues of Value added Tax, as at 
the Balance Sheet date which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, 
are as follows : 

Period to 
Name of the 

Nature of dues which the 
Amount f) Statute amount relates 

(F.Y.) 
Tripura Value Section 31(1) 2013-14 1,89,457 
Added Tax Act 
Tripura Value Section 31(1) 2014-15 5,14,663 
Added Tax Act 
Tripura Value Section 31(1) 2015-16 2,74,994 
Added Tax Act 
Tripura Value Section 31(1) 2016-17 1,99,409 
Added Tax Act 

(viii) The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution or 
bank or Government, nor has it issued any debentures as at the balance sheet date. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(ix) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initia l public offer or further 
public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable. 

(x) Based on the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations 
given by the management, we report that no material fraud by the Company or on 
the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the 
course of our audit. 

(xi) The Company has not paid I provided for managerial remuneration during the year 
and hence, the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not 
applicable. Accordingly, paragraph 3{xi) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3{xii) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(xiii ) The Company has not entered into any related party transactions as covered by the 
sect ion 188 of the Act. The details of related party transaction have been disclosed in 
the fi nancial statements as required under IND AS - 24 Related Party Disclosers 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014. Further, the Company is not required to constitute an Audit Committee 
under Section 177 of the Act, and accordingly, to this extent, the provisions of Clause 
3(xiii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(xiv) 



(xv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations 
given by the management, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions 

with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) of the 
Order is not applicable. 

(xvi) The company is not required to be registered under section 45 lA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi) of the Order is not applicable. 

FOR NIRAJ D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES 

Partner 
M embership No. : 120844 
UDIN: 19120844AAAAAY9974 
Place Mumbai 
Date : 27th September, 2019 



"ANNEXURE B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD 
SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company") as of 31st March, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of 
the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, to 
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal 
Financial Controls and, both issued by the !CAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, 
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risks. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone lnd AS financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparatio . ~al 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accountin s.'A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies p1wnredures 
that; ~ ACCOUN •, 
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(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at 31st March 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company, considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

FOR NIRAJ D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : 27th September, 2019 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019 

Particulars 

ASSm 
Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 

(b) Intangible assets 
(c) Financial assets 

(I) Investments 
(ii) Other financial assets 

Total Non-Current assets 

Current assets 
(a) Inventories 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Investments 

(ii) Trade receivables 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 
(iv) Bank balances other than (ii) above 

(v) loans 
(v) Other financial assets 

(c) Current tax assets (Net) 
(d) Other current assets 
Total Current Assets 
TOTALASSm 

EQUilY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 

(a) Equity share capital 
(b) Other equity 

Total Equity 

Liabilities 
Non-Current liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Other Financial liabilities 
(b) Deferred Tax liabilities (Net) 
Total Non-Current liabilities 

Current liabilities 

(a) Financialllabilities 
(i) Borrowings 
(ii) Trade payables 
(iii) Other financial liabilities 

(b) other current liabilities 
Total Current Liabilities 
Total liabilities 
TOTAL EQUilY AND LIABILITIES 

Note 
No. 

3 

4 

5 
6 

7 

5 

8 

9 
10 

11 
6 

12 
13 

14 
15 

16 
17 

18 
19 
16 
20 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per attached report of even date 

FOR NIRAJ D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES 

Firm Registration No. 129486W 

~COUNT ANTS 

NIRAJ ADATIA 

PARTNER 

Membership No. 120844 

Mumbai 

Date: 27th September, 2019 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

28,488,193 
2,673,877 

726,169 
31,888,239 

12,508,029 

6,812,921 

4,248 
7,391,014 

1,400,000 
5,982,553 

718,618 
3,275,239 

38,092,622 
69,980,861 

2,676,000 
(111, 729,531) 

!109,053,531! 

1,562,723 

1,562,723 

74,880 

1,806,096 
174,244,268 

1,346,425 
177,471,669 

179,034,392 
69,980,861 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

30,037,284 
3,037,845 

10,000 
558,749 

33,643,878 

8,518,743 

6,260,086 

6,305,737 
3,126,275 
1,400,000 
2,689,141 

718,102 
1.441,276 

30,459,360 
64,103,238 

2,676,000 
(117,800,179) 

!115,124,179! 

1,300,319 

1,300,319 

74,880 

573,950 
176,478,709 

799,559 
177,927,098 

179,227,417 
64,103,238 

Director 

DIN: 03140671 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2019 

Income 
Revenue f rom Operations 
Other Income 

Particulars 

Share of Profit I (Loss) of Joint Ventures 
Total Income 

II Expenses 
Cost Of Material Consumed 
Changes in Inventory 
Finance Costs 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 
Other Expenses 

Total Expenses 
Proflt/(Loss) before Tax 

Tax Expense 
(1) Current Tax 
(2) Deferred tax (charge) I credit 
(3) Excess I (Short) provision for taxation in respect of earlier years 

Proflt/(Loss) for the Year 
Other Comprehensive Income 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 

Earning per equity share of nominal value of ~ 10/- each 
(in Rupees) 

Basic 

Diluted 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements. 

As per attached report of even date 

FOR NIRAJ D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES 
Firm Registration No. 129486W 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

#~ 
NIRAJ ADATIA 

PARTNER 
Membership No. 120844 

Mumbai 
Date: 27th September, 2019 

Note 

No. 

21 
22 

23 
24 
25 
26 
27 

28 

Year ended 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

21,250,796 
1,192,530 

20,563 
22,463,889 

8,041,214 
(4,838,364) 

299,441 
1,951,206 

10,939,744 
16,393,241 
6,070,648 

6,070,648 

6,070,648 

121.41 
121.41 

Year ended 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

17,485,591 
967,000 

(1,948) 
18,450,643 

5,052,273 
(2,221,881) 

278,759 
2,010,190 

10,163,494 
15,282,835 

3,167,808 

2,965,378 

2,965,378 

6,133,186 

6,133,186 

122.66 
122.66 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

~HAH 

DIN : 03140671 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2019 

Particulars 

Cash flows arising from operating activities 

Net Profit I (Loss) before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 

Add I (Less) : 

Interest and Finance Charges 

Depreciation and Amortisation 

Unwinding of other financial asset 

Advances and Other Debit Balance Written Off 

Gain on Fair Valuation of Investments in Mutual Funds 

Gain on foreign currency fluctuation (Net) 

Gain on redemption of Mutual Fund 
Liabilities written back to the extent no longer required 

Interest Income 

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 

Add I (Less) : 

(Increase) I Decrease in Inventories 

(Increase) I Decrease in Current/Non current financial and other Assets 

(Increase) I Decrease in Current/Non current financial and other Liabilities 

Direct Taxes Paid 

I. Net cash flow in the course of Operating Activities 

Cash flows arising from Investing activities 

Inflow I (Outflow) on account of : 

Interest Income 

Dividend Income 

Gain on redemption of Mutual Fund 

(Increase)/ Decrease of Investments( net) 

Deposits with maturity of more than three months but less than twelve 

months 

(lncrease)/Decrease of fixed assets 

II. Net Cash flow in the course of Investing Activities 

Cash flows arising from Financing activities 

Inflow I (Outflow) on account of: 

Increase in Share Capital 

Increase I (Decrease) in Unsecured Loans 

Interest and Finance Charges Paid 

III.Net Cash flow in the course of Financing Activities 

Net Increase in cash and cash Equivalents ( I + II + Ill ) 
Add: Balance at the beginning of the year 

cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 

Reconciliation of Cash and Bank Balances given in 

Note- 9 is as follows :-

Balances with banks: 

-in current accounts 

- in deposit with maturity of less than three months 

Cash on hand 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end ofthe year 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per attached report of even date 

FOR NIRAJ D. ADATlA & ASSOCIATES 

Firm Registration No. 129486W 

~~COUNT ANTS 

NIRAJ ADATIA 

PARTNER 

Membership No. 120844 

Mumbai 

Date: 27th September, 2019 

31st March, 2019 

~ 

6,070,648 

299,441 

1,951,206 

(97,520) 

33,059 

(345,064) 

(30,052) 

(77,835) 

(226,181) 

(436,774) 

1,070,280 

7,140,928 

(3,989,286) 

(4,779,500) 

33,157 (8,735,628) 

(1,594, 700) 

356,290 

77,835 

(542,835) 

3,126,275 

(38,147) 

2,979,418 

(299,441) ____ _ 

(299,441) 

1,085,277 

6,305,737 

7,391,014 

3,000,676 

3,705,402 

684,936 

7,391,014 

31st March, 2018 

~ 

3,167,808 

278,759 

2,010,190 

(81,145) 

(322,129) 

(660) 

(110,446) 

(248,769) 

(431,262) 

1,094,538 

4,262,346 

(3,180,342) 

1,087,875 

(1,033,273) (3,125,741) 

1,136,605 

432,300 

110,447 

595,369 

(1,626,275) 

(99,795) 

(587,954) 

(278,759) _____ _ 

(278,759) 

269,892 

6,035,845 

6,305,737 

2,419,221 

3,511,466 

375,050 

6,305,737 

Director 

LSHINDE 

Director 

DIN : 03140671 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 March, 2019 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019 

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

As at 1st April, 2017 

Changes in equity share capital 

As at 31st March, 2018 

Changes in equity share capital 

As at 31 March, 2019 

B. OTHER EQUITY 

Notes Amount in ~ 

13 2,676,000 

2,676,000 

2,676,000 

Particulars Reserves and Surplus Amount in~ 

Balance at 1st April, 2017 

Profit I (Loss) for the year 

Items of Other Comprehensive Income 

Balance at 31st March, 2018 

Balance at 1st April, 2018 

Profit I (Loss) for the year 

Items of Other Comprehensive Income 

Balance at 31st March, 2019 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per attached report of even date 

FOR NIRAJ D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES 

Firm Registration No. 129486W 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

~ 
NIRAJ ADATIA 

PARTNER 

MEMBERSHIP NO. 120844 

Mumbai 

Date: 27th September, 2019 

Retained Earnings Total 

(123,933,365} (123,933,365) 

6,133,186 6,133,186 

- -
(117,800,179) (117,800,179) 

(117,800,179) (117,800,179) 

6,070,648 6,070,648 

- -

(111,729,531) (111,729,531) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

KA&:AH 
Director 

DIN: 01317352 

Director 

DIN : 03140671 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2019 

Note 1. COMPANY OVERVIEW AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1.1 Company Overview 

Ackruti Safeguard Systems Private Limited is an Private Limited Company domiciled in India, incorporated under the 
Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged into manufacturers, buyers, sellers, traders, importers, exporters, merchant 

exporters, brokers, distributors, factors, stockiest, dealers of all kinds of high security number plates and to act as 

consultants and agents for any Government, semi-Government, or any other organization for all kinds of high security 

number plates and matters related thereto. 

1.2 The financial statements are approved for issue by t he Company's Board of Directors on 27th September, 2019. 

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies followed by the Company 

I. Basis of preparation of financial statements 

(i) Compliance with lnd AS 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with t he Indian Accounting St andards (hereinafter referred to 
as the ' lnd AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') read 

with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in t he f inancial statements. 

a) Historical Cost Convention 

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for the following: 

i. Certain financial assets and liabilities t hat have been measured at fair value 
ii. Assets held for sale - measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. 

b) Current versus non- current classification 

• 
• 
• 
• 

• 
• 
• 
• 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in t he balance sheet based on current/non current classification. An asset is 

classified as current when it is: 

Expected t o be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 

Held primarily for the purpose of trading 

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months 

after the reporting period 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is classified as current when: 

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 

It is due t o be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 
Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and. their realisation in cash 

and cash equivalents, the company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for the purpose of current/ non 

current classification of assets and liabilities. 

c) Functional and presentation currency 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ('INR' ) which is also the functional and presentation currency of 

the Company. 

11. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of lnd AS 

requires management to make judgements, est imates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of revenues, 

expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. 

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to t he 

carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2019 

Estimates and assumptions 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that 

have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 

financial year. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial 

statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change 

due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the cont rol of the Company. Such changes are 

reflected in the assumptions when t hey occur. 

2.1 REVENUE RECOGNITION 

A. Revenue from contract with customer (Applied from 1 April 2018) 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are t ransferred to the 

customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for 

those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, 

because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer. 

B. Interest and Dividend 

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefit s will f low to the 

Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a t ime basis, by reference 

to the principal outstanding at the effective interest rat e applicable, which is t he rate t hat exactly discounts estimated 

future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial 

recognition. 
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. 

c. Others 
Revenues I Income and Costs/ Expendit ure are generally accounted on accrual, as they are earned or incurred. 

D. Profit I loss f rom partnership firms: 

Share of profit I loss from partnership firms is accounted in respect of the financial year of the firm, during the 

reporting period, on the basis of the audited/ management reviewed accounts, which is considered as a part of other 

operating activity. 

2.2 PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION/ AMORTISATION 

A. Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisit ion or const ruction less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses, if any. 

B. Technical Knowhow are classified as intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation. 

C. Depreciation is provided on the straight line method on the basis of estimated useful life of the asset in t he manner 

specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on addit ions to assets or on sale/ disposal of assets is 
calculated pro-rat a from the mont h of such addition, or upto the month of such sale/disposal, as t he case may be. 

Asset category 

Leasehold Land 

Building 

Plant and Machinery 
Computer 

Office Equipments 

Furniture and Fixture 

Technical Knowhow 

Estimated useful life (in Years) 

60 
30 

15 
3 
5 
10 

20 
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ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE UMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2019 

2.3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

2.3.1 Initial recognition 

The Company recognizes financial assets and fmancialliabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

instrument. All f inancial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition except for trade receivables 

which are initially measured at transaction price.Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of 

financial assets and financial liabilities, that are not at fair value through profit or loss,are added to the fair value on initial 

recognition. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date. 

2.3.2 Subsequent measurement 

a. Non-derivative financial instruments 

(I} Financial assets carried at amortised cost 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold 

the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the f1nancial asset give rise on specified 

dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

(II} Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held with in a business 

model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual 

terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on 

the principal amount outstanding. Further, in cases where t he Company has made an irrevocable election based on its 

business model, for its investments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are 

recognized in other comprehensive income. 

(iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued t hrough profit or loss. 

(iv) Financialliabllities 

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for contingent 

consideration recognized in a business combination which is subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss. 

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, t he carrying amounts approximate fair 

value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 

(v) Fair value of financial instruments 

In determining the fair value of it s financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are 

based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value include 

discount ed cash flow analysis, available quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair value result in 

general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized. 

2.3.3 Derecognition of financial instruments 

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights t o the cash flows from the f inancial asset expire or 

it transfers the flnacial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under lndAS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a 

financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's balance sheet when t he obligation specified in the contract is 

discharged or cancelled or expires. 

2.3.4 Impairment 
a. Financial assets 

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not 

fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured 

at an amount equal to life t ime ECL For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal 

to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case 

thoseare measured at lifetime ECL.The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss 

allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or loss 

in the statement of profit or loss. 



ACKRUll SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2019 

b. Non-financial assets 

i. Property, plant and equipment 
Property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate 

that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount 
(i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless 

the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the 

recoverable amount is determined for the CGU t o which the asset belongs. 
ii. Intangible assets 

If the carrying amount of the intangible asset is not recoverable and it exceeds its fair value, an entity would recognize 

an impairment loss. That recorded loss is based on the amount of the asset at t he date it is tested for recoverability, 
whether in use or under development. The impairment loss is measured at the amount by which the carrying value of 

the intangible asset exceeds its fair value. 

2.4 TAXATION 

i. Current Tax 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as 

reported in the stat ement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in 

other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's current tax is calculated using rates that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

In case the Company is liable t o pay income tax u/s llSJB of Income Tax Act, 1961 (i.e. MAT), the amount of tax paid in 

excess of normal income tax is recognized as an asset (MAT Credit entitlement) only if there is convincing evidence for 

realization of such asset during the specified period. MAT credit entitlement is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. 

ii. Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the 

Standalone financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred 

tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally 

recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available 

against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent 

that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be 
recovered. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the 

liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the 
manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of 

its assets and liabilities. 

iii. Current and deferred tax for the year 

Current and deferred t ax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relat e to items that are recognized in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other 

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 

Deferred t ax asset can be created only if there is a virtual certainty with convincing evidence (VCCE) that there will be 

sufficient future taxable income against which DTA could be realised, if this condition is not satisfied deferred tax for 

the year shall not be recognised. 

2.5 INVEf\lTORIES 

All inventories are stated at Cost or Net Realizable Value, whichever is lower. 

'Cost' comprises of all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to t he 

present location and condition. The costs formulae used is 'First In First Out'. 

2.6 . BORROWING COSTS 

Interests and other borrowing costs calculated as per effective interest rate attributable to qualifying assets are allocated as 

part of the cost of construction I development of such assets. Such allocation is suspended during extended periods in 

which active development is interrupted and, no costs are allocated once all such activities are substantially complete. 
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying 

assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other b · osts are charged to the Profit and 
Loss Account. · #.~d.S Sle~ 

'o!!i -o 
~ .. 

(I) 

~ 
~ ;>,> 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE UMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2019 

2.7 CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions 

of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or 

expenses associated with investing or financing cash f lows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities 
of the company are segregated. 

2.8 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS 

I. All transactions in foreign currency are recorded in the reporting currency, based on closing rates of exchange 

II. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency, outstanding as on the Balance Sheet date , are converted in 

reporting currency at the closing rates of exchange prevailing on the said date. Resultant gain or loss is recognized 

during the year in the statement of profit and Joss. 

ill. Non monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are carried at the exchange rate prevalent on the 
date of the transaction. 

2.9 PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT UABILITIES 

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of 

the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and 

adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the t ime value of 
money is material. 

Contingent liability is disclosed for: 

• 
Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or 

Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 

settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. 

2.10. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES 

a. Fair value measurements and valuation processes 

Some of the company's assets are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value of 

an asset or liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are 

not available, the Company engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The Company works closely 

with t he qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. 

b. Property, plant and equipment/Intangible assets 
The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimat e of an asset's expected useful 

life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company's assets are 

determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed peiodically, including at each financial year 
end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may 

impact their life, such as changes in technology. 

c. Recent accounting pronouncements 

lndAS 116 

On 30th March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified lnd AS 116 Leases, under Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 which is applicable with effect from 1st April, 2019. 

lnd AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition,measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both 

parties to a contract i.e., t he lessee and the lessor. lnd AS 116 introduces a single lease accounting model for lessee 
and requires the lessee to recognize right of use assets and lease liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 

twelve months, unless the underlying asset is low value in nature. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to 

the statement of profit and loss. lnd AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in lnd AS 

17. 

As per lnd AS 116, the lessee needs to recognise depreciation on rights of use assets and finance costs on lease 

liabilities in the statement .of profit and loss. The lease payments made by the lessee under the lease arrangement will 

be adjusted against the lease liabilities. 

) 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 March, 2019 

Note 3. Property, plant and equipment in~ 

Leasehold land Building Plant & Machinery 
Computers & Furniture & Office 

Total 
Laptops Fixtures Eq uipment 

Cost or deemed cost 
Balance at 31 March, 2017 10,304,642 18,635,052 14,144,024 1,666,840 220,779 505,990 45,477,327 

Additions - - 55,327 - 44,468 99,795 
Disposals 

Balance at 31 March, 2018 10,304,642 18,635,052 14,199,351 1,666,840 220,779 550,458 45,577,122 

Accumulated depreciation 
Balance at 31 March, 2017 2,441,625 3,353,227 5,978,257 1,664,412 133,201 322,893 13,893,616 

Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Depreciation expense 151,212 597,335 805,106 15,205 77,364 1,646,222 

Balance at 31 March, 2018 2,592,837 3,950,562 6,783,363 1,664,412 148,406 400,257 15,539,838 

Carrying amount as at 31 March, 2018 7,711,805 14,684,490 7,415,988 2,428 72,373 150,201 30,037,284 

Leasehold land Building Plant & Machinery 
Computers & Furniture & Office 

Total 
Laptops Fixtures Equipment 

Cost or deemed cost 
Balance at 31 March, 2018 . 10,304,642 18,635,052 14,199,351 1,666,840 220,779 550,458 45,577,122 

Additions - - 25,847 12,300 38,147 

Disposals 

Balance at 31 March, 2019 10,304,642 18,635,052 14,199,351 1,692,687 220,779 562,758 45,615,269 

Accumulated depreciation 
Balance at 31 March, 2018 2,592,837 3,950,562 6,783,363 1,664,412 148,406 400,257 15,539,838 

Eliminated on disposal of assets 

Depreciation expense 151,212 597,335 806,408 2,792 15,205 14,286 1,587,238 

Balance at 31 March, 2019 2,744,049 4,547,897 7,589,771 1,667,204 163,611 414,543 17,127,076 

Carrying amount as at 31 March, 2019 7,560,593 14,087,155 6,609,580 25,483 57,168 148,215 28,488,193 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2019 

Note 4. Intangible assets 

Cost or Deemed cost 

Balance at 31 March, 2017 

Additions 

Disposals 

Balance at 31 March, 2018 

Accumulated depreciation 

Balance at 31 March, 2017 

Eliminated on disposal of assets 

Depreciation expense 

Balance at 31 March, 2018 

Net Carrying value as at 31 March, 2018 

Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at 31 March, 2018 

Additions 

Disposals 

Balance at 31 March, 2019 

Accumulated depreciation 

Balance at 31 March, 2018 

Eliminated on disposal of assets 

Depreciation expense 

Balance at 31 March, 2019 

Net Carrying value as at 31 March, 2019 

Technical Knowhow 

7,455,350 

7,455,350 

4,053,537 

363,968 

4,417,505 

3,037,845 

7,455,350 

7,455,350 

4,417,505 

363,968 

4,781,473 

2,673,877 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2019 

Note 5. Investments 

Non Current 

A) Capital Investment in Partnership Firms and Joint Ventures (Refer footnote) 

Rising Glory Developers 

Less: Provision for Diminution in the value of investments 

Total 

B) Current 

(At NAV) (Quoted) 

(Trade, unless otherwise specified) 

Investments in Mutual Funds 

ICICI Prudential Equity Income Fund Growth 

( NIL Units, as at 31St March, 2018, 218093.70 units) 

IDFC Super Saver IF MT Plan 

39,470.9840 Units (As at 31st March, 2018,NIL units;) 

L&T Income Opportunities Fund 

{62,228.4580 units,(As at 31st March ,2018,62,228.4580 units) 

L & T Short Term Income Fund Growth 

(40, 772.3400 units,(As at 31st March ,2018,1,19,372.3400 units) 

Templeton Short Term Income Plan -Growth 

{796.076 units,(As at 31st March ,2018,NIL units) 

Total 

Footnote: 

Details of Investments made in capital of Partnership firm : 

M/s Rising Glory Developers 

Sr. 

No. 
Name of Partners 

1 Hubtown Limited 

2 Ackruti Safeguard System Private Limited (Upto 31st July, 2018) 

3 Citygold Education Research Limited 

4 Citygold Farming Private Limit ed (Upto 31st July, 2018) 

5 Diviniti Projects Private Limited 

6 Halitious Developers Limited (Upto 31st July, 2018) 

7 Headland Farming Private Limited (Upto 31st July, 2018) 

8 Heddle Knowledge Private Limited (Upto 31st July, 2018) 

9 Heet Builders Private Limited 

10 Subhsiddhi Builders Private Limited (Upto 31st July, 2018) 

11 Sunstream City Private Limited (Upto 31st July, 2018) 

12 Upvan lake Resort Private Limited (Upto 31st July, 2018) 

13 Vega Developers Private Limited (Upto 31st July, 2018) 

14 White bud Developers Limited (Upto 31st July, 2018) 

15 Yantti Buildcon Private Limited (Upto 31st July, 2018) 

Total Capital of the firm in t 

As at 

31st March, 2019 

t 

1,502,483 

1,311,838 

816,470 

3,182,130 

6,812,921 

31st March, 2019 

Profit Sharing Ratio 

25.00% 

-
25.00% 

-

2S.OO% 

-
-
-

25.00% 

-

-
-
-
-
-

150,000 

As at 

31 March 2018 

t 

10,000 

10,000 

2,793,780 

1,237,923 

2,228,383 

6,260,086 

31st March, 2018 

Profit Sharing Ratio 

20.00% 
5.34% 

5.34% 

5.34% 

5.34% 

5.34% 

5.33% 

5.33% 

5.33% 

5.33% 

10.66% 

5.33% 

5.33% 

5.33% 

S.33% 

150,000 
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ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE UMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2019 

Equity (Class 'A') : 

Class 'A' equity shares are having par value of ~ 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The 

company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by t he Board of Directors is subject to t he approval of 

In the event of liquidation of company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after 

distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

Equity (Class 'B') : 

Class 'B' shares does not have any right to vote or participate in the distribution of profits or capital. 

9% Cumulative Convertible Preference shares : 

The Preference Shares of the Company shall be converted into fully paid equity shares of the Company on or after 1st April, 2012 or on 

such other date as may be decided by Board of Directors of the Company by exercising a call option vested in the Company for 

conversion of the Preference Shares on such terms and conditions as t he Board of Directors may deem fit. The company has not 

exercised the call opt ion till the balancesheet date. Dividend shall be payable on face value of the share and not on the issue price. 

Details of shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares 

Equity (Class 'A') 

Hubtown Limited 

KushaiH.Shah 

Khilen V. Shah 

Rushank V. Shah 

Equity (Class 'B') 
Samar't S.A. 

Preference Shares 

Hubtown Limited 

Total 

Total 

Note 15. Other Equity 

Retained Earnings 

Balance at the beginning of the year 

As at 31st March 2019 

No of shares held %holding 

36,215 

3,438 

3,438 

3,437 

72.43% 

6.88% 

6.88% 

6.87% 

As at 31st March 2019 

No of shares held 

17,600 

17,600 

%holding 

100% 

100% 

As at 31st March 2019 

No of shares held % holding 

20,000 

20,000 

100% 

100% 

Profit attributable to the owners of the company 

Balance at the end of the year 

As at 31st March, 2018 

No of shares held % holding 

36,215 

3,438 

3,438 

3,437 

72.43% 

6.88% 

6.88% 

6.87% 

As at 31st March, 2018 

No of shares held % holding 

17,600 

17,600 

100% 

100% 

As at 31st March, 2018 
No of shares held % holding 

As at 

20,000 

20,000 

31st March 2019 

~ 

(117,800,179) 

6,070,648 

(111, 729,531) 

100% 

100% 

As at 

31st March, 2018 

~ 

(123,933,365) 

6,133,186 

(117,800,179) 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2019 

Note 16. other financial liabilities 

Non-current 

Security deposits (Refundable) 

Total 

Current 

Business Advances from related party (Refer Note 29 and Footnote ) 

Other payables 

Current Account Balance in Firm & Joint Ventures( Refer Note 29) 

Total 

Footnote: 

As at 

31st March, 2019 

~ 

1,562,723 

1,562,723 

174,244,268 

174,244,268 

As at 

31st March, 2018 

~ 

1,300,319 

1,300,319 

175,744,268 

721,801 

12,640 

176,478,709 

The Company has received interest free advances from it's Parent Company, considering the nature of business in which the Company 

operate, the amounts so received are considered to be repayable on call/ demand as the repayment per iod of such amounts so 

received is not measureable precisely. 

Note 17. Deferred Tax balances 

The following is the analysis of deferred tax asset I (liabilities) presented in the balance sheet 

Deffered Tax Liability 

Deferred Tax Asset 

Tot al 

2017-2018 

Deferred tax (liabilities) I assets in relation t o: 

Property, Plant and eqiupment 

Total 

Opening Balance 

(2,965,378) 

(2,965,378) 

Recognised In Profit 

and loss account 

2,965,378 

2,965,378 

Closing Balance 

The Company has not recognised deferred tax assets, in view of absence of reasonable certainty t hat sufficient future taxable income 
will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. 

Note 18. Current borrowings 

Unsecured 

Loans repayable on demand: 

From Others 

Note 19. Trade payables 

Dues to MSME (Refer Footnote) 

Dues to others 

Total 

Total 

74,880 74,880 
74,880 74,880 

1,806,096 573,950 

1,806,096 573,950 

As per information available with the Company regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the Micro 

Small Medium Enterprises Development, Act 2006 (MSMED Act), none of t he suppliers of t he Company are registered under MSM ED 

Act, and the same has been relied upon by the auditors. 

Note 20. other current liabilities 

Current 

Advance from customers 

Other payables : 

Others 

Statutory Dues 

Total 

) 

422,255 

817,472 

106,698 

1,346,425 

120,946 

234,357 

444,256 

799,559 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2019 

Note 21. Revenue from operations 

Sale from operations : 

Income from Security Plates 

Other operating revenue : 

Uabilities written back to the extent no longer required 

Scrap Sales 

Total 

Note 22. Other income 

Interest Income: 

-Interest Received on Bank Fixed Deposits 

- Interest Received on Income Tax refund 

-On Unwinding of other financial asset 

- Others 

VAT Refund Received 

Other gains and losses : 

-Gain on Investments classified at FVTPL 

-Gain on foreign currency fluctuation (Net) 

-Gain on redemption of Mutual Fund 

Miscellaneous income 

Total 

Note 23. Cost of Material Consumed 

Opening Stock 

Raw Material Purchases 

Other Expenses related to purchase of Materials : 

Carr iage Inward 

Custom Clearance Charges 

Clearing and Forwarding charges 

Custom Duty 

A 
B 

c 
TOTAL (A+B+C} 

D Closing Stock Of Raw Material 

Raw Materials Consumed TOTAL (A+B+C-D) 

Year Ended 

31st March, 2019 

~ 

20,959,900 

20,959,900 

226,181 

64,715 

290,896 

21,250,796 

436,774 

3,793 

97,520 

21,608 

559, 695 

179,884 

345,064 

30,052 

77,835 

452,951 

1,192,530 

2,933,166 

6,736,662 

9,000 

79,617 

32,789 

334,068 

455,474 

10,125,302 

2,084,088 

8,041,214 

·~ 

Year Ended 

31st March, 2018 

~ 

17,236,822 

17,236,822 

248,769 

248,769 

17,485,591 

432,300 

81,145 

14,993 

528,438 

322,129 

660 

110,446 

433,235 

5,327 

967,000 

1,974,705 

5,312,764 

16,406 

97,870 

21,649 

562,045 

697,970 

7,985,439 

2,933,166 

5,052,273 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2019 

Note 24. Changes In Inventory 

Finished St ock: 

Opening Stock Of Number Plates 

Less: Closing Stock Of Number Plates 

Note 25. Finance Costs 

Interest costs:-

Total 

Unwinding of Security Deposit 

Interest paid 

Delayed and Penal Interest 

Total 

Note 26 Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 

Amortization of intangible assets 

Note 27. Other Expenses 

Royalty Charges 

Bank Charges 

Travelling Expenses 

Security Charges 

Rates and Taxes 

Carriage Outward 

Total 

Repairs & Mainteance (Machinery} 

Repairs & Mainteance (Others) 

Professional Fees 

Fitting Charges 

Advances and Other Debit Balance Written Off 

Other expenses (refer footnote) 

Total 

Footnote: 

Auditor's Remuneration (Included in other expenses above) 

-Audit fees 

Total 

Note 28. Earnings per share (EPS) 

Basic Earnings Per Share 

Diluted Earnings Per Share • 

Basic EPS 

Year Ended 

31st March, 2019 

~ 

5,585,577 

10,423,941 

(4,838,364} 

262,404 

37,037 

299,441 

1,587,238 

363,968 

1,951,206 

2,095,67S 

4,220 

28,098 

241,500 

28,778 

391,855 

57,507 

69,734 

1,979,694 

3,764,965 

33,059 

2,244,660 

10,939,744 

75,000 

75,000 

121.41 

121.41 

Year Ended 

31st March, 2019 

~ 

3,363,696 

5,585,577 

(2,221,881} 

218,343 

60,416 

278,759 

1,646,222 

363,968 

2,010,190 

1,723,740 

420,109 

16,914 

316,575 

47,204 

393,329 

13,620 

16,000 

964,950 

3,435,353 

2,815,700 

10,163,494 

60,000 

60,000 

122.66 

122.66 

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as follows 

Profit/(Loss) for t he year attributable to the owners of the Company 

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic and 

diluted earnings per share 

Diluted EPS 

6,070,648 

50,000 

6,133,186 

50,000 

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share are as follows 

Profit/( loss) for the year attributable to the owners of the Company 

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic and 

diluted earnings per share 

6,070,648 

50,000 

6,133,186 

50,000 

For t he purpose of diluted EPS convertible instruments (9% cumulat ive convertible preference shares) are deemed t o be 

converted on the first ~ay of the previous year. The conversion ratio has been arrived at on face value basis . . 

• 9% cumulative convertible preference shares could potentially dilute basic earnings per share, hence are not included in the 

calculation of diluted earnings per share, because they are antidilutive for t he period presented. Diluted EPS is restricted to the 

amount of Basic EPS to the extent the conversion of convertible instruments prove to be anti dilutive. 

) 
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ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2019 

Note 29. Related Party Disclosures (As per IND AS - 24) 

A. Name of the related parties and related parties relationship 

Holding Company 

II Fellow Subsidiary Companies 

Ill Key Managerial Personnel 

IV Firm In Which Company Is A Partner 

Footnote: 

Hubtown limited 

Heddle Knowledge Private limited 

Hubtown Bus Terminal- Mehsana 

Kamlesh Shah 

M/s. Rising Glory Developers(Upto 31st July, 2018). 

Related party relationship are identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors 

B. Transaction with Related Parties -

Sr. 

No. 
Nature of Transaction 

Business Advance given/repaid/adjusted 

Hubtown limited 

Hubtown Bus Terminal- Mehsana 

ii On behalf payments made (including reimbursement of expenses) 

Kamiesh Shah 

iii On behalf payments received/adjusted 

Kamlesh Shah 

iv Share of loss of Joint Venture 

M/s Rising Glory Developers 

Share of Profrt of Joint Venture 

M/s Rising Glory Developers 

v Sale of lnvestement of Joint Venture 

M/s Rising Glory Developers 

Footnote: 
Previous Year figures are given in brackets 

Balances outstanding 

Balance Payables 

Hubtown limited 

Rising Glory Developers 

Kamlesh Shah 

Balance Receivables 

Heddle Knowledge Private limited 

Hubtown Bus Terminal- Mehsana 

Rising Glory Developers 

Holding 

Company 

1,500,000 
(363,547) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

Fellow Subsidiary 

Companies 

(-) 

3,195,005 
(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

Key Management 

Personnel of t he Entity 

As at 

(-) 

(-) 

409,900 

(331,331) 

376,772 

(344,480) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

31st March, 2019 

174,244,268 

S3,315 

1,400,000 

3,19S,005 

17,923 

Firm in which Company 

is a partner 

As at 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(1583) 

20,563 
(-) 

10,000 
(-) 

31st March, 2018 

175,744,268 

12,640 

20,1B7 

1,400,9<JO 
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2019 

Note 30. Contingent Liability 

The Company does not have any contingent liability as at the balance sheet date as certified by the management and relied upon by the auditors, as otherwise 

mentioned below: 

Sr. No. 

Footnote: 

1 
2 

3 

Particulars 

MVAT matters pending uls 23 (Refer Note 2) 

CST matters pending- uls 23(2) rlw 9(2) 

Tripura Value Added Tax matters pending uls 31(1) (Refer Footnot e) 

As at 
31st March 2019 

~ 

1,178,323 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

f 
3,622 

1,205,103 

The company has received above Tripura VAT orders dated 30th July, 2018 under section 31(1) of Tripura Value Added Tax Act, 2004. The Company has filed 

appeal with higher authorities against the demand raised in the respective orders. The assessment year Breakup is as follows : 

Assessment Year Tax Liability 

2013-14 189,457 

2014-15 514,663 

2015-16 274,994 

2016-17 199,409 

TOTAL 1,178,523 

Further interest I penalty that may accrue on original demands are not ascertainable, at present. The Company has taken necessary steps to protect its position 

with respect to the above referred claims, which in its opinion, based on professional I legal advice, are not sustainable. 
The Company does not have any contingent liability as at balance sheet date, other than stated above, as certified by management & relied upon by t he auditors. 

Note 31. Disclosure Of Derivatives 

FOREIGN CURRENCY ON HAND As at As at 

31st March 2019 31st March, 2018 

USD 

Equivalent INR 

Note 32. Capital Management 

2,750 

190,636 

2,750 

178,970 

The ent ity manages its capital to ensure that the entity will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through 

optimisation of debt equity ratio. 
The capital structure of the entity consists of net debt ( Borrowings offset by cash and bank balances) and total equity of the company. 

Note 33. Financial Risk Management Objectives 

The company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company's management oversees the management of these risks. The company's board 

of directors review and agrees policies for managing each of these risks summarized below: 

i) Market Risk 
Interest rate risk 

Company has received intrest f ree advances and it receives interest free funds for its operating cash flow from its holding company as and when required (Refer 

note 16), hence the Company is not exposed to int erest risk. 

ii) Credit Risk 
The company is not exposed to credit risk from its operating activities. Credit risk from balances with banks and inter corporate loans is managed by t he company's 

treasury department in accordance with the company's policy. 
ill) Liquidity risk 

The companies cashflow requirement are met by funds received from its holding company. 

Note 34. Loans and advances,other receivables, Trade receivables ,Trade payables and other current liability are subject to confirmations and are 

considered payable as the case may be. 

Note 35. The accumulated losses of the company have resulted in complete erosion of the net worth of the company. The Company's management is however of 

the view that the same erosion is temporary in nature as the company has made certain investments in certain assets I projects, the proceeds of which would, 

when fructified, result in· recovery of the eroded worth of the company. The company to that extend 'does not see the stated erosion of the net worth as an 

impediment to its status as a going concern. 

Note 36. In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, all it ems of Current Assets, Inventories and Loans and Advances continues to have a realizable 

value of at least the amounts at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet. 



ACKRUTI SAFEGUARD SYSTEMS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2019 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019 

Note 37. Categories of Financial Instruments 

Fair Value measurement 

Particulars 

Financial Assets 

Investment 

Loans 

Trade Receivables 

Other financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalent 

Total of Financial Assets 

Financial Liabilities 

Borrowings 

Trade payables 

Other Financial liabilities 

Total of Financial Liabilities 

Note: There are no instruments that have been clasified as FVTOCI. 

Fair Value hierarchy 

31st March 2019 

FVPTL Amortised Cost 

6,812,921 -
- 1,400,000 

- 4,248 

- 6,708,722 

- 7,391,014 
6,812,921 15,503,984 

- 74,880 

- 1,806,096 

- 175,806,991 

- 177,687,967 

(~ 
31st March 2018 

FVPTL Amortised Cost 

6,260,086 10,000 

- 1,400,000 

- -
- 3,247,890 

- 6,305,737 

6,260,086 10,963,627 

- 74,880 

- 573,950 

- 177,779,028 

- 178,427,858 

This section explains the judgements and estimates in determining the fair value of the financial instruments that are recognised and measured 

at fair value 

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value- recurring 

fair value measurements 
Levell Level2 Level3 Total 

At 31st March ,2019 

Financial Assets 

Financial Investments at FVPL 

Investments In Mutual Fund 6,812,921 - - 6,812,921 

Total Financial Assets 6,812,921 - - 6,812,921 

At 31st March, 2018 

Financial Assets 

Financial Investments at FVPL 6,260,086 - - 6,260,086 

Investments in Mutual Fund 

Total Financial Assets 6,260,086 - - 6,260,086 

Levell 
Levell inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or l iabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date. 

The accompanying notes are an i ntegral part of t he financial statements. 

As per attached report of even date 

FOR NIRAJ D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES 

Firm Registration No. l29486W 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

~7 
NIRAJ ADATIA 

PARTNER 

Membership No. 120844 

Mumbai 

Date: 27th September, 2019 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Jj;HAH 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

Report on the lnd AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements ofMjs. CITYGOLD 
EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED ("the Company") which comprises the Balance 
Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other 
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for 
the year then ended and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after 
referred to as "Ind AS financial statement'). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by 
the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the financial 
position of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and loss (including other comprehensive 
income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind 
AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS 
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Responsibility of Management for the lnd AS Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these 
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 



financial performance(including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under 
Section 133 of the Act. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing 
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) ofthe Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 



• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in 
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent 
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We 
communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of 
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters 
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should 
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order'1, issued by 
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure A" statement on the matters specified 
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

II. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 

of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 
income), the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of changes in equity dealt with 
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid lnd AS financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 



(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 
March, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on 31st March, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate Report in "Annexure B"; and 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 
position in its financial statements. 

ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts 
for which there were any material foreseeable losses; and 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 
L r:r .c .9h 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Date :26th May,2019 
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ANNEXURE"A"REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CITYGOLD 
EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITEDON THEIND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED JtstMARCH, 2019; 

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and 
explanations given to us, we state that: -

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets; 

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the Management during the year 
and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification; 

(c) The Company does not own any immovable property therefore provision of clause 
3(1)( c) of the said order are not applicable; 

(ii) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at the reasonable intervals by 
the management during the year. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of 
inventory as compared to book records were not material and have been appropriately 
dealt with in the books of accounts; 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted 
any secured or unsecured loans to companies; firms or other parties covered under section 
189 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'). Therefore, provision of clause 3(iii), 3(iii)(a), 
3(iii)(b ), 3(iii)( c) of the said order are not applicable to the company; 

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any 
guarantees or any security to the parties covered under section 185 and 186. Therefore, 
the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year, Therefore the 
provisions of clause 3 (v) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016" are not 
applicable to the Company; 

. (vi) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company 
has not crossed the threshold limit as prescribed by the Central Government under sub­
section (1) of section 148 of the Act for maintenance of cost records and hence the 
provision for maintenance of records are not applicable to the Company; 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, in our opinion, except for dues in respect of Tax deduced at 
Source and Interest on tax payable, the Company is generally regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues, including Service tax, duty of customs, Value added tax, 
cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate 
authorities. There was an amount of Service tax of ~ 94,779 and Interest on tax 
payable~ 14,82,390/- outstanding as at the last day of the financial year for a period 
exceeding six months from the date they became payable. 



(b) On the basis of our examination of documents and records of the Company, and 
explanation provided to us, there are no disputed dues in respect of Income Tax, 
Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Goods & Service Tax 
or Cess other than mentioned below: 

!Name of Nature Period to ~mountm ~ount Balance Forum where the 
lthe of dues which the !Paid m Amountm dispute is pending 
~tute amount 

elates 
F.Y.) 

ncome 143 (3) 2009-10 ~0,17,08,240 Nil 10,17,08,240 ncome Tax Appellate 
~ax Act, ~ibunal 
~961 Preferred by Dept) 

(viii) As the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution or 
bank or Government, nor has it issued any debentures as at the balance sheet date. 
Therefor, the provisions of Clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(ix) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer 
(including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(x) Based on the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by 
the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its 
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year; 

(xi) The Company has not paid or provided managerial remuneration during the year and 
hence, the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable. 
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the 9rder are not applicable to the Company. 

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4 
(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(xiii) The Company -has entered into transactions with related .parties in compliance with the 
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions 
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Ind AS 24, Related Party 
Disclosures specified under section 133 to the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2015. 

(xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment I private placement of shares or 
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year, the provision of clause 3(xiv) of the 
Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company; 

(xv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 
by the management, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 ( xv) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company; 



(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45 lA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

L.J. KOTHARI & CO 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Date :26th May,2019 



"ANNEXURE B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
IND ASFINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act'1 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of CITYGOLD 
EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED ("the Company") as of 31st March, 2019 in conjunction 
with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that 
date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, · and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note'1 and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, 
both i'ssued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risks. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement ofthelnd AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation offinancial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that; 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

(3) providereasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has,in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2019, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company, considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants d 

J I '-/ ~ ')• 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 26th May,2019 



CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2019 
Particulars 

ASSETS 
1. Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Investments 
(ii) Other financial assets 

(c) Current tax assets (Net) 
Total Non-Current assets 

2. Current assets 
(a) Inventories 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Trade Receivables 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 
(iii) Other financial assets 

(c) Other current assets 
Total Current Assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
1. Equity 

(a) Equity share capital 
(b) Other equity 
Total Equity 

2. Liabilities 
(i} Non-Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 
(i) Borrowings 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 

(ii} Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Trade payables 
(ii} Other financial liabilities 

(b) Other current liabilities 
Total Current Liabilities 
Total Liabilities 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

L---'---''-ff ~ 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Mumbai 
Date: 26tll May, 2019 

Note 
No. 

3 

4 
5 
6 

7 

8 
9 
5 
10 

11 
12 

13 

14 
15 
16 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

37,500 
25,000 

10,69,833 
11,32,333 

28,89,36,428 

8,24,77,866 
2,81,756 

1,95,45,948 
8,75,992 

39,21,17,990 
39,32,50,323 

2,30,50,000 
(1,70,34,602) 

60,15,398 

29,62,476 
29,62,476 

56,93,214 
3 7' 16,80,683 

68,98,552 
38,42,72,449 

38,72,34,925 
39,32,50,323 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

10,000 
10,000 

10,69,833 
10,89,833 

28,89,36,428 

29,95,79,353 
7,59,083 

2,09,57,066 
6,77,237 

61,09,09,167 
61,19,99,000 

2,30,50,000 
(86,91,266) 

1,43,58,734 

26,93,160 
26,93,160 

1,52,22,488 
57,29,84,909 

67,39,709 
59,49,47,106 

59,76,40,266 
61,19,9'MOO 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

SH£ EHTA 
Director 

Director 
DIN: 03142640 

Mumbai 
Date: 26th May, 2019 



CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31sr MARCH1 2019 
Particulars 

Income 
Revenue from Operations 
Share of Profit I (Loss) of joint Venture and Firm 
Total Income 

II Expenses 
Costs of Development 
Changes in Inventories of Land and ancilliary costs 
Finance Costs 
Other Expenses 
Total Expenses 

III Profit I (Loss) before Tax 
Tax Expense 

Excess I (Short) provision for taxation in respect of earlier years 
IV Profit / (Loss) for the Year 

v Other Comprehensive Income 
Vl Total comprehensive income for the Year 

VII Earning per equity share of nominal value of{' 10/- each (in{') 
Basic 
Diluted 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR LJ. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

~~ 
LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Mumbai 

Date: 26th May, 2019 

Note 

No. 

17 

18 
19 
20 
21 

22 

Year ended Year ended 

3151 March, 2019 31"1 March, 2018 
{' {' 

49,58,82,570 
55,483 (1,583) 

55,483 49,58,80,987 

5,34,99,242 
27,64,96,795 

2,69,316 2,76,784 
81,29,503 49,15,73,294 

83,98,819 82,18,46,115 
(83,43,336) (32,59,65,128) 

(83,43,336} (32,59,65,128} 

(83,43,336) (32,59,65,128} 

(167) (6,519) 
(167) (6,519) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

SH!ff!:: MEHTA 

Director 
DIN: 03142640 

Mumbai 

Date: 26th May, 2019 



.. CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 sr MARCH, 2019 

Particulars 

I. (ASH FLOWS ARISING FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net profit/ (loss) before taxation as per Statement of Profit and Loss 
Add I (Less): 
Depreciation 
Share of Profit/ loss of finn and joint venture 
Finance cost 
Investment written off 

Operating profit before working capital changes 

Add 1 (Less) : 
(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories 
(Increase) I Decrease in trade and other receivebles 
Increase I (Decrease) in trade and other payables 
Direct taxes refund/ (paid) 

Net cash now from operating activities 

II. (ASH FLOWS ARISING FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

In now I (Outnow) on account of: 
(Increase)/ Decrease in investments 
Net cash now from investing activities 

Ill. (ASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
In now / (Outnow) on account of: 
Proceeds from borrowings 
Finance costs paid 
Net casb now from financing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (I + II + 111) 

Add: Balance at the beginning of the ye.ar 
Cash and casb equivalents at the end of the year 

Components of casb and cash equivalents (Refer Note 9) 
Cash on hand 
Balances with Banks 
- in Current accounts 

Total 

Tbe accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
prepared under indirect method as set out in 

As per our report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Finn Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountan~ 

L A "'>t~ l 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Mumbai 

Date: 26th May, 2019 

31st March, 2018 3151 March, 2018 
~ ~ 

(83,43,336) (32,59,65,128) 

55,483 (1,583) 
2,69,316 2,76,784 

27,00,00,000 
3,24,799 27,02,75,201 

(80,18,537) (5,56,89,927) 

27,64,96,795 
21,82,58,367 (24,53,93,120) 

(21,06,89,657) 2,53,88,529 

75,68,710 5,64,92,204 
(4,49,827) 8,02,277 

(27,500) 
(27,500) 

(1,07,998) 
(31,951) 

(1,39,949) 

(4,77,326) 6,62,327 

7,59,083 96,756 
2,81,756 7,59,083 

66,995 61,063 

2,14,761 6,98,020 
2,81,756 7,59,083 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

SHI!!:EHTA 
Director 

Director 
DIN: 03142640 

Mumbai 
Date: 26th May, 2019 



CI1YGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQU11Y FOR THE PERJOD ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 (in~) 

Note Amount 

A. EQU11Y SHARE CAPITAL 11 
As at 1st April, 2017 2,30,50,000 
Changes in equity share capital -
As at 31st March, 2018 2,30,50,000 
Changes in equity share capital -
As at 31st March, 2019 2,30,50,000 

B. OTHER EQU11Y AND CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS 

Reserves and Surplus Total 
Securities Premium Retained Earnings 

Reserve 
Balance at 1st April, 2017 37,18,00,000 (5,45,26,138) 31,72,73,862 
Profit I (Loss) for the year - (32,59,65,128) (32,59,65,128) 
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - (32,59,65,128) (32,59,65,128) 
Balance at 31st March, 2018 37,18,00,000 (38,04,91,266) (86,91,266) 
Balance at 1st April, 2018 37,18,00,000 (38,04,91,266) (86,91,266) 
Profit I (Loss) for the year - (83,43,336) (83,43,336) 
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - (83,43,336) {83,43,336) 
Balance at 31st March, 2019 37,18,00,000 (38,88,34,602) (1,70,34,602) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the stan,dalone financial statements. 

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

FOR L.J. KOTHARJ & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

'-' _ _ _.__....:..t ~ 
LALIT KOTHARJ 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

/~ (• 

-.. ~-"su•p 9 •· -\ n. '* 

Mumbai 

Date: 26th May, 2019 

~· ~~~ 
~ 

# 
SHRENIK MEHTA 

DIN:03142640 

Mumbai 

Date: 26th May, 2019 



CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

,c Note 1. Statement ofSiJtDificant Accountin2 Policies. 

1.1 Company Overview 
Citygold Education Research Limited is a public limited Company domiciled in India, incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. The main object of the 
company is to acquire by purchase, lease or otherwise, agricultural land for farming. to establish and run farms and to Construct, erect, acquire, equip, lease, 
furnish, convert. adapt, Improve, develop, operate & manage all sorts of Agricultural Parks, Industrial Parks, Special Economic Zone & related infrastructure 
facilities, commercial & social infrastructure facilities & amenities. 

1.2 The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 26111 May, 2019. 

Note 2. SiJtDificant Accountin2 Policies followed by the Company 

I. Basis of preparation offlnancial Statements 

(I) Compliance with Jnd AS 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'lnd AS1 as notified by 
Ministry of Corporate Mfairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act1 read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as 
amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. 

(II) Historical cost convention 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following: 
1) certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value; 
2) assets held for sale- measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell; 
3) defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value; 

(Iii) Current non-current classlflcation 
All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the operating cycle of the E:ompany as per the guidance set 
out in Schedule III to the Act. Operating cycle for the business activities of the Company covers the duration of the project/ contract including the defect liability 
period, wherever applicable, and extends upto the realisation of receivables (including retention monies, if any) within the credit period normally applicable to 
the respective project. 

11. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Jnd AS requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, 
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result In outcomes that require a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

a) Judgements 
Oasslfication of property 
The company determines whether a property is classified as investment property or inventory property. Investment property comprises land and 
buildings that are not occupied substantially for use by, or in the operations of, the company, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business, but are held 
primarily to earn rental income and capital appreciation. These buildings are substantially rented to tenants and not intended to be sold in the ordinary 
course of business. Inventory comprises property that is held for sale in the ordinary course of business. Principally, these are properties that the 
company develops and intends to sell before or on completion of construction. 
b) Estimates and assumptions 
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and li~bilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its 
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future 
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are 
reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 

Ill. Revenue reco2nition 
Revenue Recognition Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods or ~ervices to customers in an amount that reflects the 
consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services. 

A Revenue from Sale of Land 
Revenue from sale of land's recognized when the company satisfied performance obligation at a point in time i.e. when company is transferred to the 
customer which is usually possession of land to customer. 
Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts, rebates, price concessions, returns and 
financing component if any, as specified in the contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf of the 
government 
The Company has adopted lnd AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers, with effect from April1, 2018. lnd AS 115 establishes principles for 
reporting information about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues and cash flows arising from the contracts with its customers and 
replaces lnd AS 18 "Revenue" and Guidance Note on ·Accounting for Real Estate transactions• for entities to whom lnd AS is applicable. 

B. Interest and dividend: 
Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of 
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding at the effective interest rate 
applicable, which Is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net 
carrying amount on initial recognition. 

C. Others: 
Other revenues I incomes and costs I expenditure are accounted on accrual, as they are earned or incurred. 

D. 



CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 
-·~~~~~~~~~~~~--------------------------------------------------------

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

IV. Property plant and equipment and depreciation I ammortlsatlon 

A. On transition to lnd AS, the Company has opted to continue with the carrying values measured under the previous GAAP as at 1st April, 2015 of its 
Property, Plant and Equipment and use that carrying value as the deemed cost on the date of transition i.e. 1st April, 2015. 

B. Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction including attributable interest and finance cost, if any till the date of 
acquisition/installation of the assets, less accumulated depredation/amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

C. Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits assodated 
with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. The cost and related accumulated depredation are eliminated from the finandal statements, either on 
disposal or when retired from active use and the resultant gain or loss are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

D. Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act. 2013. Depredation on additions to 
assets or on sale/disposal of assets is calculated pro-rata from the month of such addition, or upto the month of such sale/disposal, as the case may 
be. 

Asset Category 
Computers & Laptops 

Estimated useful life (In Years) 
3 

Furnitures & Fixtures 10 
Office Equipments 5 
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depredation of property plant equipment are reviewed at each fi nandal year and adjusted 
prospectively, if appropriate. 

V. Financial Instruments 

A finandal instrument is any contract that gives rise to a finandal asset of one entity and a finandalliability or equity instrument of another entity. 

A. Investment and Financial Assets 
i. Initial recognition 

Finandai assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these finandai assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold 
these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the finandal asset give rise on spedfied dates to cash flows that 
are solely payments of prindpal and interest on the prindpal amount outstanding. interest income from these finandal assets is included in finance 
income using the effective interest rate ("EIR") method. Impairment gains or losses arising on these assets are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 

ii. Subsequent measurement 
For purposes of subsequent measurement. finandai assets are classified in following categories: 

a) Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 
A finandal asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to 
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the finandal asset give rise on spedfied dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
prindpal and interest on the prindpal amount outstanding. 

b) Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value 
Finandal assets are measured at fair value through 00 if these finandal assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold these 
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the finandal asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of prindpal and interest on the prindpal amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are 
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Further, in cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election based on its business model, 
for its investments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income. 

Finandal asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI is carried at FVTPL. 

iii. De-recognition of Financial Assets: 
The Company de-recognises a finandal asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the finandal 
asset and. substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the. Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset. the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an 
assodated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset. the Company continues to recognise the 
finandal asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. 

B. Equity Instruments a.nd Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered 
into and the definitions of a finandalliability and an equity instrument. 

i. Equity Instruments 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity 
instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Equity instruments which are issued for 
consideration other than cash are recorded at fair value of the equity instrument 

ii. Financial Liabilities 
1. Initial Recognition 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as finandalliabilities at FVPL, loans and borrowings and payables as appropriate. All finandal 
liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case ofloans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 



_ CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 
2. Subsequent Measurement 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described belo~ 
- Finandalllabllltles at FVTPL 
Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL. 
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on 
liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it 
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument Financial guarantee 
contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the 
guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind 
AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation. Amortisation is recognised as finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

- Financial liabilities at amortised cost 
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Any difference 
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

3. De-recognition of Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. When an existing financial 
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, 
such an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and recognition of a new liability. The difference in the 
respective canying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

C. Offsetting Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to 
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

VI Derecognltion offtnandalinstruments 
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expires or it transfers the finacial asset 
and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under IndAS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's 
Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

VII. Impairment 
a. Financial assets 

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or 
loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to life time ECI.. For all other financial 
assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL. unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial 
recognition in which case thoseare measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the Joss 
allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or 
loss. 

b. Non-financial assets 
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual 
Impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an 
asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recov~rable amount is determined for an individual asset, 
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the canying amount of 
an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are 
taken into account If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corrooorated by valuation 
multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators. 

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
I. Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability wheneer events or changes in circumstances indicate that their 
canying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing. the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell 
and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from 
other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount Is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. 

11. Provisions 
A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that is reasonably estimable, and it is 
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash 
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. 

-



•• CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

VIII. Taxation 
I. Current Tax 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the financial statement of 
profit and loss becauseof items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The 
Company's current tax is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

In case the Company is liable to pay income tax ufs llS)B of Income Tax Act. 1961 (i.e. MAT), the amount of tax paid in excess of normal income tax is 
recognized as an asset (MAT Credit entitlement) only if there is convincing evidence for realization of such asset during the specified period. MAT credit 
entitlement is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. 

II. Deferred Tax 
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary diferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the 
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. 
Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available 
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. 
The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset 
realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at 
the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

Ill. Current and deferred tax for the year 
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly 
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 

IX. Inventories 
All inventories are stated at lower of 'Cost or Net Realizable Value'. 

A. ' Incomplete Projects' include cost of land for which the Company has not entered into sale agreements and in other cases where the revenue 
recognition is postponed. 'Incomplete Projects' also include initial project costs that relate to a (prospective) project, incurred for the purpose of 
securing the project These costs are recognized as expenditure for the year in which they are incurred unless they are separately identifiable and it 
is probable that the respective project will be obtained. 

B. Cost included in inventory include costs incurred upto the completion of the project viz. cost of land, services and other expenses (including 
borrowing costs) attributable to the projects. Cost formula used is average cost 

X. Borrowings and Borrowln2 costs 
Borrowing are initally recognised at Net off transation cost incurred and measured at amortised cost Any difference between the proceeds ( net of 
transation costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in statetment of profit and loss over ther period of the borrowings using the effective interest 
method. 

Interests and other borrowing costs included under finance costs calculated as per effective interest rate attributable to qualifying assets, which takes 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are allocated as part of the cost of construction I development of such assets. Such allocation is 
suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted and, no costs are allocated once all such activities are substantially 
complete. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from 
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Othe~ borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Account 

XI. Cash Flow Statement 
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any 
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash 
flows. The cash flows from operating. investing and financing activities of the company are segregated. 

XJI. Cash and Casb Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or 
less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding 
bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management 

XIII. Provisions, contingent IJabUitles and contingent assets 
A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of 
embodying economic benefits of resources will be required to settle a reliably assessable obligation. Provisions are determined based on best estimate 
required to settle each obligation at each balance sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current 
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of 
time is recognised as a finance cost 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence would be confirmed by the occurrence 
or non·occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. A contingent liability also arises, in rare cases, 
where a liability cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. 

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. 



CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 1ST MARCH, 2019 

XIV. Recent accounting pronouncements 
On 30th March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified lnd AS 116 Leases, under Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2019 which is applicable with effect from 1st April, 2019. 

lnd AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition,measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and 
the lessor. lnd AS 116 introduces a single lease accounting model for lessee and requires the lessee to recognize right of use assets and lease liabilities for 
all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is low value in nature. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to 
the statement of profit and loss. lnd AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in lnd AS 17. 

As per lnd AS 116, the lessee needs to recognise depreciation on rights of use assets and finance costs on lease liabilities in the statement of profit and 
loss. The lease payments made by the lessee under the lease arrangement will be adjusted against the lease liabilities. 
The Company is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the impact on the financial statements. The effect on adoption ofiND AS 116 is 
expected to be insignificent 



CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Note 3. Property, plant and equipment 

Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at 1st April, 2017 
Additions 
Disposals 
Balance at 31st March, 2018 

Accumulated depreciation 

Balance at 1st April, 2017 
Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Depredation expense 
Balance at 31st March, 2018 

Carrying amount as on 31st March, 2018 

Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at 1st April, 2018 
Additions 
Disposals/Discardment 
Balance at 31st March, 2019 

Accumulated depreciation 

Balance at 1st April, 2018 
Eliminated on disposal/discarment of assets 
Depredation expense 
Balance at 31st March, 2019 

Carrying amount as on 31st March, 2019 

Computers and 
La to s 

25,80,602 

25,80,602 

25,80,602 

25,80,602 

Computers and 
La to s 

25,80,602 

25,80,602 

25,80,602 
25,80,602 

Furniture and Fixtures 

1,53,96,585 

1,53,96,585 

1,53,96,585 

1,53,96,585 

Furniture and Fixtures 

1,53,96,585 

1,53,96,585 

1,53,96,585 
1,53,96,585 

Office Equipment 

7,27,762 

7,27,762 

7,27,762 

7,27,762 

Office Equipment 

7,27,762 

7,27,762 

7,27,762 
7,27,762 

(in~) 

Total 

1,87,04,949 

1,87,04,949 

1,87,04,949 

1,87,04,949 

Total 

1,87,04,949 

1,87,04,949 

1,87,04,949 
1,87,04,949 



CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Note 4. Investments 

Non Current 

Capital Investment in Partnership Firms and Joint Ventures (At cost) 

M/s Rising Glory Developers (Refer footnote & Note 23) 

Total 
Footnotes: 

Details oflnvesonents made in capital of Rising Glory Developers (partnership firm): 

Name of Partners 

Hubtown Limited 
Ackruti SafeJnJard System Private Limited (up to 31st July 2018) 
Citygold Education Research Limited 
Citygold Farming Private Limited (up to 31st july 2018) 
Diviniti Projects. Private Limited 
Halitious Developers Limited (up to 31st July 2018) 
Headland Farmin_g Private Limited (up to 31st July 2018) 
Heddle Knowledge Private Limited (up to 31st July 2018) 
Heet Builders Private Limited 
Subhsiddhi Developers Pvt Ltd. (up to 31st July 2018) 
Sunstream City Private Limited (up to 31st july 2018) 
Upvan lake Resort Private Limited (up to 31st July 2018) 
Ve_ga Developers Private Limited (up to 31st July 2018) 
White bud Developers Limited (up to 31st July 2018) 
Yantti Buildcon Private Limited (up to 31st july 2018) 
Total 
Total Capital of the firm In~ 

As at 

3111 March, 2019 
~ 

37,500 

37,500 

31st March, 2019 
Profit Sharing Ratio 

25.00% 

-
25.00% 

-
25.00% 

-
-
-

25.00% 

-
-
-
-

-
-

100% 
1,50,000 

As at 

31' 1 March, 2018 
~ 

10,000 

10,000 

31st March, 2018 
Profit Sharing Ratio 

20.00% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 

10.66% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
100% 

1 ,50,000 



.· CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Note 5. Other financial assets 

Non-current 
Petrol deposits 
Deposit General 

Total 

Current 
Other Advances and Receivables 

Advances recoverable from related party (Refer Note 23) 
Advances recoverable from others 
Other Receivables 

Total 

Note 6. Current tax assets (Net) 

Advance Tax paid 
Less: Provision for tax 

Total 

As at 

31st March, 2019 
~ 

10,000 
15,000 
25,000 

76,014 
1,94,69,934 

1,95,45,948 

10,69,833 

10,69,833 

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate 

As at 

31st March, 2018 
~ 

10,000 

10,000 

2,01,57,066 
8,00,000 

2,09,57,066 

10,69,833 

10,69,833 

Since the taxable income is negative, there is no current tax payable; hence reconciliation has not been provided. 

Note 7. Inventories 

Land and ancilliary costs 
Total 

Note 8. Trade Receivables 

Current 

Unsecured, considered good 
Related Party (Refer Note 23) 

Total 

Note 9. Cash and cash equivalents 

Balances with banks: 
- in current accounts 
Cash on hand 

Total 

Note 10. Other assets 

Current 
Other Advances 

-Others 
Total 

28,89,36,428 
28,89,36,428 

8,24,77,866 
8,24,77,866 

2,14,761 
66,995 

2,81,756 

8,75,992 
8,75,992 

28,89,36,428 
28,89,36,428 

29,95,79,353 
29,95,79,353 

6,98,020 
61,063 

7,59,083 

6,77,237 
6,77,237 
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CJTYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH UMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Note 11. Equity share capital 

Authorised Share Capital: 
50,000 ( P.Y. 31st March, 2018 : 50,000) Equity Shares or'(' 10/- each 

2,25,500 (P.Y. 31st March, 2018: 2,25,000) 8% Non Cumulative Convertible Preference Shares of 'C 100/- each 

1,12,500 (P.Y. 31st March, 2018 : 1,12,500) 10% Non Cumulative Non -Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of f 
100/· each (Refer note. 12) 

3,28,700 (P.Y. 31st March, 2018: 3,28,700) Preference Shares of ~ 100/· each 

Total 

Issued and subsaibed capital comprises: 

50,000 (P.Y. 3 1st March, 2018 : 50,000) Equity Shares or f 10/· each 

2,25,500 (P.Y. 31st March, 2018: 2,25,000) 8% Non Cumulative Convertible Preference Shares of t' 100/· each, fully paid 

Total 

Footnotes: 

(I) Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares outstandlq at the beglnnlnJI and at the end of the year. 
Balance at 1st April, 2017 

Add : Issued during the year 
Less : BouJ!ht back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2018 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less : BouJ!ht back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2019 

(II) Reconciliation of the number of Preference shares outstandlnJI at the beJ!Innlne and the end of the year 
Balance at 1st April, 2017 

Add : Issued during the year 
Less : BouJ!ht back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2018 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less : BouJ!ht back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2019 

(Ill) Details or shares held by each shareholders boldine more than 5% sbares 

Fully paid equity shares 
Holding Company of Reporting Company (HCRC): 
Hubtown Umlted with Benefidary Owners 

Convertible Preference Shares 
Aiken Management and Finandal Services Pvt Ltd 
Harekrlshna Securities Pvt Ltd 
Empower India Umlted 
Signora Finance Pvt Ltd 
Ulac Medicines Private Umited 
Sonal Cos metic (Exports) Ltd 
Prabhav Industries Ltd 
Sonal Sil Chern Umlted 
Sonallnternational Ltd 

(lv) Terms I rlebts attached to each dass of shares: 
EqultySbare 

As at 31st March, 2019 
No of shares beld 

50,000 

20,900 
20,900 
41,700 
16,700 
20,900 
20,900 
41,700 
12,500 
16,700 

% boldlnJI of this dass 
of shares 

100% 

9.27% 
9.27'¥> 

18.49% 
7.41% 
9.27% 
9.27% 

18.49% 
5.54% 
7.41% 

Asat As at 

31" March, 2019 31" March, 2018 
'(' '(' 

5,00,000 5,00,000 

2,25,50.000 2,25,50,000 

1,12,50,000 1,12,50,000 

3,28,70,000 3,28,70,000 
6,71,70,000 6, 71,70,000 

5,00,000 5,00,000 

2,25,50,000 2,25,50,000 

2,30,50,000 2,30,50,000 

Number of shares Share Capital 
(In'(') (In'(') 

50,000 5,00,000 

50,000 5,00,000 

50,000 5,00,000 

2,25,500 2,25,50,000 

2,25,500 2,25,50,000 

2,25,500 2,25,50,000 

As at 31st March, 2018 
No of shares beld 

SO,OOO 

20,900 
20,900 
41,700 
16,700 
20,900 
20,900 
41,700 
12,500 
16,700 

% bold! Dl of this dass 
ofshares 

100% 

9.27% 
9.27% 

18.49% 
7.41% 
9.27% 
9.27% 

18.49% 
5.54% 
7.41% 

The company has a single class of equity shares having a par value of'(' 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The company 
declares a nd pays dividend In Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board or Directors is subject to the approval or shareholders in the ensuing a nnual 
general meeting. 

In the event of liquidation of company, the holders of equity s hares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential 
amounts. The distribution will be In proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

Preference Shares 
8% Non cumulative convertibl• Preference Shares of'(' 100 each. The Pref•renc• Shares of the Company shall be converted into fully paid equity s haru of the 
Company on or after 1st April, 2012 or on such other date as may be decided by Board of Directors ofth• Company by •xerclslng a call option vested In the 
Company for conv•rsion of th• Preference Shares on such t•rms and conditions as the Board of Directors may d•em fit. The call option has howevor not be•n 
exerds•d by the Company till date. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Note 12. Other Equity 

Securities premium reserve 

Balance at the beginning of the year 
Add I (Less) : 
Premium on account of shares allotted during the year 
Balance at the end of the year 

Retained Earnings 

Balance at the beginning of the year 
Profit/( Loss) attributable to the owners of the company 
Balance at the end of the year 

Total 

Note 13. Borrowings 

Non-current 
Liability component of preference shares (At amortised cost) 
1,12,500 (P.Y.31st March, 2018 : 1,12,500, ) 10% Non Cumulative Non -Convertible Redeemable 
Preference Shares of~ 100/- each fully paid up 
Total 

As at 

31" March, 2019 
~ 

37,18,00,000 

37,18,00,000 

(38,04,91,266) 
(83,43,336) 

(38,88,34,602) 

(1,70,34,602) 

29,62,476 

29,62,476 

As at 

31" March, 2018 
~ 

37,18,00,000 

37,18,00,000 

(5,45,26,138) 
(32,59,65,128) 

(38,04,91,266) 

(86,91,266) 

26,93,160 

26,93,160 

(i) Reconciliation of the number of fully paid non convertible preference shares outstanding at the beginning and the end of reporting year 

Balance at 1st April, 2017 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2018 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less: Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2019 

(ii) Shareholders holding more than five percent of holdings : 

Celestial Spaces Private Limited 
Note: 

Number of shares 

1,12,500 

1,12,500 

1,12,500 

100% 

Share Capital 
(in~) 

1,12,50,000 

1,12,50,000 

1,12,50,000 

100% 

The preference shares have been classified as a financial liability as per Jnd AS 32 and 109 if the issuer does not have the unconditional right to 
avoid cash outflow at the end of the term of preference shares, the instrument is classified as a financialliabiity. Hence they have been grouped 
under non-current borrowings." · 



CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Note 14. Trade payables 

Due to others 
Total 

Footnote: 

As at 

31,. March, 2019 
~ 

56,93,214 
56,93,214 

As at 

31,. March, 2018 
~ 

1,52,22,488 
1,52,22,488 

As per infonnation available with the company regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the Micro Small Medium 
Enterprises Development, Act 2006 (MSMED Act), none of the suppliers of the company are registered under MSMED Act, and the same has been relied 
upon by the auditors. 

Note 15. Other financial liabilities 

!Jm:l:n1 
Business Advance from related party (Refer footnote & Refer Note 23) 
Current account balance in finns and joint ventures 
Payable to related party (Refer note 23) 
Other payables 
Total 

Footnote: 

27,23,82,843 
71,84,246 

9,18,87,055 
2,26,539 

37,16,80,683 

26,64,18,805 
12,228 

30,18,87,055 
46,66,821 

57,29,84,909 

The Company has received interest free advances from it's Parent Company, considering the nature of business in which the Company operate, the 
amounts so received are considered to be repayable on call 1 demand as the repayment period of such amounts so received is not me.asureable precisely. 

Note 16. Other liabilities 

!Jm:l:n1 
Advance from customers (Related Party) 
Other payables : 
- Statutory dues 

Total 

53,07,769 53,07,769 

15 90 783 14,31,940 
68,98,552 67,39,709 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Note 17. Revenue from operations 

Sale from operations : 
Sale of plot (Refer Footnote 23) 

Other operating revenue: 
Liabilities written back to the extent no longer required 

Total 

Note 18. Costs of Development 

Land cost 
Total 

Note 19. Changes In Inventories Of Land and Andlliary costs 

Opening Inventory : 
Closing Inventory : 

Total 

Note 20. Finance Costs 

Interest on preference shares 
Delayed/penal interest on loans and statutory dues 
Total 

Note 21. Other Expenses 

Land non utilization charges 
Investment written off 
Professional fees 
FiUing Fees 
Security Charges 
Compensation towards 
Advances and other debit balance written off 
Other Expenses (Refer footnote) 
Total 

Footnote A : 
Auditors Remuneration (included in the other expenses) 

Audit fees · 
Total 

Note 22. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) 

Basic earnings per share 
Diluted earnings per share• 

BaslcEPS 

Year ended 

31" March, 2019 
~ 

28,89,36,428 
28,89,36,428 

2,69,316 

2,69,316 

47,26,590 

8,76,000 
47,527 

3,52,100 

8,00,000 
13,27,286 

81,29,503 

35 ooo· 
35000 

(166.87) 
(166.87) 

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as follows: 
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to the owners of the Company (83,43,336) 
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share 50,000 

Diluted EPS 
The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share are as follows 
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to the owners of the Company (83,43,336) 
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share• 50,000 

Footnote: 

Year ended 

31" March, 2018 
~ 

494242 348 
49 42 42 348 

16 40 222 
1640 222 

49 58 82 570 

5 3499242 
5 3499 242 

56,54,33,223 
28,89,36,428 

27 6496 795 

2,44,833 
31951 

2,76,784 

41,77,290 
27,00,00,000 

35,68,412 
84,041 

1,46,501 
21,00,00,000 

29,01,865 
6,95,185 

49,15,73,294 

35 000 
35 000 

(6,519.30) 
(6,519.30) 

(32,59,65,128) 
50,000 

(32,59,65,128) 
50,000 

For the purpose of diluted EPS convertible instruments (8% non cumulative convertible preference shares) deem to have been converted into equity shares 
at the beginning of the period. The conversion ratio has been arrived at on face value basis. 

8% non cumulative convertible preference shares could potentially dilute basic earnings per share hence are not included in the calculation of diluted 
earnings per share for 2017 because they are antidilutive for the period presented Diluted EPS is restricted to the amount of Basic EPS to the extent the 
conversion of convertible instruments prove to be anti dilutive. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31fT MARCH 2019 

Note 2 3. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (As per IND AS· 24) 

A. Name or the relat.,. parties a nd rolat.,. parties relationship 
Holdln& Company 

II Fellow SUbsidiary 

111 Other SlltJ"Iflcant lnnuence 

fV Firm In whk~ Company Is a partner 

v Key Manacement personne~ !Mir relatives and enterprises 

Footnote: 
Rela~ party relationships are ldentlfled by the Company and rel ied upon by the Auditors 

B. Transaction with Rtlat ... Parties· 

Sf. 
No. 

Nature ofTtanACt.lon 

Business aclvanas 13kt n/ reawer ... I adjust.,. 

Hubtown Umited 

11 Business Adwnct clv•n/ repald/ ad)ust.,. 

Hubtown Li m I~ 

Citygold Fanning Prlvo~ Uml~ 

Heddle Knowledge Privllte Umi~ 

U1 Reimbursement of expenses 

Heddle Knowledge Prlva~ Llm i~ 

lv Compen.sadon towards 

Hedd~Kno~Prlvo~Um~ 

Citygold Farming Priva~ Llmi~ 

v Share or Prollt (Loss) h'om partnership nrm 
Rising Glory Dovelop<rs 

vi Sale orplot 

Mr. Hemant M. Shah 

Mrs. Falgu nl Vyomesh Shall 

Mr. Khilon V Shah 

Mrs. KunJal Hemant Shah 

Mr. Kushal H. Shall 

Mrs.Lat3 M Shah 

Mr. Rushank V Shah 

v COrporate JUarantee pven 
Vlshal Tecllno Commer<e Umi~ 

Notr. Previous year flJUre.s are pen In the brackets 

c. Balance outstandlnc 

Balance Payab~ 
Huhtown Um~ (Holding Company) 
Rising Glory Developers( Firm In which company Is a partner) 
Citygold Farming Prlvo~ Llm i~ (Fellow Subsidiary) 
Heddle Knowlodge Privllte Umi~ (Fellow Subsidiary) 
Rublx tnding Pr1vllte U mlted 

Mrs. Kun)al Hemant Shah 

II Balance Rteelvab~ 

Mrs. Falguni Vyomesh Shah 

Mr. Hemant M. Shall 
Mr. Kushal H. Shah 
Mrs.Lat3 M Shah 
Mr. Rushank V Shah 
Cltygold Farmln1 Prlvm Llmi~ (Fellow Subs idiary) 

Ill Corpora~ Guarantees ctven ror loans availed by others 
Vlshal Tecllno Commer<e ,_Umi~ [Rorer Footnote) 

Huhtown Umi~ 

Citvookl Farmino Prlvo~ Uml~ 
Heddle Knowledge Pr1va~ Uml~ 
Vlshal Techno Comme rce Private Limited 

M/s Rublx tndlno Prlvo~ Uml~ 

M/s Rlsina Glorv Dewlooers 

M r. Hemant M. Shah 
Mrs. Falgu nl Vyomesh Shah 

Mr. Kushal H. Shah 

Mrs. Lat3M Shah 
Mr. Rushank V Shah 
M r. Khilen V Shah 
Mrs. kun)al Hemant Shah 

Holdtnc 
Ftllow SUbsidiary 

Company 

75.30.000 
(3,44.38.220) (·) 

52,89,038 

( 21,98,40,100) (·) 
11,03.36,0 14 

(·) (·) 
I 0,89,82.685 

(·) (·) 

5,17,68S 

(· ) (5,17,68S) 

(· ) (I 0,00,00,000) 

(·) (11,00,00,000) 

(·) (·) 

(·) (·) 

(·) (·) 

(·) (·) 

(· ) (·) 

(·) (· ) 

(· ) (·) 

(·) (·) 

1,0 1, 97.20,000 

(·) (35,80,00,000) 

Flrm In wbkll 
Company Is a 

partner 

(·) 

(· ) 

(· ) 

(· ) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

5S,483 

(· 1583) 

(· ) 

(· ) 

(· ) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

As at 

31. March. 2019 

26.34.00,158 
71,84,246 

89.SZ.685 
9.18.87,0S5 

53,07,769 

8.24.n.B66 

76,014 

I .SZ. 95.80.000 

tnt) 

Key Management 
personnel. their 

relatives and 
enterprises 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

(· ) 

(· ) 

(·) 

(·) 

(·) 

15.53.20. 128 

8,00,000 

3,10.34,664 

82,06.231 

5.34.48,814 

14.48,n,B66 

3,97,75.536 

(·) 

As at 

3t• March. 2018 

26.56.41.120 
12.228 

1l,OZ.60,000 
10,0S, I7,685 

9,18,87,055 

53,07,769 

6,15,79, 109 
9,08,34,029 

5.21,98,813 

S.24,n ,B66 
1,24,89,536 

2.54,93,00,000 



, .. CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Note 24. Financia l Risk Management Objectives 

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's focus is to foresee the 
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. 
1) Market Risk 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financia l instrument which fluctuate because of changes in market prices. 

Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. 
The company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to company's debt obligations with floating interest rates. 

· The Company has received interest free advances from its holding company and hence it is not exposed to interest rate risk 
2) Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract leading to a financial loss. 
The company is not exposed to credit risk from its operating activities or trade receivables since the agreement of sale of land is executed only on 
receipt of full consideration. 

Credit risk from balances with banks and inter corporate loans is managed by the company's treasury department in accordance with the company's 
policy. 

3) Liquidity risk 
The operating cash flow requirements are met by interest free funding from shareholders. 

Note 25. capital Management 

The primary objective of company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong capital ratios in order to support its business and 
maximise shareholders value. The company's board of directors reviews the capital structure on an annual basis. 

Geadne Ratio 
In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management. amongst other things. aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants 
attached to the borrowings that define the capital structure requirements. 

The gearing ratio at the reporting period was as follows 
As at As at 

31" March, 2019 31" March, 2018 

Unsecured Borrowings 29,62,476 26,93,160 
Interest accrued 
Total Debt 29,62,476 26,93,160 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 2 81756 7 59083 
Net Debt (A) 26,80,720 19,34,077 

Equity Share Capital 5,00,000 5,00,000 
Other Equity (1,70,34,602) (86,91,266) 
Total Equity (B) (1,65,34,602) (81,91,266) 

Debt Equity Ratio A/ B (0.162) (0.236) 

Note 26. Fair Value Measurements ( ~) 

31" March 2019 • 31" March 2018 
FVPL Amortised Cost FVPL Amortised Cost 

Ac•" •tc 

Investment - 37500 - 10000 
Other financial assets - 1 95 70 948 - 2 09 67 066 
Cash and cash eouivalent - 2 81 756 - 7 59 083 
Total of Financial Assets - 19890 204 - 2 17 36149 

b hllltl"" 

Borrowings - 29 62 476 - 26 93160 
Trade oavables - 56 93 214 - 1 52 22 488 
Other Financial liabilities 37 1680 683 - 57 29 84909 
Total of Financia l Liabilities - 38 03 36 373 - 59 0900 557 



CITYGOLD EDUCATION RESEARCH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Note27. 
a. The company has obtained permission for purchase of Agricultural lands admeasuring 442.15 hectors in the District Raigad as per villages referred in the 

order dated 12th March 2008 and the details of land shown in the annexure to said order from Directorate of Industries, Maharashtra State, for setting up 
Industrial Estate, Flatted Building, readymade build space, plots custom Built Campuses for IT & ITES services sector. 

b, Further same is subject to permission from town planning department and Agricultural Land Ceiling Act and the provisions of section 36 and 36 A of 
Maharashtra Land Revenue Code 1966 and of the Maharashtra Restoration of Lands to scheduled Tribe Act 1974 and permission and approval from other 
Government bodies. 

Note 28. Contingent Liability 

As a t As a t 
Pa rt1 cui a rs 

3151 March, 2019 3151 March, 2018 
Claims against the Company, not acknowledged as debts on account of:-

On account of properties purchased pending registration and other formalities under different statutes, for Amount not Amount not 
which confirmations are pending, with regards to consideration paid for the purchase of land through ascertainable at ascertainable at 
aggregator. present present 

Income Tax Matter under Appeal with CIT for the F.Y. 2009-2010 (A. Y. 2010-11) 
10,17,08,240 10,17,08,240 

On account of Corporate Guarantee issued by the Company to ECL Finance Limited on behalf of Vishal Techno 
Commerce Limited, a fellow subsidary. (Refer footnote a) 1,52,95,80,000 2,54,93,00,000 

Footnotes. 
a. The loan of~152 .95 lakhs taken by Vishal Techno Commerce Pvt. Ltd. has been jointly and severally guaranteed by Citygold Education Pvt. Ltd., Heet 

Builders Pvt Ltd., Hub town Ltd. and Sunstream City Pvt. Ltd. There is no contract determining the ratio of individual guarantees by each party. Since 
there is a joint guarantee, the entire amount of guarantee has been disclosed. 

b. Interest 1 Penalty that may accure on original demands are not ascertainable, at present The company has taken the necessary steps to protect its 
position with respect to the above referred claims, which in its opinion, based on professional/legal advice, are not sustainable. 

Note29. 
In the opinion of the board of Directors of the Company, all the items of current assets, current liabilities & loans and advances continue to have a realisable 
value of atleast the amount at which they are stated in the balance sheet 

Note30. 
The Company has vide meeting of Board of Directors dated 09/02/2019 accorded consent to Amalgamation of seven transferor company (Fellow Subsidiary) 
Heddel Knowledge Private Limited, Citygold Farming Private Limited, Headland Farming Private Limited, Urvi Butld Tech Limited, Devkrupa Build Tech 
Limited, Halitious Developer Limited and Upvan Lake Resorts Private Limited into the Company. Further Draft Scheme of Amalgamation was placed before the 
Board and approved in the said meeting, The Directors 1 signatories of the company are authorized to take all necessary steps to initiate the amalgamation. 

Note 31. 
The Company has initated the legal proceedings against land aggregators/ farmers which has been written off in earlier years. 
Note 32. 
Previous year's figures have been regrouped I recast wherever necessary. 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the Hnandal statements 

As per our report of even date For a nd on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Mumbai 

Date: 26th May, 2019 

SHE.TA 
Director 

DIN: 03137231 

.~ 
Director 

DIN: 03142640 

Mumbai 

Date: 26th May, 2019 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF CITYGOLD FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying lnd AS financial s tatements of Mjs. CITYGOLD 
FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company'') which comprises the Balance Sheet as 
at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 
income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as "Ind 
AS financial statement"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by 
the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the financial 
position of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and loss (including other comprehensive 
income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind 
AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS 
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act'1 with respect to the preparation of these 
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance( including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and 



cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under 
Section 133 of the Act 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing 
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 



• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in 
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent 
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We 
communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of 
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters 
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should 
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by 
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure A" statement on the matters specified 
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

II. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 

of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of th<;>se books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 
income), the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of changes in equity dealt with 
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 



(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 
March, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on 31st March, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate Report in "Annexure B"; and 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 
position in its financial statements. 

ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts 
for which there were any material foreseeable losses; and 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 

~u~ @~ 
LALI~ KOTHARI ~ ·~~~~/ !~ 
Propnetor 
Membership No.: 30917 
UDIN: 19030917AAAABC6795 
Place: Mumbai 
Date :26th July 2019 



ANNEXURE"A"REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CITYGOLD 
FARMING PRIVATE LIMITEDON THEIND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 315tMARCH, 2019; 

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and 
explanations given to us, we state that: -

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets; 

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the Management during the year and 
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification; 

(c) The Company does not own any immovable property therefore provision of clause3(1)(c) 
of the said order are not applicable; 

(ii) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at the reasonable intervals by the 
management during the year. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory 
as compared to book records were not material and have been appropriately dealt with in the 
books of accounts; 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any 
secured or unsecured loans to companies; firms or other parties covered under section 189 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'). Therefore, provision of clause 3(iii), 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b), 
3(iii)(c) of the said order are not applicable to the company; 

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any guarantees 
or any security to the parties covered under section 185 and 186. Therefore, the provisions of 
clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year, Therefore the 
provisions of clause 3 (v) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to 
the Company; 

(vi) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has 
not crossed the threshold limit as prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) 
of section 148 of the Act for maintenance of cost records and hence the provision for 
maintenance of records are not applicable to the Company; 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, in our opinion, except for dues in respect of Income Tax 
payable, Tax deduced at Source and Interest on tax payable, the Company is generally 
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Sales Tax, Service tax, duty of 
customs, Value added tax, Goods and Service Tax, cess and other material statutory dues, 
as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. There was an amount of Service Tax 
payable~ 6,56,751 and Interest on tax payable~ 11,39,216 is outstanding as at the last 
day of the financial year for a period exceeding six months from the date they became 
payable. 



(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, there are no disputed dues in respect of Income Tax, Service 
Tax, Custom Duty, Sales tax, Value added tax, Excise Duty or Cess other than mention 
below. 

~arne of ~ature !Period to ~mount~ ~mount Paid !Balance !Forum where the 
~e pfdues !which the ~ ~mount~ !dispute is pending 
~tute ~mount 

elates 
F.Y.) 

nco me 2009-10 14,40,09,320 - 14,40,09,320 Income Tax Appellate 
n-ax Act, ~43 (3) Tribunal (Preferred by 
11961 Deoartment) 

(viii) As the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution or bank 
or Government, nor has it issued any debentures as at the balance sheet date. Therefor, the 
provisions of Clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(ix) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer 
(including debt instruments) and tenn loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(x) Based on the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or 
employees has been noticed or reported during the year; 

(xi) The Company has not paid or provided managerial remuneration during the year and hence, 
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable. Accordingly, 
the provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4 (xii) 
of the Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(xiii) The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the 
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions 
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Ind AS 24, Related Party 
Disclosures specified under section 133 to the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2015. 

(xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment I private placement of shares or fully or 
partly convertible debentures during the year, the provision of clause 3(xiv) of the Companies 
(Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company; 

(xv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 
management, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or 
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company; 



(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45 lA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company. 

L.J. KOTHARI & CO 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

I 1 'P t-Slf2.-- ~~0 LALI~ KOTHARI ~ J~:~~t ~ 
Propnetor "'~ 
Membership No.: 30917 
UDIN : 19030917 AAAABC6795 
Place: Mumbai 
Date :26th july 2019 



"ANNEXURE B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
IND ASFINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF HEADLAND FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act'1 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of CITYGOLD 
FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company") as of 31st March, 2019 in conjunction with 
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note'1 and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, 
both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risks. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting. 



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that; 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2019, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company, considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 
....__ _ __,J.. ' ~ _9h_ 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 30917 
UDIN: 19030917AAAABC6795 
Place: Mumbai 
Date : 26th July,2019 



.. 
CITYGOLD FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2019 
Particulars 

ASSETS 
Non-Current Assets 
(a) Property, plant and equipment 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Investments 
(c) Current tax assets (Net) 
Total Non-Current assets 

Current assets 
(a) Inventories 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Trade receivables 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 
(iii) Loans 
(iv) Other financial assets 

Total Current Assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
(a) Equity share capital 
(b) Other equity 
Total Equity 

Liabilities 
Non-Current Liabilities 

Finandal Liabilities 
Other Financial Liabilities 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Trade payables 
(ii) Other financial liabilities 

(b) Other current liabilities 
Total Current Liabilities 
TotaJ Liabilities 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 

Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Mumbai 

Date: 26th July, 2019 

Note 
No. 

3 

4 
5 

6 

7 
8 
9 
10 

11 
12 

13 

14 
15 
16 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

t 

25,15,712 
25,15,712 

18,37,38,181 
7,10,591 

80,00,25,5 7 4 
98,44, 7 4,346 
98,69,90,058 

2,59,75,000 
(5,39,40,175) 

(2, 79,65,17 5) 

40,54,448 
94,90,75,379 

6,18,25,406 
1,01,49,55,233 
1,01,49,55,233 

98,69,90,058 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

t 

10,000 
2A5,18,894 

2,45,28,894 

11,18,00,007 

69,42,48,705 
1,15,01,765 
1,58,00,000 

15,69,59,237 
99,03,09,714 

1,01,48,38,608 

2,59,75,000 
(3,29,57,724) 
(69,82,724) 

20,83,486 
20,83,486 

56,73,894 
95,03,40,977 

6,37,22,975 
1,01,97,37,846 
1,02,18,21,332 
1,01,48,38,608 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

!) 
SHRENIK MEHTA 

Director 

DIN:~~/ 

~u 
Director 

DIN: 03142640 

Mumbai 

Date: 26th July, 2019 



CITYGOLD FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019'-----------------
Particulars 

I INCOME 

Note 

No. 

Revenue from Operations 17 
Other Income 18 
Share of Profit I (Loss) of Joint Ventures 
TOTAL INCOME 

II Expenses 
Costs of Construction I Development 19 
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and Work- 20 
in-Progress 
Finance Costs 21 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 22 
Other Expenses 23 
TOTAL EXPENSES 

Profit I (Loss) before Tax 

Tax Expense 
Excess I (Short) provision for taxation in respect of earlier years 

Profit I (Loss) for the year 
Other Comprehensive Income 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 

Earning per equity share of nominal value of~ 10 I- each (in 
Rupees) 

Basic 
Diu ted 

24 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants A 

~~' 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Mumbai 

Date: 26th July, 2019 

Year Ended 

31st March,2019 
~ 

9,37,24,739 

20,563 
9,37,45,302 

10,75,50,698 

14,20,683 

57,56,372 
11,47,27,753 

(2,09,82,451) 

(2,09,82,451) 

(2,09,82,451) 

(2,098.25) 
(2,098.25) 

Year Ended 

31st March, 2018 
~ 

1,03, 70,39,865 
25,16,501 

(1,583) 
1,03, 95,54, 783 

14,14,29,005 
75,74,95,572 

12,79,610 
41,131 

35,64,11,839 
1,25,66,57,157 

(21,71,02,374) 

(21, 71,02,3 7 4) 

(21,71,02,374) 

(21,710.24) 
(21,710.24) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

# 
SHRENIK MEHTA 

Director 
DIN: 03142640 

Mumbai 

Date: 26th July, 2019 



CITYGOLD FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Particula rs 

I. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net profit I (loss) before taxation as per Statement or ?rofit and Loss 
Add 1 (Less) : 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Liabilities written back 
Share or (Profit) I Loss from Partnership Firm 
Investment written off 
Operating profit before working capital changes 
Add I (Less) : 
(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories 
(Increase) I Decrease in trade and other receivebles 
Increase I (Decrease) in trade and other payables 
Current taxes paid 

Net cash flow from operating activities 

II. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Inflow 1 (Outflow) on account of : 
Decrease/ (increase) in loans given 
Share of (Profit) I Loss from Partnership Firm 
Increase I (Decrease) in Long term Investments 

Net cash flow from investing activities 

Ill. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Inflow I (Outflow) on account of : 

Net cash flow from financing activities 

Net incr ea se in cash and cash equivalents ( I + II+ Ill) 
Add: Balance a t the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents a t the end of the year 

Components of cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 8) 
Cash on hand 
Balances with Banks 
-in Current accounts 

TOTAL 

31"' March, 2019 
~ 

(2,09,82,451) 

(20,563) 

(2,10,03,014) 

11,18,00,007 
(13,25,55,812) 

(68,66,100) 
2,20,03,182 
(56,18,723) 

(2,66,21,737) 

1,58,00,000 
20,563 
10,000 

1,58,30,563 

(1,07, 91,173) 
1,15,01,765 

7,10,591 

7,10,591 
7,10,591 

31"' March, 2018 
~ 

(21, 71,02,3 7 4) 

41,131 
(11, 77,830) 

1,583 
15,00,00,000 
( 6,82,3 7,490) 

91,87,82,234 
(58,86,03,941) 
(23,50,89,694) 

(25,16,501) 
9,25,7 2,098 

2,43,34,608 

(1,58,00,000) 
(1,583) 

(1,58,01,583) 

85,33,025 
29,68,740 

1,15,01,765 

67,717 

1,14,34,048 
1,15,01, 765 

Note: The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (lnd AS- 7) statement of cash flows. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

~~ 
LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Mumbai 

Date: 26th July, 2019 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

SHRENIK MEHTA 
Director 

DIN: 03137231 

.~ 
Director 

DIN: 03142640 

Mumbai 

Date: 26th july, 2019 



CJTYGOLD FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 (in t} 
Note Amount 

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 11 
As at 1st April, 2017 2,59,75,000 
Changes in equity share capital -
As at 31st March, 2018 2,59,75,000 
Changes in equity share capital -
As at 31st March, 2019 2 59 75 000 

B. OTHER EQUITY AND CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS 
~ 

Reserves and Surplus 
Securities Premium 

Reserve 

Balance at 1" April, 2017 28,46,25,000 

Profit_LfLoslifor the year -
Other Comprehensive Income for the year -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year -
Balance at 3111 March, 2018 28,46,25,000 

Profit I (Loss) for the year -

Other Comprehensive Income for the year -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year -
Balance at 31st March 2019 28 46,25,000 

The accompanying notes a re an integra l part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants C1\ 

L .) '-P~ 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Mumbai 

Date: 26th july, 2019 

Retained Earnings Total 

(10,04,80,350) 18,41,44,650 
(21,71,02,374) (21,71,02,374) 

- -
(21,71,02,374) (21 71 02,374) 

(31,75,82,724) (3,29,57, 724) 
(2,09,82,451) (2 09,82,451) 

- -
(2,09,82,451) (2,09,82,451) 

(33 85 65174) ( 5 39,40,174) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

SH~EHTA 
Director 

Director 
DIN: 03142640 

Mumbai 

Date: 26th july, 2019 



; CITYGOLD FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Note 1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies. 

1.1 Company Overview 
Citygold Farming private Limited is a private limited Company domiciled in India, incorporated under the Companies Act. 1956. The main object of the company 
is to acquire by purchase, lease or otherwise, agricultural land for farming. to establish and run farms and to Construct, erect. acquire, equip, lease, furnish, 
convert. adapt. improve, develop, operate & manage all sorts of Agricultural Parks, Industrial Parks, Special Economic Zone & related infrastructure facilities, 
commercial & social infrastructure facilities & amenities. 

1.2 The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 26th july, 2019. 

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies followed by the Company 

I. Basis of preparation of financial Statements 

£i) Compliance with lnd AS 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'lnd AS1 as notified by 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013 ('Act1 read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as 
amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. 

(ii) Historical cost convention 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following: 
1) certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value; 
2) assets held for sale - measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell; 
3) defined benefit plans- plan assets measured at fair value; 

(iii) Current non-current classification 
All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current. wherever applicable, as per the operating cycle of the Company as per the guidance set 
out in Schedule III to the Act. Operating cycle for the business activities of the Company covers the duration of the project/ contract including the defect liability 
period, wherever applicable, and extends upto the realisation of receivables (including retention monies, if any) within the credit period normally applicable to 
the respective project. 

11. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of ind AS requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, 
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

a) Judgements 
Classification of property 
The company determines whether a property is classified as investment property or inventory property_ Investment property comprises land and 
buildings that are not occupied substantially for use by, or in the operations of, the company, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business, but are held 
primarily to earn rental income and capital appreciation. These buildings are substantially rented to tenants and not intended to be sold in the ordinary 
course of business. Inventory comprises property that is held for sale in the ordinary course of business. Principally, these are properties that the 
company develops and intends to sell before or on completion of construction. 
b) Estimates and assumptions 
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its 
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about futu re 
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are 
reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 

Ill. Revenue recognition 
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will accrue to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured 
and also when it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made and that there is buyers' commitment to make the complete payment 

A- Revenue from Sale of Land 
Revenue from sale of land's recognized when the company satisfied performance obligation at a point in time i.e. when company is transferred to the 
customer which is usually possession ofland to customer. 
Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts, rebates, price concessions, returns and 
financing component if any, as specified in the contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf of the 
government 
The Company has adopted lnd AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers, with effect from April1, 2018. lnd AS 115 establishes principles for 
reporting information about the nature, amount. timing and uncertainty of revenues and cash flows arising from the contracts with its customers and 
replaces lnd AS 18 "Revenue• and Guidance Note on • Accounting for Real Estate transactions· for entities to whom lnd AS is applicable. 

B. Interest and dividend: 
Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of 
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding at the effective interest rate 
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net 
carrying amount on initial recognition. 

C. Others: 
Other revenues I incomes and costs I expenditure are accounted on accrual, as they are earned or incurred. 



CITYGOLD FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

IV. Property plant and equipment and depreciation I ammortisation 

A. On transition to lnd AS, the Company has opted to continue with the carrying values measured under the previous GMP as at 1st April, 2015 of its 
Property, Plant and Equipment and use that carrying value as the deemed cost on the date of transition i.e. 1st April, 2015. 

B. Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction including attributable interest and finance cost, if any till the date of 
acquisition/installation of the assets, less accumulated depreciation/amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

C. Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the item will now to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements, either on 
disposal or when retired from active use and the resultant gain or loss are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

D. Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions to 
assets or on sale/disposal of assets is calculated pro-rata from the month of such addition, or upto the month of such sale/ disposal, as the case may 
be. 

Asset Category Estimated useful life (in Years} 
Fumitures & Fixtures 10 
Office Equipments 5 
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant equipment are reviewed at each financial year and adjusted 
prospectively, if appropriate. 

V. Financ.iallostruments 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financia l liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

A. Investment and Financial Assets 
i. Initial recognition 

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold 
these assets in order to collect contractual cash nows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash nows that 
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance 
income using the effective interest rate ("EIR"} method. Impairment gains or losses arising on these assets are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 

ii. Subsequent measurement 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, fi nancial assets are classified in following categories: 

a) Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to 
collect contractual cash nows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash nows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

b) Financial Assets Measured a t Fair Value 
Financial assets are measured at fair value through OCI if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold these 
assets in order to collect contractual cash nows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash nows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are 
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Further, in cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election based on its business model, 
for its investments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income. 

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI is carried at FVTPL. 

iii. De-recognition of Financial Assets: 
The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash nows from the asset expire, or it transfers the financial 
asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an 
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the 
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. 

B. Equity Instruments and Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered 
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument 

i. Equity Instruments 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity 
instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Equity instruments which are issued for 
consideration other than cash are r ecorded at fai r value of the equity instrument 

ii. Financial Liabilities 
1. Initial Recognition 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL,Ioans and borrowings and payables as appropriate. All financial 
liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 



• CITYGOLD FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 
2. Subsequent Measurement 
The measurement of financia l liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 
- Finandalliablllties at FVTPL 
Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL. 
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on 
liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it 
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument Financial guarantee 
contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the 
guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of lnd 
AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation. Amortisation is recognised as finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

- Financial liabilities at amortised cost 
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Any difference 
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

3. De-recognition of Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified ln the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. When an existing fi nancial 
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, 
such an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and recognition of a new liability. The difference in the 
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

C. Offsetting Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to 
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

VI Derecognition offinandal instruments 
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash fiows from the financial asset expires or it transfers the fi nacial asset 
and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under lndAS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's 
Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

VII. Impairment 
a. Financial asse ts 

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or 
loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to life time ECL. For all other financial 
assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL. unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial 
recognition in which case thoseare measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss 
allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognized as an Impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or 
loss. 

b. Non-finandal assets 
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual 
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an 
asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, 
unless the asset does not generate cash infiows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of 
an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash fiows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that refiects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are 
taken into account If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation 
multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fai r value indicators. 

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
i. Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability wheneer events or changes in circumstances indicate that their 
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing. the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell 
and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash fiows that ar e largely independent of those from 
other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. 

11. Provisions 

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that is reasonably estimable, and it is 
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash 
fiows at a pre-tax rate that refiects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specifi c to the liability. 
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CITYGOLD FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

VIII. Taxation 

I. Current Tax 
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the finandal statement of 
profit and loss becauseof items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The 
Company's current tax is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

In case the Company is liable to pay income tax ufs llS)B of Income Tax Act. 1961 (i.e. MAT), the amount of tax paid in excess of normal income tax is 
recognized as an asset (MAT Credit entitlement) only if there is convindng evidence for realization of such asset during the spedfied period. MAT credit 
entitlement Is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. 

II. Deferred Tax 
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary diferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the finandal statements and the 
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. 
Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available 
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. 
The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset 
realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at 
the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

Ill. Current and deferred tax for the year 
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive Income or directly 
in equity, In which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized In other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 

IX. Inventories 
All inventories are stated at lower of 'Cost or Net Realizable Value'. 

A. 'Incomplete Projects' include cost of land for which the Company has not entered into sale agreements and in other cases where the revenue 
recognition is postponed. 'Incomplete Projects' also include initial project costs that relate to a (prospective) project. incurred for the purpose of 
securing the project These costs are recognized as expenditure for the year In which they are incurred unless they are separately identifiable and it 
is probable that the respective project will be obtained. 

B. Cost included in inventory include costs incurred upto the completion of the project viz. cost of land, services and other expenses (including 
borrowing costs) attributable to the projects. Cost formula used is average cost 

X. Borrowln25 and Borrowing costs 
Borrowing are initally recognised at Net off transation cost incurred and measured at amortised cost Any difference between the proceeds ( net of 
transation costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in statetment of profit and loss over ther period of the borrowings using the effective interest 
method. 

Interests and other borrowing costs included under finance costs calculated as per effective interest rate attributable to qualifying assets, which takes 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are allocated as part of the cost of construction I development of such assets. Such allocation is 
suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted and, no costs are allocated once all such activities are substantially 
complete. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from 
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Account 

XI. Cash Flow Statement 
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any 
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and Item of income or expenses assodated with investing or finandng cash 
flows. The cash flows from operating. investing and finandng activities of the company are segregated. 

XU. Cash a nd Cash Equiva lents 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short·term deposits with an original maturity of three months or 
less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding 
bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management 

XIII. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
A provision Is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as result of past event and It is probable that an outflow of 
embodying economic benefits of resources will be required to settle a reliably assessable obligation. Provisions are determined based on best estimate 
required to settle each obligation at each balance sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current 
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks spedfic to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of 
time is recognised as a finance cost 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence would be confirmed by the occurrence 
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. A contingent liability also arises, in rare cases, 
where a liability cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. 

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the finandal statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

XIV. Recent accounting pronouncements 
On 30th March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified lnd AS 116 leases, under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2019 which is applicable with effect from 1st April, 2019. 

lnd AS 116 sets out the prindples for the recognition,measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and 
the lessor. lnd AS 116 introduces a single lease accounting model for lessee and requires the lessee to recognize right of use assets and lease liabilities for 
all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is low value in nature. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to 
the statement of profit and loss. Ind AS 116 substantially canies forward the lessor accounting requirements in lnd AS 17. 

As per lnd AS 116, the lessee needs to recognise depredation on rights of use assets and finance costs on lease liabilities in the statement of profit and 
loss. The lease payments made by the lessee under the lease arrangement will be adjusted against the lease liabilities. 

The Company Is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the Impact on the financial statements. The effect on adoption of INO AS 116 is 
expected to be insignificent 



: 

CITYGOLD FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Note 3. Property, plant and equipment 

Cost or deemed cost 
Balance at 1st April, 2017 
Additions 
Disposals 
Balance at 31st March, 2018 

Accumulated depreciation 
Balance at 1st April, 2017 
Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Depreciation expense 
Balance at 31st March, 2018 
Carrying amount as on 31st March, 2018 

Cost or deemed cost 
Balance at 1st April, 2018 
Additions 
Disposals/Discardment 
Balance at 31st March, 2019 

Accumulated depreciation 
Balance at 31st March, 2018 
Eliminated on disposal/discarment of assets 
Depreciation expense 
Balance at 31st March, 2019 
Carrying amount as on 31st March, 2019 

Furniture and 
Fixtures 

5,17,500 

5,17,500 

5,17,500 

5,17,500 

Furniture and 
Fixtures 

5,17,500 

5,17,500 

5,17,500 
5,17,500 

Office Equipment 

6,30,000 

6,30,000 

6,30,000 

6,30,000 

Office Equipment 

6,30,000 

6,30,000 

6,30,000 
6,30,000 

Total 

11,47,500 

11,47,500 

11,47,500 

11,47,500 

Total 

11,47,500 

11,47,500 

11,47,500 
11,47,500 



CITYGOLD FARMING PRJVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Note 4. Investments 
a) Capital Investment in Partnership Firm 

M/s Rising Glory Developers 

TOTAL 

Details oflnvestments made in capital of Partnership firm: 

a) Partnership Firm 
M/s Risin2 Glorv Developers 

Particulars 

1 Hubtown Limited 
2 Ackruti Safeguard System Private Limited (up to 31st July 2018) 
3 Citvgold Education Research Limited 
4 Citygold Farming Private Limited (up to 31st July 2018) 
5 Diviniti Projects Private Limited 
6 Halitious Developers Limited (up to 31st July 2018) 
7 Headland Farming Private Limited (up to 31st July 2018) 
8 Heddle Knowledge Private Limited (up to 31st July 2018) 
9 Heet Builders Private Limited 

10 Subhsiddhi Builders Private Limited (up to 31st July 2018) 
11 Sunstream City Private Limited(_ up_ to 31st July 2018) 
12 Upvan lake Resort Private Limited (up to 31st July 2018) 
13 Vega Developers Private Limited (up to 31st July 2018) 
14 Whitebud Developers Limited (up to 31st july 2018) 
15 Yantti Buildcon Private Limited (up to 31st July 2018) 

Total 
Total Capital of the firm in~ 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

31st March, 2019 
Profit Sharing Ratio 

25.00% 
-

25.00% 
-

25.00% 
-
-
-

25.00% 
-
-
-
-
-
-

100.00% 
1,50,000 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

10,000 

10,000 

31st March, 2018 
Profit Sharing Ratio 

20.00% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 

10.66% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 

100.00% 
1,50,000 



CITYGOLD FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

! NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Note 5. Current Tax assets and liabilities 
Advance Tax paid 
Less: Provision for Tax 
TOTAL 

Note 6. Inventories 
Inventories (lower of cost or net realisable value) 
- Incomplete projects 
TOTAL 

Note 7. Trade Receivables 
Current 
Unsecured, considered good 
- Other trade receivables 
- Related Party (Refer Note 28) 
TOTAL 

Note 8. Cash and cash equivalents 
Balances with banks: 
- in current accounts 
Cash on hand 
TOTAL 

Note 9. Loans 
Current 
Loan to others (Unsecured, considered good) 
TOTAL 

Note 10. Other financial assets 
Current 
Project Advances to related parties (Refer Note 28) 
Current Account Balances in Partnership Firms 
Other Advances and Receivables: 

- Other receivables (Other than Trade receivables) 
- Related Party (Refer Note 28) 

TOTAL 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

t' 

25,15,712 

25,15,712 

14,97,381 
18,22,40,800 

18,37,38,181 

7,10,591 

7,10,591 

79,98,43,800 

1,61,211 
20,563 

80,00,25,574 

As a t 
31st March, 2018 

t' 

2,59,50,927 
(14,32,033) 

2,45,18,894 

11,18,00,007 
11,18,00,007 

1,09,63,405 
68,32,85,300 

69,42,48,705 

1,14,34,048 
67,717 

1,15,01,765 

1,58,00,000 
1,58,00,000 

15,43,34,384 
19,87,092 

6,37,761 

15,69,59,237 
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: NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Note 11. Equity share capital 
Authorised Share Capital: 
10,000 (As at P.Y.31st March, 2018 : 10,000) Equity Shares of t 10/· each) 

9,99,000 (As at P.Y.31st March, 2018 : 9,99,000) 8% Non Cumulative Convertible Preference Shares of t 100/· each 
TOTAL 

Issued and subscribed capital comprises: 
10,000 (As at P.Y.31st March, 201B: 10,000) Equity Shares of t 10/· each 

2,5B,750 (As at P.Y.31st March, 201B : 2,SB,750) 8% Non Cumulative Convertible Preference Shares of :t' 100/· each 

TOTAL 

Footnotes: 

(i) Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year 
Balance at 1st April, 2017 

Add : Issued during the year 
Less: Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2018 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less: Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2019 

(li) Reconciliation of the number of Preference shares outstanding at the beginning and the end of the year 
Balance at 1st April, 2017 

Add : Issued during the year 
Less: Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2018 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2019 

(iii) Details of shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares 

As at 31st March, 2019 

Fully paid equity shares 
Hubtown Limited with Beneficiary Owners 
TOTAL 

Fully paid preference shares 
Harmony Energy Pvt. Ltd. 
Aiken Management and Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. 
Priority Traders Pvt. Ltd. 
Shree Ganesh Spinners Ltd. 
Tac Technosoft Private Limited 
Azure Exim Services Ltd. ( Hindustan Continental Limited) 
Epson Trading Pvt. Ltd. 
Lilac Medicines Private Ltd. 
Hare krishna Securities Pvt. Ltd. 

No of shares held % holding 

10,000 100% 
10,000 100% 

As at 31st March, 2019 
No of shares held % holding 

20,900 8.08% 
20,900 B.OB% 
20,900 B.OB% 
29,200 11.29% 
16,700 6.45% 
37,500 14.49% 
33,400 12.91% 
16,700 6.45% 
41,700 16.12% 

As at As at 

3111 March, 2019 31st March, 2018 
~ ~ 

1,00,000 1,00,000 

9,99,00,000 9,99,00,000 
10,00,00,000 10,00,00,000 

1,00,000 1,00,000 

2,58,75,000 2,58,75,000 

2,59,75,000 2,59,75,000 

Number of shares Share Capital 
Nos. ~ 

10,000 1,00,000 

10,000 1,00,000 

10,000 1,00,000 

Number of shares Share Capital 
Nos. ~ 

2,58,750 2,58,75,000 

2,58,750 2,58,75,000 

2,58,750 2,58,75,000 

As at 31st March, 2018 
No of shares held % holding 

10 000 100% 
10,000 100% 

As at 31st March, 2018 
No of shares held % holding 

20,900 8.08% 
20,900 8.08% 
20,900 B.OB% 
29,200 11.29% 
16,700 6.45% 
37,500 14.49% 
33,400 12.91% 
16,700 6.45% 
41,700 16.12% 

(iv) The rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the repayment of 
capital: 

Equity Share 
The company has a single class of equity shares having a par value of t 10/· per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The company 
declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual 

In the event of liquidation of company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential 
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

Preference Shares 
B% Non cumulative convertible Preference Shares of tlOO each. The Preference Shares of the Company shall be converted into fully paid equity shares of the 
Company on or after 1st April, 2012 or on such other date as may be decided by Board of Directors of the Company by exercising a call option vested in the 
Company for conversion of the Preference Shares on such terms and conditions as tlie Board of Directors may deem fit However the Board of Directors has not 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Note 12. Other Equity 
Securities premium reserve 
Balance at the beginning ofthe year 
Add I (Less) : 
Premium on account of shares alloted during the year 
Balance at the end of the year 

Retained Earnings 

Balance at the beginning of the year 
Profit/( Loss) attributable to the owners of the company 
Balance at the end of the year 

TOTAL 

Note 13: Other non current liabilities 
Non-current 
Security Deposits 
Advance rentals-Non Current 
TOTAL 

Note 14. Trade payables 
Dues to Others 
TOTAL 

Footnote: 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

28,46,25,000 

2 8,46,2 5,000 

Year ended 
31st March, 2019 

(31,75,82,724) 
(2,09,82,451) 

(33,85,65,175) 

(5,39,40,175) 

40,54,448 
40,54,448 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

28,46,25,000 

28,46,25,000 

Year ended 
31st March, 2018 

(10,04,80,350) 
(21,71,02,374) 

(31,75,82,724) 

(3,29,57,724) 

15,24,507 
5,58,979 

20,83,486 

56,73,894 
56,73,894 

As per information available with the company regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under 
the Micro Small Medium Enterprises Development, Act 2008 (MSMED Act), none of the suppliers of the company are 
registered under MSMED Act, and the same has been relied upon by the auditors. 

Note 15: Other Financial Liabilities 
Current 
Advance received from others 
Business advances from related party (Refer Note 28) 
Security deposits (Refundable) 
Other payables : 
- Related Party (Refer Note 28) 
-Others 
TOTAL 

Note 16. Other Liabilities 
Current 
Advance from customers 
Other payables : 
- Statutory dues 
-Others 
TOTAL 

60,00,00,000 
34,75,77,014 

5,84,278 
9,14,087 

94,90,75,379 

18,25,406 
6,00,00,000 

6,18,25,406 

60,00,00,000 
34,75,01,000 

10,00,000 

8,06,231 
10,33,746 

95,03,40,977 

14,80,000 

22,42,975 
6,00,00,000 

6,37,22,975 



CITYGOLD FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Note 17. Revenue from operations 
Sale from operations : 
Sale of Properties 

Other operating revenue : 
Lease rentals 
Amortisation of Advance Lease rentals 
Liabilities written back to the extent no longer required 
Compensation I surrender of Rights 

TOTAL 

Note 18. Other income 
Miscellaneous income 
TOTAL 

Note 19. Costs of Construction f Development 
Land cost 
TOTAL 

Note 20. Changes In Inventories Oflncomplete Project 

Opening Inventory incomplete projects 
Less: 
Purchase Return (Land) 
Plot cost and Expenses incurred on procurement written off (Refer note 23) 

Closing Inventory incomplete projects 
TOTAL 
Note 21. Finance Costs 
Interest costs: 
Unwinding of security deposit 
Delayed/penal interest on loans and statutory dues 
TOTAL 

Note 22. Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 
Depreciation of property plant and equipment 
TOTAL 

Note 23. Other Expenses 
Brokerage 
Municipal Taxes & Land non utilization charges 
Investment Written off 
Legal and professional fees 
Advances and other debit balances written off 
Work in progess written off (Land expenses)((Refer note 20) 
Other expenses (Refer footnote) 
TOTAL 

Foot Note: 
Auditor Remuneration (Included in the other expenses) 
Audit Fees 

Year ended 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

9,10,44,998 

9,10,44,998 

21,20,762 
5,58,979 

26,79,741 
9,37,24,739 

11,18,00,007 

14,80,000 
27,69,309 

10,75,50,698 

10,75,50,698 

5,75,493 
8,45,190 

14,20,683 

17,60,900 
4,00,000 

1,69,750 
5,04,391 

27,69,309 
1,52,022 

57,56,372 

35,000 
35,000 

Year ended 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

91,87,79,800 

91,87, 79,800 

66,82,676 
3,99,559 

11,77,830 
11,00,00,000 

11,82,60,065 
1,03, 70,39,865 

25,16,501 
25,16,501 

14,14,29,005 
14,14,29,005 

1,03,05,82,241 

23,50,000 
15,89,36,662 
86,92,95,579 
11,18,00,007 

75,74,95,572 

5,66,178 
7,13,432 

12,79,610 

41,131 
41,131 

24,45,975 
9,54,225 

15,00,00,000 
27,61,513 

4,04,75,000 
15,89,36,662 

8,38,464 
35,64,11,839 

35,000 
35,000 
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Note 24. Earning$ per s hare (EPS) 

Basic earning per share 
Diluted earnings per share• 

BasicEPS 
The earnings and weighted average numbe r of e quity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as follows: 
Profit 1 (Loss) for the year attributable to the owners of the Company 
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic earning$ per share 

Diluted EPS 
The earnings and weighted avera~e number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnin~s per share are as follows: 
Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to the owners of the Company 
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share• 

Footnote: 

Year Ended 

31 ' ' March, 2019 
f 

(2,098.25) 
(2,098.25) 

(2,o9,82,451) 
10,000 

(2,09,82,451) 

10,000 

Year Ended 
J lstMarch, 2018 

f 

(21,710.24) 
(21,710.24) 

(21,71,02,374) 
10,000 

(21,71,o2,374) 

10,000 

For the purpose of diluted EPS convertible instruments (8% non cumulative convertible preference shares) deem to have been converted into equity shares at the beginning ofthe 
period. The conversion ratio has been arrived at on face value basis. 
8% non cumulative convertible preference shares could potentially dilute basic earning$ per share, hence are not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share because 
they are antidilutive for the period presented. Diluted EPS is restricted to the amount of Basic EPS to the extent the conversion of convertible instruments prove to be anti dilutive. 

Note 25. Financial Risk Management Objectives 
The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk. credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets 
and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. 
1) Market Risk 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument which fluctuate because of changes in market prices. 

Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The company's exposure to the 
risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to company's debt obligations with floating interest rates. 
· The Company has received interest free advances from its holding company and hence it is not exposed to interest rate risk 
2) Credit Risk 
Cred it risk is the risk that the counterparty w ill not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract leading to a financial loss. The company is not exposed to 
cred it risk from its operating activities or trade receivables since the agreement of sale of land is executed only on receipt of full consideration. 

Credit risk from balances with banks and inter corporate loans is managed by the company's treasury department in accordance with the company's policy. 

3) Liquidity risk 
The operating cash flow requirements are met by interest free funding from shareholders. 

Note 26. Capital Management 
The primary objective of company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders value. The 
company's board of directors reviews the capital structure on an annual basis. 

Note 27. Categories orFinancial Instruments 
Fair Value measurement (f' 

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 
FVPL&FVOCI Amortised Cost FVPL&FVOO Amortised Cost 

EiDaDtial A~tl 
Investment - 10,000 
Loans - 1,58,00,000 
Trade receivables 18,37,38,181 69,42,48,705 
Cash and cash equivalent 7,10,591 1,15,01,765 
Other financial assets 80,00,25,574 - 15,69,59,237 
Total ofFinancial Assets - 98,44,74,346 - 87,85,19,707 

EiDiDI:iil Liabiliti!:S 
Trade payables 40,54,449 56,73,894 
Other Financial liabilities 94,90,75,379 95,03,40,977 
Total of financial Liabilities - 95,31,29,828 - 9 5,60,14,871 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Note 28. Related party disclosure 
A) Names or Related Parties and desalptlon or Relations hips 

I Holding Company 

II Fellow Subsidiary Companies 

Ill Firm In which Company Is a partner (up to 31st July,2018) 

IV Entitles With Joint Control or, Or SlgnUlcant lnOuence Over, the Entity 

V Key Manage ment personnel and their relatives 

Footnote: 
Related party relationship are Identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors 

B) Transactions with Related !!a!:!! 

Sr. 
Nature or Transaction 

Holding 
No. Company 

1 Business Advances Received/ Recovered / Adjusted 
Hubtown Umlted 42,52,33,050 

[3,20,000) 
Rubtx Trading Private Umlted 

[·) 
)oynest Premises Private Umlted 

[·) 
2 Business Advances given/ Re paid/ Adjus ted 

Hubtown Umlted 1,07,36,54,100 
[16,69,36,931) 

Cltygold Education Research Umlted 
[·) 

Heddle Knowledge Private Limited 
[·) 

)oynest Premises Private l.lmlted 
[·) 

3 On behalf payments made (indudinc reimbursment of expenses) 
Hubtown Umlted 4,51,634 

[7,35,252) 
Heddle Knowledge Private Umlted 

[·) 
Cltygold Education Research Umlted 

[·) 
4 Compensation I surrender of Richts 

Cltygold Education Research Umlted 
[·) 

s Share or Pront [Loss) from partnership firm 
Rising Glory Developers [up to 31st )uly,2018) 

[·) 
6 Contribution to Current Account 

Rising Glory Developers [up to 31st )uly,2018) 
[·) 

7 Sale or Properties 
Mr. Vyomesh M. Shah 

[·) 
Mr. Khllen V Shah 

[·) 
Mr. Kushal H. Shah 

[·) 
Mr. Rushank V Shah 

[·) 

I. 
Balances Outstanding 

Rublx Trading Private Umlted 
Heddle Knowledge Private l.lmlted 
Cltygold Education Research Umlted 
Mr. Khllen V Shah 

II. 
Balances Receivable 

Cltygold Education Research l.lmlted 
Rising Glory Developers 
Hubtown l.lmlted 
)oynest Premises Private l.lmlted 
Mr. Vyomesh M. Shah 
Mr. Khllen V Shah 
Mr. Kushal H. Shah 
Mr. Rushank V Shah 

Footnotes: 
Previous year figures are given In brackets. 

Hubtown Umited 

)oynest Premises Private Umlted 
Heddle Knowledge Private Umlted 
Citygold Education Research Umlted 

M/ S Rising Glory Developers 

Rublx Trading Private Umlted (Subsidiary Or VInca] 

Mr. Vyomesh M. Shah 
Mr. Khllen V Shah 
Mr. Kushal H. Shah 
Mr. Rushank V Shah 

Firm In which 

Fellow Subsidiary 
Company Is a partner 

[·) [·) 

[·) [·) 
22,00,000 

[15,22,00,000) f-) 

[·) f-) 
3,20,000 

[·) [·) 
2,50,000 

[·) [·) 

[15,22,00,000) [·) 

[·) [·) 
28,047 

[18,46,731) [·) 
16,014 

[ ·) f-) 

[11,00,00,000) f-) 

20,563 
[ ·) [·1583) 

[·) [·) 

[·) [·) 

[·) [·) 

[·) [·) 

[·) [·) 

As at 

31st March, 2019 

34,75,01,000 
5,84,278 

76,014 
5,57,000 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

20,563 
79,98,43,800 

7,99,27,250 

6,28,10,500 
3,95,03,050 

Key Management 
Personnel or the 

Entity 

[ ·) 

[ ·) 

f-) 

[·) 

[·) 

[·) 

[ ·) 

[·) 

[ ·) 

[·) 

[·) 

[·) 

[· ) 

60,45,000 
[17,17,89,750) 

[14,20,26,000) 

[15,12,73,500) 

[28,64,42,050) 

As at 

31st March, 2018 

34,75,01,000 
8,06,231 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

11,02,60,000 
19,87,092 

15,18,74,384 
22,00,000 

14,68,72,250 
8,95,26,000 

13,69,07,500 
19,99,79,550 
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Note 29. The permission under Bombay Tenancy and Agricultural Land Act (BTAL) from Revenue Department for acquiring Agricultural Land in excess of 
ceiling limit are subject to conditions imposed by Government which state that the approvals/ permissions under MLR Code, Restoration of Land 
to ST Act, BTAL Act, Forests Acts, CRZ, NDZ and other similar laws wherever applicable are necessary. 

Note 3 0. Contineent Liability (not acknowledged as debt) 
As a t As at 

Particulars 
31" March, 2 019 31st March, 2018 

Claims against the Compa ny, not acknowledged as debts on account of: 

Income Tax Matter under ufs 143(3) with !TAT for the F.Y. 2009-2010 (AY. 2010-11) 
14,40,09,320 -

Income Tax Matter under ufs 154 with CIT for the F.Y. 2012-2013 (AY. 2013-14) 
NIL 97,070 I 

Note: Interest f Penalty that may accure on original demands are not ascertainable, at present The company has taken the necessary steps to protect its 
position with respect to the above referred claims, which in its opinion, based on professional I legal advice, are not sustainable. 

Note 3L 

Note32. 

Note33. 

Note33. 

Note34. 

Note35. 

In the opinion of the board of Directors of the Company, all the items of current assets, current liabilities & loans and advances continue to 
have a realisable value of atleast the amount at which they are stated in the balance sheet 
The Company is in the process of acquisition of land 1 properties. Some of the Land purchased standing in the name of nominees of Company 
pending for necessary permissions from the Revenue Department 
Debtors, Creditors and Loans and advances include confirmations, reconciliation and adjustments and are considered payable/ realizable, as 
the case may be. 

The Company has vide meeting of Board of Directors dated 09/02/2019 accorded consent to Amalgamation along with other six transferor 
company (Fellow Subsidiary) into Citygold Education Research Limited the transferee company. Further Draft Scheme of Amalgamation was 
placed before the Board and approved in the said meeting. The Directors I signatories of the company are authorized to take all necessary 
steps to initiate the amalgamation. 

The Company has in itated the legal proceedings against land aggregators/farmers which has been written off in earlier years. However during 
the year the Company has received /recoverd certain part ofland. 

Previous year's figures have been regrouped I recast wherever necessary. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR LJ. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313 

Mumbai 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

SH~EHTA 
Director 

DIN~~~ 

D~~ 
Director 

DIN: 03142640 

Date: 26"' july, 2019 

Mumbai 

Date: 26"' july, 2019 



SANKET R SHAH & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

Independent Auditor's Report 
To the Members of Citywood Builders Private Limited 

1) Opinion: 
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Citywood Builders Private 
Limited ('the Company'), which comprise the, balance sheet as at 31st March 2019, the statement of 
profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and the 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the lnd AS financial statements, 
including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein 
after referred to as "lnd AS financial statement"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2019 and its financial performance 
including other comprehensive income and the statement of changes in equity for the year ended on 
that date. 

2) Basis of Opinion: 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(1 0) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the lnd AS· Financial Statements section of 
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of the lnd AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

3) Emphasis of Matter: 
1. Attention is invited to Note No. 3.1 (~) of the financial statements with regarding recognition of 

expense for ongoing·projects which is based upon estimated project costs, as per the judgement 
of the management, which have been relied upon by us, these being technical matters. 

2. Attention is invited to Note No. 14(iv) of the financial statements with regard to interest not 
charged on Redeemable Non-convertible Debentures. 

3. Attention is invited t~ Note No. 31 of the financial statements with regard to reliance placed by 
the auditors on certification received from the management with regard to the disclosure of 
contingent liabilities given by the Company. 

4. Attention is invited to Note No. 32 and 33 of the financial statements with regards to balances 
that are subject to confirmations, reconciliation and adjustments if any. 

5. Attention is invited to facts the Company has not charged interest o~~m~~ 
to various entities in which the Company has a business interest. ~ ~ 

~ 

M No. 
2369 Our opinion is not qualified in respect of the matters. 

. . ~ 
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4) Responsibil ity of Management's for the lnd AS Financial Statements: 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these lnd AS financial statements 
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance (including other 
comprehensive income), .changes in equity an9 cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule, 2015 as amended, and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financtal controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 
of the lnd AS financial statements that giv.e a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the lnd AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting 
process. 

5) Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the lnd AS Financial Statements: 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable a.ssurance about whether the lnd AS financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users . . 
taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

a. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the lnd AS financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. 



b. Obtain an understanding of internal finMcial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinLon on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

c. Evaluate the appropri~teness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

d. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the lnd AS financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor's repo~. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

e. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the lnd AS financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the lnd AS financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with tho'se charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the lnd AS financial statements of the current period and 
are therefore the key audit matters. 

We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regula.tion precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when1 in extremely rare circl:Jmstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

6) Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements: 
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the 
Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order. 

2. 



b) in our opinion proper books of a~count as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of cash flows and the 
statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account; 

d) in our opinion, tre aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued thereunder; 

e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 
2019 taken on r~cord by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
31st March, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

n with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 
Annexure 8; and 

g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit.and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us: 
i. The Company has no pendirg litigations on its financial position in its standalone 

financial statements. 
ii. The Company has made provision, as required. under the applicable law or 

accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, and 
iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

For Sanket R Shah & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 135703W 

Proprietor 
M. No.: 152369 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 18th September, 2019 

UDIN: 19152369AAAAEY5826 



Annexure -A to the Independent Auditors' Report 
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report 
to the members of Citywood Builders Private Limited of even date) 

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors1 Report to the members of the Company on the 
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019, we report. that: 

(i) 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(v) 

(vi) 

(vii) 

a. The Company has maintained a register of fixed assets, giving description and location of its 
assets; and 
b. As explained to us, the Company has physically verified its fixed assets during the year; 

a. The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, 
the frequency of the verification is reasonable. 
b. In our opinion, the procedures of physical verification of Inventory followed by the 
management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and the nature 
of its business; 
c. On the basis of our examination of the records of the company, we are of the opinion that, the 
company is not maintaining proper project-wise records. The value of inventory has shown of 
both projects. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to its 
book records were not maintained. 

The Company has granted unsecured loan to one company covered under the register 
maintained under Section 189 of the Act; 
a. The terms and condition of the loan are prima facie not prejudicial to the interest of the 

Company, and 
b. the schedule of repayment of principal on demand and the loan is interest free loan; 
c. As per the terms and conditions of the arrangement, the amount of the loan is not overdue; 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, 
making investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable. 

' 
In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 
76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit~) Rules, 2014 (as amended). 
Accordingly, the prov~sions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 
148( 1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company. 

a. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, in our opinion, except for dues in respect of Income Tax, Tax Deducted at 
Source (TDS), and Goods and Service Tax (GST) the Company is generally regular in 
depositing, undisputed statutory dues, including income-tax and other material statutory dues, 
wherever applicable, with the appropriate authorities. <:>~~~~Ass. 
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The extent of arrears of statutory dues outstanding including interest at the balance sheet date, 
for a period exceeding six months from the date they become payable and the details of 
outstanding as follows: 

Sr. No. Particulars Amount in INR 
1. Tax Deducted at Source (TDS) Liability 8,169/-
2. Goods and Service Tax (GST) Liability 7,29572/-
3. Interest on above Statutory Liability 9,027/-

Total Statutory Liability 7,46,768/· 

b. On the basis of oyr examination of documents and records of the Company, and explanation 
provided to us, there were no disputed dues in respect of Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, 
Custom Duty, Excise Duty or Cess, particulars to disputed dues relating to Income Tax are as 
follows: 
Sr. Statute and nature of dues Section Financial Disputed Dues 
No. Year (Amount in INR) 
1. Income Tax, High Court (Preferreq by Department) 143(3) 2009-10 1 ,53,13,250/-
2. Income Tax, Commissioner of Income tax (Appeals) 2718 2010-11 1,00,000/-
3. Income Tax, Commissioner of Income tax (Appeals) 143(3) 2012-13 1,82,16,090/-

(viii) The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution, banks, 
government or debe~ture holders during the year. Accordingly, 'paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is 
not applicable. 

(ix) The Company did ~ot raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the 
Order is not applicable. 

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or 
on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of 
our audit. 

(xi) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in 
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the pro~isions of section 197 read with 
Schedule V to the Act. 

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not 
a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 
177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in 
the standalone financial statements as required applicable accounting standards. 
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(xiv) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year and hence reporting 
under Clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not.applicable to the Company. 

{xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the 
Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected to its 
directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to 
the Company. 

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act 1934. 

For Sanket R Shah & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 135703W 

.. 
Sanket Shah 
Proprietor 
M. No.: 152369 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 18th September, 2019 

UDJN: 19152369AAAAEY5826 



Annexure · B to the Independent Auditors' Report 
(Referred to in paragraph 2(~ under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our 
report to the members of Citywood Builders Private Limited of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 ("the Acn 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Citywood Builders Private Limited 
("the Company") as of 31st March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended on that date. 

1) Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls: 
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that .were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

2) Auditor's Responsibility: 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the 
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all materi~l respects. 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company's intern trois system over financial reporting. 
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~ 
~ 
V1 

* 



3) Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting: 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over. financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that: 
1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as _necessary to permit preparation 

of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being· made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and 

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

4) Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting: 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to f~ture periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may. deteriorate. 

5) Opinion: 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at 31 51 March 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For Sanket R Shah & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 135703W 

~/ 
Sanket Shah 
Proprietor 
M. No.: 152369 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 18th September, 2019 

UDIN: 19152369AAAAEY5826 



CJTYWOOD BUILDERS PRJV ATE LIMITED 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2019 
Particulars 

ASSETS 
Non-Current Assets 
(a) Property, plant and equipment 
(b) Current tax assets (Net) 
(c) Other non-current assets 
Total Non-Current assets 

Current assets 
(a) Inventories 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Trade receivables 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 
(iii) Bank balances other than (iii) above 
(iv) Other financial assets 

(c) Other current assets 
Total Current Assets 
Total assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
(a) Equity share capital 
(b) Other equity 
Total Equity 

Liabilities 
Non-Current Liabilities 

Financial Liabilities 
(i) Borrowings 
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 
(ii) Trade payables 
(iii) Other financial liabilities 

(b) Other current liabilities 
Total Current Liabilities 
Total Liabilities 
Total Equity and Liabilities 

Note 
No. 

4 
5 
6 

7 

8 
9 
10 
11 
6 

12 
13 

14 
15 

16 
17 
15 
18 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

124,167 
5,047,244 

26,990,194 
32,161,605 

998,226,698 

143,378,584 
106,359,040 

846,469 
16,912,473 
94,401,143 

1,360,124,407 
1,392,286,012 

100,000 
(216,594,164) 
(216,494,164) 

150,428,966 
12,004,233 

162,433,199 

6,993,319 
187,723,391 

1,046,892,308 
204,737,959 

1,446,346, 977 
1,608,780,176 
1,392,286,012 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

232,837 
2,508,461 

26,990,194 
29,731,492 

1,068,519,04 7 

110,279,865 
12,097,401 

640,000 
17,355,479 

103,869,027 
1,312,760,819 
1,342,492,311 

100,000 
(143,805,816) 
(143,705,816) 

312,408,138 
6,599,966 

319,008,104 

6,993.319 
215,162,766 
876,482,615 

68,551,323 
1,167,190,023 
1,486,198,127 
1,342,492,311 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Financial Statements. 

As per our report of even date 

FOR SANKET R. SHAH & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 135703W 

PROPRIETOR 
Membership No. 152369 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 18lh September, 2019 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 

JASM~HOD 
DIRECTOR 

DIN:03147669 

DIRECTOR 
DIN:03140671 



CJTYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

STATEMENT Of PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 
Particulars 

INCOME 

Revenue from Operations 
Other Income 

EXPENSES 

Total Income 

Note 

No. 

19 
20 

Costs Of Construction I Development 21 
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and Work-in-
Progress 22 
Employee Benefits Expense 23 
Finance Costs 24 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 25 
Other Expenses 26 

Total Expenses 

Profit I (Loss) before exceptional items and tax 
Exceptional Items 
Profit I (Loss) before tax 

Tax Expense 
Current Tax 
Deferred tax 
Profit I (Loss) After Tax 

Earning per equity share of nominal value of ~ 101- each 

Basic and Diluted 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Financial Statements. 

As per our report of even date 

FOR SANKET R. SHAH & ASSOCJATES 

PROPRIETOR 
Membership No. 152369 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 18th September, 2019 

27 

Year ended 

31st March, 2019 
~ 

289,914,388 
6,345,248 

296,259,636 

132,127,880 
4,646,744 

260,460,788 
11,226,249 

312,822 
108,670 

22,747,898 
431,631,051 

(135,371,414) 

(135,371,414) 

(135,371,414) 

(13,537) 

Year ended 

31st March, 2018 
~ 

105,970,146 
3,931,042 

109,901,188 

275,860,149 
2,047,110 

(204,655,257) 
10,906,539 

7,647,024 
119,531 

23,129,311 
115,054,407 

(5,153,219) 

(5,153,219) 

{5,153,219) 

(515) 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 

JASM~HOD I\~:~OR 

DIN: 03140671 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 sr MARCH, 2019 

Particulars 

I. CASH F!.OWS ARISING FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net profitl(loss) before taxation as per Statement of Profit and Loss 
Add I (Less) : 
On account of adoption of Ind AS 115 

Finance costs 

Depreciation and amortisation 

Other gains and losses 

Operating profit before working capital changes 

Add I (Less) : 

(lncrease)IDecrease in inventories 
(Increase)IDecrease in Trade Receivables and Other 
Receivables (Including Current Investment) 

Increase I(Decrease)in trade and other payables 

lncreasei(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities (Current) 

Direct taxes paid 

Net cash flow from operating activities 

II. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Inflow I (Outflow) on account of: 

Other gains and losses( miscellaneous income) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Loans and advances 
Net cash flow from investing activities 

III. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVJTIES 

Inflow 1 (Outflow) on account of: 

Proceeds from Long Term Borrowing 
Finance costs paid 

Net cash Dow from financing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ( I + II + Ill ) 
Add: Balance at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Components of cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 9) 
Cashon hand 
Balances with banks 
· in Current accounts 
·in Deposits with maturity of less than six months 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Financial Statements. 

As per our report of even date 

FOR SANKET R. SHAH & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 135703W 

SANKE~ 
PROPRIETOR 
Membership No. 152369 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 18th September, 2019 

Year Ended 

31" March, 2019 

~ 

(135,371,414) 

62,583,066 

312,822 

108,670 

(72,366,856) 

70,292,348 

(25,933,080) 

279,156,954 

5,404,267 

(2,538,783) 

326,381,706 
254,014,850 

2,538,783 
2,538,783 

(161,979,172) 

(312,822) 

(162,291,994) 

94,261,639 

12,097,401 
106,359,040 

653,425 

102,895,909 
2,809,706 

106,3591040 

Year Ended 

31., March, 2018 

~ 

(5,153,219) 

7,647,024 

119,531 

(3,339,709) 
(726,373) 

(206,436,288) 

91,155,554 

123,292,051 

21,641,548 

(744,749) 

28,908,116 
28,181,743 

3,339,709 

2,926,863 
6,266,572 

(39,195,420) 
(7,647,024) 

(46,842,444) 

(12,394,130) 

24,491,531 
12,097,401 

673,045 

8,914,650 
2,509,706 

1210971401 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 

JASM~OD 
DIRECTOR 

DIRECTOR 

DIN: 03140671 



CJTYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 
in~ 

Particulars Equity Share Retained Earnings Total 
Capital 

Bala nce at t " March, 2017 100,000 (138,652,597) (138,552,597) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year . (5,153,219) (5,153,219) 

Bala nce a t 31" March, 2018 100,000 (143,805,816) (143,705,816) 

Ba lance at 151 April, 2018 100,000 (143,805,816) (143,705,816) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year . (135,371,414) (135,371,414) 

Balance at 3151 March, 2019 100,000 (216,594,164) (216,494,164) 

The accompanying notes a re an in tegral part of financial Statements. 

As per our report of even date 

FOR SANKET R. SHAH & ASSOCIATES FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 

Membership No.152369 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 18., September, 2019 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH. 2019 

1. COMPANY OVERVIEW AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Company Overview 
Citywood Builders Private l.imited is a private limited Company domiciled in India, incorporated under The Companies Act; 1956. 
The Company is engaged in real estare business of construction and development of residential and commercial projects and other 
real estate project etc. 

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 1Bu. Sept, 2019 

2. STANDARDS, NOT YET EFFECTIVE AND HAVE NOT BEEN ADOPTED EARLY BY THE COMPANY 
Information on new standards, amendments and interpretations that are expected to be relevant to the financial statements is 
provided below. 

lnd AS 115 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' (lnd AS 115) 
There is one new standard issued by MCA (not yet effective) for revenue recognition which overhauls the existing revenue 
recognition standards Including lnd AS 18 - Revenue and lnd AS 11 -Construction contractS. The new standard provides a control· 
based revenue recognition model and provides a five srep application principle to be followed for revenue recognition: 

i) Identification of the contracts with the customer 
ii) Identification of the performance obligations in the contract 
iii) 
iv) 
v) 

Determination of the transaction price 
Allocation of transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract (as identified in step il) 
Recognition of revenue when performance obligation is satisfied. 

The effective date of the new standard has not yet been notified by the MCA. The management is yet to assess tho impact of this new 
standard on the Company's financia l statements. 

3. BASlS OF PREPARATION OF FINANOAL STATEMENTS 

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (lndAS) under the historical cost 
convention on the accrual basis except for certain financtal tnstruments which are measured at fdtr values, the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 f Act1 (to the extent notified). The lnd AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read wtth Rule 3 of the 
Companies (lndtan Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Compantes (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. 

The Company has adopted all the lndAS standards and the adoption was carried out in accordance with lndAS 101 First time 
adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in 
India as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (lGAAP), which was the 
previous GAAP. Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition has been s ummarized In note 40. 

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a 
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change In the accounting policy thereto in use. 

a) Hjstorical Cost Convention 
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for the following: 

i. certain financial assets and liabilities that have been measured at fair value 
ii. assets held for sale· measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. 
iii. defined benefit plans· plan assets measured at fair value. 



CllYWOOD BUlLDERS PRJVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH. 2019 

b) Current vers us non-current classification 
The Comp~ny presents assets and liabilities In the balance sheet based on current/non current classification. An asset is 
classified as current when it is: 

• Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed In normal operating cycle 
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
• Cash or cash equtvalent unless restricted from bcmg exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the 

reporting period 

All other assets are classified as non-current 
A liability Is classlfted as current when: 

• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
• There is no unconditiona l right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current 
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash 
equivalents. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

c) Foreign currency translation 
Functional and presentation currency 
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ('I NR') which is also the functional and presentation currency of the 
Company. 

3.1 REVENUE RECOGNITION 
Revenue Recognition Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that 
reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services. 

A. Revenue from sale of properties/ development rights 
Revenue from the sale of properties / flats / commercial premises / units in a project are recognised when the company 
satisfies performance obligations at a point in time t.e when control is transferred to the customer which is usually on giving 
soft possession for lit outs or acrual possession to the customer. 

Revenue is measured based on the transactJon price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts, rebates, price 
concessions, returns and financing component if any, as specified in the contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes taxes 
collected from customers on behalf of the government 

Amount received as Advance from customers on Invoicing I raising demand letters are classified as Contract Liabilities. The 
company's right to consideration in exchange for goods or services that the company has transferred to the customer are 
classified as receivables. 

The Company has adopted lnd AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers. with effect from April 1, 201& lnd AS 115 
establishes principles for reporting information about the nature, amount', timing•and uncertainty of revenues and cash flows 
arising from the contracts with its customers and replaces lnd AS 18 "Revenue" and Guidance Note on ·Accounting for Real 
Estate transactions" for entities to whom lnd AS Is applicable. The Company has adopted lnd AS 115 using the modified 
retrospective approach to contracts that were not completed as at April 01. 2018 and has given impact of lnd AS 115 application 
by debit to Retained Earnings as at the said date by Rs. 10,37,71,311/· pertaining to recognition of revenue based on 
satisfaction of performance obligations at a point in time. 

Accordingly, the comparative amounts of revenue and corresponding contract assets/ liabilities have not been retrospectively 
adjusted. 

B. Revenue from Trading Materials: 
Revenue from sale of trading material is recognised when control of promised goods are transferred to the customer. 

C. Revenue from project management services: 
Revenue from 'project management services' is recognized only on satisfaction of performance obligation of promised services 
based on the agreements between the Company and the customer to whom such services are rendered. 



OTYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMJTED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH. 2019 

D. Interest 
Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will now to the Company and 
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal 
outstanding at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future <:ash receipts 
through the expected life of the financial assetto that asset's net carrying amount on initia l recognition. 

E. Others 
Revenues/ Income and Costs/ Expenditure are generally accounted on accrual, as they are earned or incurred. 

F. Share of profit/ Joss from partnership firms/ association of persons (AOP) is accounted in respect of the financial year of the 
Firm/ AOP, during the reporting period, on the basis of their audited/ management reviewed accounts, which is considered as 
a part of other operating activity. 

3.2 PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPREOATION / AMORTISATION 

A. Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. 

B. Depreciation is provided on the straight line method on the basis of estimated useful life of the asset in the manner specified in 
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions to assets or on sale/disposal of assets is calculated pro-rata 
from the month of such addition, or up to the month of such sale/disposal, as the case may be. 

Asset Category 

Computer 
Office Equipments 
Furniture and Fixture 

3.3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

3.3.1 INITIAL RECOGNITION 

Estimated useful life (in Years} 

3 
5 

10 

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabili ties when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition except for trade receivables which are 
initially measured at transaction price.Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets 
and financial liabilities, that are not at fair value through profit or loss,are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular way 
purchase and sa le of financial assets are accounted for at trade date. 

3.3.2 SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT 
a. Non-derivative financial instruments 

(I) Financial assets carried at amortised cost 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost ifit is held wi thin a business model whose objective is to hold the asset 
in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on s pecified dates to cash nows 
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the pri ncipal amount outstanding. 

(ii) Financial assets at fair value through other compreb ensjye income 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held with in a business model 
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash nows and selling financia l assets and the contractual terms of the 
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. Further, in cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election based on its business model, for its iiwestments 
which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income. 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 1ST MARCH. 2019 

(Ill) Financial assets at fair va lue through profit or loss 
A fi nancial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss. 

(lv) Finandal liabiUtles 
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for contingent 
consideration recognized in a business combination which Is subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss. For trade 
and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the 
short maturity of these instruments. 

(v) Fair value of flnandallnstruments 
In determining the fair value of il~ financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are based on 
market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value include discounted cash flow 
analysis, avai lable quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair value result in general approximation of 
value, and such value may never actually be realized. 

3 .3.3 Derecognltlon OfFlnandal lnstruments 
The Company dl'recognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from thl' financial asset expire or it 
transfers the finac1al asset and the transfer qua lilies for derecognition under lndAS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial 
liability) is derecognized from the Company's balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled 
or expires. 

3.3.4 Impairment 
a. Financial assets 

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financia l assets which arc not fair 
valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no signi ficant financing component is measured at an 
amount equal to life time ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the lZ-month 
EC!., unless there has been a significant increase in credit nsk from Initial recognition in which case thoseare measured at lifetime 
ECL.The amount of l'Xpected credit losses (or reversal) that IS required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the 
amount that Is requ1red to be recognised is recognized as an Impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or Joss. 

b. Non-financial assets 
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment arc evaluated for recover-ability wheneer events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing. the recoverable amount (i.e. the 
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-usc) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not 
generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for 
the CGU to which the asset belongs. 

3 .4 TAXATION 
L CurrentTax 

The tax currently payable IS based on taxable profit for the yl'ar. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the 
consolidated financial statement of profit and loss becauseof items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other 
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's current tax is calculated using rates that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

In case the Company Is liable to pay income tax ufs 115)8 of Income Tax Act, 1961 (i.e. MAT), the amount of tax paid in excess of 
normal income tax is recognized as an asset (MAT Credit entitlement) only if there is convincing evidence for realization of such 
asset during the specified period. MAT credit entitlement is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRNATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 1ST MARCH. 2019 

ii. Deferred Tax 
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary diferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated 
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax liabilities arc 
generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible 
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible 
temporary differences can be utilized. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extentthat it is no 
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that arc expected to apply in the period in which the liability is 
settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the 
reporting period. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in 
which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and 
liabilities. 

Iii. Current and deferred tax for the year 
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in wh ich case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 

3.5 INVENTORIES 

i. All inventories arc stated at Cost or Net Rea lizable Va lue, whichever is lower. 
ii. 'Incomplete Proje(.'ts' include cost of incomplete properties for which the Company has not entered into sale agreements and in 

other cases where the revenue recognition is postponed. 'Incomplete Projects' also include initial project costs that relate to a 
(prospective) project, incurred for the purpose of securing the project These costs are recognized as expenditure for the year in 
which they are incurred un less they are separately identifiable and it is probable that the respective project will be obtained. 

iii. Cost included in inventory include costs incurred up to the completion of the project viz. cost of land I rights, value of FSI, materials, 
services and other expenses (including borrowing costs) attributable to the projects. Cost formula used is average cost. 

3.6 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

Post-Employment Benefits 
3.6.1 Defined contribution plans: Company's contribution to State governed Provident Fund Scheme is recognised during the year in 

which the related service is rendered; 

3.7 BORROWING COSTS 
Borrowings are initially recognised at the net transaction costs incurred a11d measured at ammortised cost Any difference between 
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the period 
of the borrowings using the effective interest method. 

Interests and other borrowing costs calculated as per effective interest rate attributable to qualifying assets are allocated as part of 
the cost of construction I development of such assets. Such allocation is suspended during extended periods in which active 
development is interrupted a11d, no costs are allocated once all such activities arc substantially complete. Investment income earned 
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing 
costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Account. 

3.8 CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non­
cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses 
associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and fi nancing activities of the company 
are segregated. 



CllYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH . 2019 

3.9 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS 

i. All transactions In foreign currency are recorded in the reporting currency, based on closing rates of exchange prevalent on the 
dates of the relevant transactions. 

II. Monetary assetS and liabilities in foreign currency, outStanding as on the Balance Sh~t date , arc converted in reporting 
currency at the closing rates of exchange prevailing on the said date. Resultant gain or loss is recognized during the year in the 
statement of profit and loss. 

iii. Non monetary assets and liabilities denominated in fore1gn currencies are carried at the exchange rate prevalent on the date of 
the transaction. 

3.10 PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
Provisions arc recogn ized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of the 
amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect 
the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material. 

Contingent liability is disclosed for: 

Possible obligations which will be confinned only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or 

Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the oblignion cannot be made. 

3.11 USE OF ESTIMATES 

3.11.1 

The preparation of the financia l statements in conformity with lndAS requires management to make estimates, judgments and 
assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions atTect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the period. Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving 
complex and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in note 3.11.1. 
Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ £rom those estimates. Appropriate changes in 
estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates 
are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the 
notes to the financial statements. 

Critical accounting Judgements and estimates 

a. Revenue recognition 
The Company uses the percentage-of-completion method in accounting for its revenue. Costs of t he project are based on the 
management's estimate of the cost to be incurred up to the completion of the projects and include cost of land, Floor Space Index 
(FSI), materials, services and other expenses attributable to the projects. Estimates of project Income, as well as project costs, 
are reviewed periodically. Costs expended have been used to measure progress towards completion of work. Provisions for 
estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on 
the expected contract estimates at the reporting date. 

b. Property, plant and equipment 
The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the 
expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company's assets are determined by 
management at the rime the asset is acquired and reviewed peiodically, including at each financial year end. The lives are based 
on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes 
in technology. 

c. Fair value measurements and valuation processes 
Some of the company's assets are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value of an asset 
or liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available. the 
Company engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The Company works closely with the qualified external 
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LI.MITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 sr MARCH, 2019 
~--~--------------------As at As at 
31"t March, 2019 31 .. March, 2018 

t t 
4. Property, plant and equipment 
Carrying amounts of: 

Leasehold land 
Commercial Premises 
Mivan System 

Computers and Laptops 
Furniture and Fixtures 124,169 232,837 
Vehicles 
Office Equipment 

Total 124,169 232,837 

Computers Furniture and Office Total 
and LaJ!tOJ!S Fixtures Eguil!ment 

4. Property, Plant and Equipment 
Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at 1st April, 2017 1,299,827 1,159,710 2,459,537 
Additions 
Disposals 
Transfers 
Balance at 31st March, 2018 1,299,827 1,159,710 2,459,537 

Accumulated depredation and impairment 

Balance at 1st April, 2017 957,459 1,149,710 2,107,169 
Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Depreciation expense 109,529 10000 119,529 
Balance at 31st March, 2018 1,066,988 1,159,710 2,226,698 

Carrying amount as on 31st March 2018 232,839 232,837 

Computers Furniture and Office Total 
and LaJ!lOJ!S Fixtures Eguil!ment 

Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at 31st March, 2018 1,299,827 1,159,710 2,459.537 
Additions 
Disposals 
Balance at 31st March, 2019 1,299,827 1,159,710 2,459,537 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

Balance at 31st March, 2018 1,066,988 1,159,710 2,226,698 
Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Depreciation expense 108,670 108,670 
Balance at 31st March, 2019 1,175,658 1,159,710 2,335,368 
Carrying amount as at 31st March 2019 124,169 124,167 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LJMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31sr MARCH, 2019 

5. Current tax assets (Net) 
Advance Tax paid 
Less : Provision for Tax 
Curent Tax Asset f (Liability) 

6. Other assets 
Non-current 
Advances to land owners 

Current 
Project Advances 
Advances to Suppliers, Contractors and Professionals 
Balance with statutory authorities 
Unbilled revenue 
Other Advances 

- Others. 
- Prepaid Expense 

?.Inventories 
Inventories (lower of cost or net realisable value) 
-Stock of material at site 
-Incomplete projects (Refer footnote) 

Total 

Total 

Total 

As at 

3151 March, 2019 
~ 

5,047,244 

5,047,244 

26,990,194 
26,990,194 

24,282,846 
2,938,210 
4,365,186 

62,777,035 
37,866 

94,401,143 

817,495 
997,409,203 

998,226,698 

As at 

31'1 March, 2018 
~ 

2,508,461 

2,508,461 

26,990,194 
26,990,194 

10,227,855 
3,170,739 
3,666,501 

23,711,199 

62,891,722 
201,010 

103,869,027 

4,310,145 
1,064,208,902 

1,068,519,04 7 

Footnote: During the financial year incomplete projects including of INR 18,31,43,717/- Work In Progress (WIP) 
relating to six projects i.e. (1. Kamaraj Nagar CHS Limited., 2. Jai Mata Di CHS Limited., 3. Shiv Kripa 1 Anand Aman CHS 
Limited., 4. Ambedkar Nagar CHS Limited, 5. Nirmal Nagar CHS Limited, 6. Om Shivaji SRA CHS.) 

8 . Trade Receivables 
Current 
Trade Receivables -Others 

9. Cash and cash equivalents 
Balances with banks: 
- in current accounts 
- in escrow accounts 
Cash on hand 

10. Other bank balances 

Total 

Total 

Deposits with maturity of more than three months but Jess than 12 
months(Refer footnote) 

Total 
Footnotes: 

143,378,584 
143,378,584 

102,895,909 
2,809,706 

653,425 
106,359,040 

846,469 
846,469 

110,279,865 
110,279,865 

8,914,650 
2,509,706 

673,045 
12,097,401 

640,000 
640,000 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

11. Other financial assets 
Current 

Security deposits 
Advances recoverable from others 

Reimbursement 
Related parties 
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 

12. Equity Share Capital 
Authorised Share Capital: 

Total 

5,00,000 (As at 31st March, 2018: 5,00,000;) Equity Shares of~ 101- each fully paid up 

Issued and subscribed capital comprises: 
10,000 (As at 31st March, 2018: 10,000) Equity Shares of ~ 101- each fully paid up 

Footnotes: 
(i) Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning 
and at the end of the year. 

Balance at 1st April, 2017 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less: Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2018 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2019 

(ii) Details of shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares 

31st March, 2019 

Fully paid equity shares 
Hubtown Limited 
Maya Vaidya I Hubtown Limited 
D.V Prabhu I Hubtown Limited 
Kamal Matalia I Hubtown Limited 
Nancy Pereira I Hubtown Limited 
A nil Ahluwalia I Hubtown Limited 
Chetan Mody I Hubtown Limited 
Total 

(iii) Terms I rights attached to Equity Shares: 

No of shares 
held 

9,994 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 

10,000 

%holding 

99.94% 
0.01% 
0.01% 
0.01% 
0.01% 
0.01% 
0.01% 

100.00% 

As at As at 
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

~ ~ 

185,500 185,500 
16,191,118 16,478,030 

499,530 499,530 
36,325 192,420 

16,912,473 17,355,479 

5,000,000 5,000,000 

100,000 100,000 

Number of Share Capital 
shares ~ 

10,000 100,000 

10,000 100,000 

10,000 100,000 

31st March, 2018 
No of shares held %holding 

9,994 99.94% 
1 0.01% 
1 0.01% 
1 0.01% 
1 0.01% 
1 0.01% 
1 0.01% 

10,000 100.00% 

The company has a single class of equity shares having a face value of ( 101- per share. Each holder of equity share is 
entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive 
remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the 
number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

13. Other Equity 
Retained Earnings 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
On account of adoption of lnd AS 115 
Profit attributable to the owners of the company 
Balance at the end of the year 

14. Non-current borrowings 
Secured Debentures 

300 (As at 31st March, 2017: 300) 0% Redeemable non-convertible 
debentures of the face value of ~ 10,00,000 each 

Total 

Footnote: 

Year ended 
31st Mar ch, 2019 

~ 

(143,805,816) 
62,583,066 

(135,371,414) 
(216,594,164) 

150,428,966 
150,428,966 

Year ended 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

(138,652,597) 

(5,153,219) 
(143,805,816) 

312,408,138 
312,408,138 

i. The Debentures shall be redeemed at a premimum such that the Debenture Holders earn an IRR of 22% on 
Subscription Amount 

ii. If Issuer commits a default in payment of Redemption Amount or Amounts Due or in redemption of Debenture 
(including Target Return thereupon) for two consecutive months, then the Debenture Holder shall have the right to 
exchange/convert (the "Conversion Option"), as its option, the whole or part of the defaulted amount of the 
outstanding Debentures into 100% of the equity shares of the Issuer. 

iii. The debentures are secured by: 
a) Personal gurantee of the promoters of Hubtown Limited. 
b) Unconditional and irrevocable Corporate Guarantee ofHubtown Limited. 
c) Pledge of unencumbered equity shares valued at~ 50 Million ofHubtown Limited 

iv. No Interest charged on debenture during the Financial Year and Previous Year. 

15. Other financial liabilities 
Non-current 

Retention money payable 

Current 
-From related parties (Refer Footnote) 
- From others 
Other payables 

Footnote: 

Total 

Total 

12,004,233 
12,004,233 

803,893,061 
157,242,208 

85,757,039 
1,046,892,308 

6,599,966 
6,599,966 

719,655,057 
69,289,071 
87,538,487 

876,482,615 

The Company has received interest free Advances from it's Parent Company, considering the nature of business in which the 
Company operate, the amounts so received are considered to be repayable on call I demand as the repayment period of such 
amounts so received is not measureable precisely. 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

16. Current borrowings 
- From Companies 

Footnotes: 
1) Unsecured loans from Companies no interest rates charged. 
2) Borrowing relating to repayable on demand. 

17. Trade payables 
Trade Payables (Refer Footnote) 

- Others 

Footnote: 

Total 

Total 

As at 
31" March, 2019 

f 
6,993,319 

6,993,319 

187,723,391 
187,723,391 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

f 
6,993,319 

6,993,319 

215,162,766 
215,162,766 

As per information available with the Company regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the Micro Small 
Medium Enterprises Development. Act 2006 (MSMED Act), none of the suppliers of the Company are registered under MSMED Act, and 
the same has been relied upon by the auditors. 

18. Other current liabilities 
Current 

Advance from customers 
Statutory dues 

19. Revenue from operations 
Sale from operations : 

Revenue from Sale of Properties/rights 
Revenue from sale of Trading Materials 

Other operating revenue: 
Liabilities written back to the extent no longer required. 

20. Other income 
Interest Income: 
Bank fixed deposits 
Income Tax Refund 
Others 
Dividend received 
Gain on sale of current investments 
Gain on foreign currency fluctuation (Net) 
Miscellaneous income 

21. Costs Of Construction I Development 
Construction costs incurred during the year: 
Land I rights acquired 
Material and labour costs 
Approval and consultation expenses 
Other direct development expenses 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

199,436,394 
5,301,565 

204,737,959 

284,682,158 
5,232,158 

72 
289,914,388 

55,971 
4,750 

2,026,460 

(25) 
4,258,092 

6,345,248 

94,663,258 
16,122,430 
21,342,192 

132,127,880 

66,826,257 
1,725,066 

68,551,323 

91,412,181 
1,852,726 

12,705 238 
105,970,146 

57,489 

474,398 
59,446 

163,723 

31175!986 
3,931,042 

205,110,617 
23,419,383 
24,385,331 
22,944!818 

275,860,149 



CJTYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL SfATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Year Ended Year Ended 
31st March, 2019 31•-t March, 2018 

~ ~ 
22. Changes In Inventories Oflncomplete Projects, Finished 

Properties And FSI 
Opening Inventory : 

Incomplete projects 1,064,208,902 859,553,645 
1,064,208,902 859,553,645 

Add I (Less): 
WIP relating to other 6 Projects (183,143,717) 
On account of adoption of lnd AS 115 193,661,090 

1,074,726,275 859,553,645 

Closing Inventory: 
Incomplete projects 814,265,486 1,064,208,902 

814,265,486 1,064,208,902 
Total 260,460,788 {204,655,257) 

23. Employee Benefits Expense 
Salaries, bonus, etc. 10,950,415 10,500,486 
Contribution to provident and other funds 226,945 378,565 
Staff welfare expenses 29,124 6,562 
Other fund expenses 19,765 20,926 

Total 11,226,249 10,906,539 

24. Finance Costs 
Interest costs:-

Other interest expense 4,235,549 
Delayed/penal interest on loans and statutory dues 312,822 3,411,475 

Total 312,822 7,647,024 

25. Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 108,670 119,531 

Total depreciation and ammortisation expense 108,670 119,531 

26. Other Expenses 
Insurance 214,801 370,634 
Rent 900,000 
Advertisement expenses 6,828,412 
Advances and other debit balances written off 367,785 
Bad Debts 544,500 
Brokerage 13,827,243 1,425,068 
Repairs and society maintenance charges 453,358 642,855 
Legal and professional fees 1,128,310 2,022,386 
Compensation on cancellation of flats 4,794,408 
Other expenses (Refer Footnote) 6,211,901 6,145,548 

Total 22,747,898 23,129,311 
Footnote: 

Auditors, Remuneration: 
Audit fees 50,000 60,000 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVA T£ LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

27. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) 
Basic Earning Per Share and Diluted 

(i) Basic and Diluted EPS 

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of 
basic and diluted earnings per share are as follows: 

Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company 
Earnings used in the calculation of basic earnings per share 

(ii) Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic and diluted 
earnings per share 

28. Financial Risk Management Objectives 

Year Ended 

31st March, 2019 
~ 

(13,537) 

(135,371,414) 
(135,371,414) 

10,000 

Year Ended 

31st March, 2018 
~ 

(515) 

(5,153,219) 
(5,153,219) 

10,000 

The company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company's management oversees the management of these 
risks. The company's board of directors review and agrees policies for managing each of these risks summarized below: 

1) Market Risk 
a) Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. The company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to company's long term debt 
obligations with floating interest rates. 

b) Foreign currency risk 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate on account of changes in foreign 
exchange rates. The company does not have any exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates from its operating activities 

There is no purchase of materials of imported materials hence foreign currency risk does not arise. 

c) Commodity price risk 
The Company is not affected by the price volatility of commodities 
The Company has awarded building construction contracts to its contractors on turnkey basis. 

2) Credit Ris k 
Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract leading to a 
financial loss. The company is not exposed to credit risk from its operating activities or trade receivables since the sale I lease 
buildings are yet to be constructed and there is no sale or leasing in relation to the same. 

Credit risk from balances with banks and inter corporate loans is managed by the company's treasury department in accordance with 
the company's policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved companies and within credit limits assigned to each 
company. The credit limits of parties to whom loans are granted are reviewed by board of Directors on an annual basis. The limits are 
set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty's potential failure to make 
repayments. 

3) Liquidity risk 
The company is in stage of construction of buildings. All allowable expenses are inventorised by as per the policy of the company. 
Liquidy risk is dependent on the market demand for completed flats. 
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CJTYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

a. LIST OF RELATED PARTIES: 

A. Names of related parties and description of relationship 

I. HOLDING COMPANY 
Hubtown Limited 

II. FELLOW SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 
Hubtown Bus Terminal (Mehasana) Private Limited 

Ill. Entitles With Joint Control Of, Or Significant Influence Over, the Entity 
Rubix Trading Private Limited 

V. JOINT VENTURES OF HOLDING COMPANY 
Shreenath Realtors 

Note:fil Related party relationships are as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors. 
(ii) Previous year's figures are given in brackets 

b Transactions with Related Parties· 
Sr. Particulars Key Managerial Holding Company 
No. Personnel 

1 Loans and advances received frecoveredfadjusted 
Hubtown Limited . 145,311,232 

(-) (517 300,000) 
2 Loans and Advances given/ repaid/adjusted 

Hubtown Limited 87,503,098 
(-) (242,490,152) 

3 On behalf payments made/ adjusted (Including 
reimbursement 

Shreenath Realtors - 251,125 
(-) (-) 

Hubtown Bus Terminal (Mehasana) Private Limited -
(-) (·) 

Heet Builders Private Limited -
. 

4 On behalf payments received/Adjusted 
Heet Builders Private Limited - -

(·) (·) 
Hubtown Limited -

(-) ( -) 

5 Project Purchased 
Shreenath Realtors - -

(-) (116830194) 
6 Contractor Payment 

Hubtown Limited 94,427,825 

Sr. 
Balance outstanding receivables: 

No. 
1 Joint Ventures of Holding Company 

Shreenath Realtors 
Hubtown Bus Terminal (Mehasana) Private Limited 

2 Balance outstanding payables: 

Associates of Holding Company 
Rubix Trading Private Limited 

Holding Company 
Hubtown Limited 

)oint Ventures ofHoldjng Company 
Shreenath Realtors 

Fellow Subsidiary )oint Ventures of 
Companies Holding Company 

(-) (74,033 746) 

-
(-) (-) 

-
(-) (112,500) 
-

(499,530) (·) 
72,795 

[·) 

-
(-) 
. 

(-) r-1 

- -
(-) r -1 

-

As at As at 

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

-
499,530 499,530 

69,289,071 69,289,071 

871,891,016 719,655,057 

116,579,744 116,830,194 

30. The accumulated losses of the Company have resulted in complete erosion of the net worth of the Company. The Company's management is, however, of 
the view that the said erosion is temporary in nature as the Company has made strategic investments in certain assets f projects, the proceeds of which 
would when fructified, would result in turnaround of the Company. The Company to that extent does not consider the erosion of the net worth as an 
impediment to its status as a going concern. 



CJ1YWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

A-~ at As at 
31st March 2019 31st March 201B ' 

31. Income Tax Matters for, Tax Cootln~ent Liability 
Finand al Balance disputed Balance disputed 

Statute and nature or dues Section Year Disputed Dues Amount Paid dues payable dues payable 
I nco me Tax, High Court (Preferred by Department) 143(3) 2009·10 15,313,250 15,313,250 15,313 250 
I nco me Tax, Commissioner or I nco me tax (Appeals) 2718 2010· 11 100,000 100,000 100,000 
Income Tax, Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) 143(3) 2012-13 18,216,090 750,860 17,465,230 

ToW 33,629,340 750,860 15,413,250 32,878,480 

Notes: 
There is no contingent liability towards Service Tax, MVAT /Sales Tax as on 31st March, 2019. 

32. In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, all items of Current Assets, Current Liabilities and Loans and Advances continues to have a realizable value of 
at least the amounts at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet 

33. Trade payable & other current liability are subject to confirmation, reconciliation and adjustment if any. 

34. Capital Management 
The primary objective of company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders 
value. The company's board of directors reviews the capital structure on an annual basis. 

The capital structure of the company consists of net debt (borrowings and offset by cash and bank balances) and total equity of the company. The borrowings consist of 
debentures issued, term loans from financial institutions and loans from companies. 

The gearing ratio at the reporting period was as follows: 

Unsecured Loan 
Interest accured 
Total Debt 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Net Debt(A) 

Equity Share Capital 
Other Equity 
Total Equity (B) 

Debt Equity Ratio A/B 

35. f air Value measurem ent of Finanda.J Instruments 

Fjnanda.! Assets 
Investments 
Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Bank balances other than (iii) above 
t.oans 
Other financial assets 
Total of Finan cia.! Assets 

Fjpapc!al L!ab!lities 
Borrowings 
Trade payables 
Other Financial liabilities 
Total of Financial Liabilities 

FVPL 

-

. 

-

-
-
. 
-

The a ccompanying notes are an integral part of Financial Sta tements. 

As per our report of even date 

FOR SANKET R. SHAH &ASSOCIATES 

PROPRIETOR 
Membership No. 152369 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 18th September, 2019 

31st March 2019 
FVOCI Amortised Cos t 

-
143,378,584 

- 106,359,040 
846,469 

-
16,912,473 

- 267,496 565 

157 422.285 
. 187,723,391 
- 1,058,896,S41 
- 1 ,404,042 2 16 

FVPL 

-

-

-
. 

-
-
-
-

31st March, 2019 
~ 
6,993,319 

6,993,319 
106,359,040 
(99,36 5,721) 

100,000 
(216,594,164) 

(2 16,494,164) 

46% 

31st March 2018 
FVOCJ 

-

-

-
-

-
-
-
-

31st March, 2018 
~ 
6,993,319 

6,993,319 
12,097.401 
(5,104,082) 

100,000 
(143,805,816) 

(143,705,816) 

4% 

Amortised Cost 

-
110,279,865 

12,097,401 
640,000 

-
17 355 479 

140,372,746 

319,401,457 
213,778,782 
856,266,928 

1,389 447 168 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 

Jr..THOD 
DIRECTOR 

DIN: 03140671 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO, 
THE MEMBERS OF, 
DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED 

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying lnd AS financial Statements of DEVUKRUPA BU1LD TECH 
LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019, and the 
Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and 
the statement of changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. (hereinafter referred to as "lnd AS financial 
statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Ind AS financial Statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India including the lnd AS, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2019, 
~md its Jos.s (fjn~n~ifll p~rformfln~e incJyqjpg ot.b~r ~ompre.bem~iYe Jn~ome), its ~~s.b tlow.s !md the 
changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Companies act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued 
by I CAl, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the act") with respect to the preparation of these lnd AS Financial Statements 
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other 
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) 
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 

~ ro~Q~ 
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preparation and presentation of the lnd As financial statements that give a true and fair view and are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of 
Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the INDAS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs witt always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit ln accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143 (3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial 
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as 
a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 



Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
financial statements may be influenced. 

We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in 

(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and 

(ii} to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. 

We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I. As required by 'the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016', issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (hereinafter referred 
to as the "Order"), and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as 
we considered appropriate and according to the infowation C\nd. explanations given to us, we 
give in the Annexure A statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

II. As required by Section143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and be)jef were necessary for the pu.rpose:; of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and statement 
of changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 
2019 ~aken on record by the Board of Directors. none of the directors is disqualified as on 
31st March, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 



(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
"Annexure B". 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company does not have any material pending litigations which would impact its 
financial position. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

FORM. K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
FIRM REGISTRATION No.: 103256W 

/ 
MUKESH K. GOHEL 
PROPRIETOR 
Membership No. 038823 
Place : Mumbai 
Date: 26/05/2019 



"ANNEXURE-A" REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH I OF OUR REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND 
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS OUR AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2019 OF DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH 
LIMITED 

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and 
explanations given to us, we state that: -

(i) a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of its quantitative 

(ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

(v) 

(vi) 

(viii) 

(ix) 

(x) 

(xi) 

(xii) 

details and situation of fixed assets; 

b) The company has physically verified its fixed assets at reasonable interval and no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification; 

c) Accord.ing to. the information. and. explanations. giv:en to us and on the basis. of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the company does not have any immovable 
property. 

The company does not have any Inventories during the year and as at the balance sheet date. 

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not granted any secured or unsecured loans to Companies, firms or other parties covered 
in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013; 

As per the information received there are no loan, investment, guarantees and security to director 
by the company. 

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not accepted deposits as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India under the 
provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules 
framed there under. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company 
has not crossed the threshold limit as prescribed by the Central government under sub­
section (1) of section 148 of tfle Act for maintenance of cost records 
and hence such the provision for maintenance of records are not applicable to the company; 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions or banks. The 
Company did not have any loans or boFmwing from any Government or dues to debenture 
holder. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of 
the records of the Company, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public 
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and has not obtained any term 
loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(Jx) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of the 
material fraud on or by the Company, has been noticed or reported by the Company during 
the year, nor have we been informed any such case by the Company; 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no managerial 
remuneration has been paid or provided by the Company. 



paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of 
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details of such related party 
transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by 
Accounting Standard (AS) 18, Related Party Disclosures prescribed under Section 133 of the 
Act, read with the relevant rules. 

(xiv) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of 
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with 
him/ her. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is 
not required to be registered under section 45 lA of the Reserve Bank of India Ac.t, 1934. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

FORM. K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNT ANTS 
FIRM REGISTRATION No.: 103256W 

MUKESH K. GOHEL 
PROPRIETOR 
Membership No. 038823 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : 26/05/2019 



"ANNEXURE-8" REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH II OF OUR REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL 
CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (i} OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT. 
2013 ("THE ACT") OUR AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL 
STATE.Mf:NTS FOR TJI¥ VEJ\Rf:NI>ED ;nst MA~(:H, ~019 O.f I>f:YI9l\JPA BUJ!.p Tf:(:H 1J.M!Tf:!> 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH 
LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting ('the Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India ('I CAl'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of 
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 
all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
exp_enditures oi the_ company are he.ing. made o.nly in. ae_cordan_e_e with authorizatio.ns_ o E manag_ement_ 
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 



detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the Ind AS financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due 
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
I CAl. 

FORM. K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNT ANTS 
FIRM REGISTRATION No.: 103256W 

MUKESH K. GOHEL 
PROPRIETOR 
Membership No. 038823 

Place : Mumbai 
Date: 26/05/2019 



• DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2019 

ASSETS 
Non-Current Assets 

Particulars 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 
(b) Current tax assets (Net) 
Tota l Non-Current assets 

Current assets 
(;1) financial asse ts 

(i) Trade receivables 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 
(iii) Other financial assets 

(b) Other current assets 
Total Current Assets 
Total assets 

EQUITY AND LIA131LITIES 
Equity 
(a) Equity share capita l 
(b) Other equity 
Tota l Equity 

Current Liabilities 
(a) financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 
(ii) Trade payables 
(iii) Other financial liabilities 

(b) Other current liabilities 
Total Curre nt Li abilities 

Tot<~ l Equity and Liabilities 

Note 
No. 

4 
5 

6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 

12 
13 
14-
15 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of Financial Statem ents. 

As per our report of even elate 

ForM. I<. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
FIRM REG. N0.:103256W 

MUI<ESH I< GOIIEL 
PROPRIETOR 
Membership No. 038823 

Mumba1 
Date: 26th May, 2019 

-

As at 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

39,546 
1,501,718 

1,541,264 

-
32S,573 

2,0>1·3,768 
-

2,369,311 
3,910,605 

500,000 
(89,596,175) 

(89,096,175) 

61,262,806 
28,030,2>1·6 

2,174,203 
1,539,525 

93 ,006,780 

3,910,605 

As at 
31st March, 20Hl 

~ 

>1·5,936 
1,501,718 

1,547,654 

1,296,8>1·5 
325,750 

2,068,769 
5,593 

3,696,957 
5,211·,611 

500,000 
(87,715,177) 

(87,215,177) 

61,319,1>1-0 
28,030,2·16 

1,578,600 
1,531,802 

92 ,459,788 

5,244,611 

Foe ond on behalf or the Bo~~~{IJj"or' 

KJ[~a;:/SIIAH 
- DHWCTOR 

0
~\\..D )"~C' DIN: 068>1-3982 

( §~ t~\ 'Ro ~ ()oSh~ "i ,0 IJ 

:'1~0 • ® RAJESH DOSHI 
... :---~..:....--.....-~ DIRECTOR 

DIN : 03626861 

Mumbai 
Date: 26th May, 2019 



DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Particulars 

INCOM E 

Other Income 

II EXPENSES 
f-inance Costs 
Depreciation 
Other Expenses 

Tota l Income 

Total Expenses 

Profit before exceptional items and Tax (I - II) 

Exceptiona l Items 

Profit I (Loss) before Tax 

Profit for th e Period from Continuing Operations 

Profit from Discontinued Operations before Tax 
Tax Expense of Discontinued Operations 
Profit from Discontinued Operations (after tax) 

Profit 1 (Loss) for the Period 

Earning per equity shar e of nominal va lue of 
~ 101- each (in Rupees) 

Basic and Diluted 

Note 

No. 

16 
17 
18 

19 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Finan cial Statements. 
As per our report of even date 

ForM. I<. GOHEL & ASSOCIA 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
f-IRM REG. N0.:103256W 

MUKESH K GOHEL 
PROPRIETOR 
Membership No. 038823 
Mumbai 
Date: 26th May, 2019 

Year Ended 

31st March, 2019 

~ 

673,421 
6,390 

1,201,187 
1,880,998 

(1,880,998) 

(1,880, 998) 

(1,880,998) 

(1,880,998) 

Year Ended 

31st March, 2018 

~ 

52,972 
7,422 

520,975 
581,369 

(581, 369) 

(581,369) 

(581,369) 

(581,369) 

ror and on behalf of the Board of Di rectors 

~kJl 
KUSHALSHAH 

DIRECTOR ~ 
DIN: 0684·3982 

Mu mbai 
Date: 26th May, 2019 



DEVI<RUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MAHCH, 2019 

Particulars 

Cash flows arising from operating activities 

Net profit before taxation as per statement of profit and loss 
Add I (Less) : 

Depreciation 

f- inance Cost 
Total 

Operating profit before worldng capital changes 

Add 1 (Less) : 

(Increase) I Decrease in trade receivables 

(Increase) I Decrease in trade and other receivables 

Increase I (Decrease) in other Current liabilities 
Total 

Net cash flow from operating activities 

Cash flows arising from investing activities 

Inflow I (Outflow) on account of: 

Interest income received 

Net cash flow from investing activities 

Cash flows arising from financing activities 

Inflow I (Outnow) on account of: 

Proceeds from short-ter m borrowi ngs 

f-inance costs paid 

Net cash flow from financing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equiva lents 

Add: Balance at the beginning of the year 

Cash a nd cash equivalents a t the end of the year 

Components of cash a nd cash equivalents (Refer note 7) 

Cash and cash equival ents: 

Cash on hand 

Balances with banks 

- On Current accounts 

31st March, 2019 

(1,880,998) 

6,39 0 

673,421 

679,811 

(1,201,187) 

1,296,81\.S 

30,594 

603,326 

1,930,765 

729,578 

325,750 

325,573 

325,573 
325,573 

31st March, 20Hl 

(581,369) 

7,422 

52,972 

60,394 

(520,975) 

2,896,511 

(1,878,769) 

(1,'1-94·,509) 

(476,764) 

(997,739) 

1,050,711 

(52,972) 

997,739 

325,750 

325,750 

325,750 
325,750 

The Cash Flow Statement has been prep11red unde r indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (lnd 1\S- 7) statement of 

cash nows. 

As per our report of even ela te 

ForM. K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

FIRM REG. N~3256W 

' MUI<ESH I{ GOHEL 
PROPRIETOR 

Mumbai 
Date: 26th May, 2019 

For and on be half of th c Bo"'d "7tfi!j ,., 
f!:i,~L" 

DIRECTOR ~ 
DIN: 0681\-3982 ''\' 

CRoW ~Sh.\ 

C9 RAJESH DOSH I 
DIRECTOR 

DIN : 03626861 

Mumbai 
Date: 26th Ma , 2019 



DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 (~) 

Reserves and Surplus 
Equity General reserve Retained Earnings Total 

Balance at April1, 2017 500,000 52,500,000 (139,633,808) (86,633,808) 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - (581,369) (581,369) 
Balance as at 31st March 2018 500,000 52,500,000 (140,215,177) (87,215,177) 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - (1,880,998) (1,880, 998) 
Balance as at 31st March 2019 500,000 52,500,000 (142,096,175) (89,096,175) 

As per our report of even date 
Fo' and on behalf of the "7~!"f~: 

ForM. K GOHEL & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS - DIRECTOR 
FIRM REG. N0.:103256W ~UU.~ DIN : 06843982 0 ' - I ~ ~~}~ ~ ~o d-OCS'-', <(:...\.. & Ass 
~v< o-<' oo 

0 / ~o -~ G . M UMBA I ~ 
MUKESH K GOHEL I ~ M No. ~ ) .. RAJESH DOSHI 
PROPRIETOR ~ 038823 .. - DIRECTOR .,. <.-

Membership No. 03882 9t,, ~,q,;:,· DIN: 03626861 
8r&d AcfiJS. 

+ 
Mumbai Mumbai 
Date: 26th May, 2019 

-
Date: 26th May, 2019 



DF.VI<RUPA BUILD TECII LIMITED 

NOTES TO TilE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR Til F. YEAR ENDED 31ST, MARCil 2019 

COMPANY OVERVIEW AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1 COMPANY OVERVIEW 
Devl<rupa Build Tech Public Limited is a Limited Company domiciled in India, incorporated under the Companies Act, 
1956. The company is engaged in real estate business of construclion and development of Residential and Commercial 
Premises and Other Real Estate Projects including consu ltancy and sole selling of real estate. 

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 26th May 2019. 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accoun ting Standards (lndAS) under the historical 
cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financia l instruments which are measured at fair va lues, the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') (to the extent notified). The lnd AS arc prescribed under Section 133 of 
the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. 

The Company has adopted all the lndAS standards and the adoplion was carried out in accordance with lndAS 101 
First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was ca rried out from Indian Accounting Pri nciples 
generally accepted in India as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which was the previous GAAP. Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition has 
been su mmarized in note 28. 

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially 
adopted or a revision to an existing accounling standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. 

Current versus non-current classi fi ca tion 
The Company presents asse ts and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non current classific<Jtion. An 
asset is classified as current when it is: 

* Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal opera ling cycle 
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
• Expected to be rea lised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
* Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at lenst twelve 

months after the reporti ng period 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liabili ty is classified as current when: 
• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 
* It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
* It is clue to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after Lhe reporti ng 

period 
All other liabilities arc classified as non-current 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets fo r processing and the ir realisation in cash and 
cash equivalents. Deferred Lax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabil ities. 

3.1 REVENUE RECOGNITION 

A. Revenue from Construction Activity 

a. The company has adopted the princip les of revenue recognition on the basis of" Guidance note on Accounting for 
Rea l Estate Transactions" issued by the Institu te of Chartered Accountants of India, for the entities to whom lndAS 
is applicable. 

b. 

c. Losses expected to be incur 
the period in which the loss 



DEVKRUPi\ BUILD TECH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCii\L STi\TEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST, Mi\RCI-1 2019 

B. Interest and Dividend Income 

Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis ta king into account the amount outstanding and the rate 
applicable. 

C. Others 
Rev~nues I Income and Costs/ Expcnd;I.Ure are generally acco•.t nted on accrual, as they are earned c r incurred. 

3.2 PROPERTY PLANT i\ND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECJi\TION /AMORTISATION 

A. Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquis ition or cons~ruction less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losS(;S, if any. 

B. Depreciation is provided on the straight line mrthod on the basis of estimated useful life of the asset in the manner 
specifi ed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions to assets or on sale/disposal of 
assets is ca lculated pro-rata from ~he month of such ::tddition, or up to the month of such sale/disposa l, as the case 
maybe. 

Asset Category 
Plant and Mach:nery 

Office Equipment 

Estimated useful life (in Years) 
15 
5 

3.3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

3.3.1 Initia l recognition 

The Company recognizes finanr.ial ass~ts and financial liabilities when it becomes a par ty to the contr?c~ual provisions 
of the instrument. All financial assets ;Jnd liabilities are recognized at fa ir value on initial recognition except for trade 
receivables whicn arc initi ally r-:-~eils.Jrcd at transaction price. Tran~action costs that arc d irectly attributable to t he 
acquisition or issue of finarv:ial assets and financial liabilities, that ilre not at fai r villue through profit or loss, are addec! 
to the la ir value on initial recognition. Regu lar way purchase and sale of financia l assets are accounted for at trade date. 

3.3.2 Subsequent m easurem ent 

a. Non-derivative financial instrument·s 

(I) Financial assets carried a t amortised cost 
A financi;d asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a busi,less model whose objective is to 
hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal a mount outstanding. 

(ii) Fin,mcial assets at fai:- value through o ther comprehensive inco me 

A financiill asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensivl' income if it is hcl:l with in a 
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and 
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal :1mount outstanding. Further, in cases where the Company has made an 
irrevocab le election based on its business model, for its investments which are classified as equ ity inscruments, the 
>ubsequ~nt changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income. 

(iii) Financia l assets at fair value through profit or loss 
A financial asset which is net classified in any ot the above categories are subsequently fair valued throu~h pro'1t or 
loss. 

(iv) Financial lia bili ties 
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except fo r 
contingent consideration recognized in a business combination which is subsequently measured at fai r value through 
profit and loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying 
amounts approximate fair va lue due to the short maturit-y of these instruments. 

(v) Fair value o f fina ncial instrume nts 

3.3 .3 

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that 
are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair va lue 
include discounted cash fl ow ann lysis, available quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fa ir 
value result in general approximation of value, and such value may never actua lly be realized. 



DEVJ<RUPJ\ BUILD TECH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOH T ilE YEAR ENDED 31ST, MARCH 2019 

3.3.4 Impairment 

a. f- inancial assets 
The Company recognizes loss allowances us ing the expected credit loss (ECL) model fo r the financial assets which arc 
nut bir valued through proflt or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivabl e<; with no significant fina ncing component is 
measurer! at an amount equal to lt fe time ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an 
amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless t here has been a significant increase in cretlit r isk from initial recognition in 
which case those are meas ured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is requ iretl to 
adjus t tl,e loss allowance at th~ repor~ing date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognized ilS an 
impairment ~;nin or loss in the statement of profit or loss. 

b. Non-financial assets 
Property, plant and eGuipment 
Property, plant and equipm<:!nt are evaluated for recoverability whenever eveuts or cllanges in circumstances 
indicatP. that their carr~·ing amount:; may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the 
recoverable amouut (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is tletermined on an 
individua l a~set basis unless thr. as~et does not generate cash nows that are largely independent of those frono 
other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amou.1t is determined forth(: CGU to who ch the asset belongs. 

3.4 TAXATION 

i. Curre nt Tax 
The tax currently payable is based on tilxable profit for the year. Taxable profit dil"fers from 'profit before tax' as 
reported in t he financial statemen t of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that arc taxable or 
cletluctible in other years and il'!ms th<lt are never taxable or deductible. The Company's current tax is calculated 
using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

lu case t he Company is liable ~o pay income tax ufs llSJB of Income Tax Act, 1961 (i.e. MAT), the amount of tax 
paid in excr.ss of normal income tax is recognized as an asset (MAT Credit entitlement) only if there is convincing 
evidence fClr realiza~ion of s11ch asset during the specified period. MAT credit entitlement is oevoewed at each 
Balance Sheet date. 

ii. Deferred Tax 
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets a nd liabilitoes in the 
financia l statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deierred tax 
liabilities arr. gr.nerally recogniud fo r all taxable temporary d iffe rences. DeferrP.d tOJx ilssets are generally 
recogni led for all dctluctible trmpor'ary differences t.o t he extent t h<1t it i~ probable that taxilble profits will be 
~vilililbl e against which those cieductib!e te mporary differences can be utilized. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax ilsset is reviewed at the end of each rPpor ting period and retluced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sumcient t<'xable profits will be availabiP. to illlow OJii .:r part of the asset tC' 
be recovered. 

Deferred tax iiabilities and assets are measured at t he tax rates that are expected Lo apply in the period in which 
the liability is settled or the assc~ realized, based on tax rates (and tax lilws) that have been enacted or 
subs~antively enacted by the end of the reporti ng period. 

The measurement of deferred tnx liab ilities and assets renects the tax consequenleS that would follow from the 
manner in which the Coll'p:my expects, at the end of t he repor ting period, to recover or settle the carryin5 amount 
of its assets and liabilities. 

iii. Curre nt and deferred tax for the year 
Currer.t and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in 
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized 
in other comprehensive income o r directly in equity respectively. 

3.5 BORROWING COSTS 

Interests and other borrowing costs calculated as per effective interest rate attributable to quali fying assets are 
allocated as part of the cost of construction 1 development of such assets. Such allocation is suspended during extended 
periods in which active development is interrupted and, no costs are allocated once all such dctivities are substantially 
complete. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on 

~ ; .o c , ao~h' 
-~ ~~('] . 

·-. 



DEVI<RUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST, MARCH 2019 
3.6 CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

Cash flows are reported using the Indirect method, whereby profit for t he period is adjusted for the effects of 
transactions of a non-cash natu re, any deferra ls or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and 
item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing 
and financing activities of the company are segregated. 

3.7 SEGMENT REPORTING 
The Company is engaged in the business of Real Estate Development, w hich as per lnd AS- 108 'Operating Segments' is 
conside red to be the only reportable business segment. The Company is also operating within the same geographical 
segment. Hence, disclosures under lnd AS- 108 are not applicable. 

3.8 PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable 
estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at t he reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting 
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present va lues, where the 
time value of money is material. 

Contingent liability is disclosed for: 
* Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company 

or 
* Present obligations arismg from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required 

to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. 

3 .9 USE OF ESTIMATES 
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with lndAS requires management to ma!<e estimates, 
judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies 
and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Applicat ion of accounting 
policies that require critical accou nting est.imates involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of 
assumptions in t hese financial statements have been disclosed in note 3.9.1. Accounting estimates cou ld change from 
period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as 
management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are 
reflected in the financial statements in the per iod in which changes are made and, if material, t heir effects arc disclosed 
in the notes to the financial statements. 

3.9.1 Critical accounting judgem e nts and estimates 

a. Revenue recognition 
The Company uses the percentage-of-completion method in accounting for its revenue. Costs of the project are 
based on the management's estimate of the cost to be incurred up to the completion of the projects and include 
cost of land, Floor Space Index (FSI), materials, services and other expenses attributable to the p rojects. Estimates 
of project income, as well as project costs, are reviewed periodically. Costs expended have been used to measure 
progress towards completion of work. Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are 
recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on the expected contract estimates at the 
reporting date. 

h. Property, plant a nd equipment 
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation. The charge in respect of periodic dep reciation ts derived after 
determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the expected residual va lue at the end of its life. The 
useful lives and residual va lues of Company's assets are determined by management at the time the asset is 
acqu ired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end. The lives are based on hi~torical 
experience with s imilar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their li fe, such as changes 
in technology. 

c. Fair value meas urem ents and valuation processes 
Some of t he company's assets are measured at fair val ue for financial reporting pu rposes. In estimating the fai r 
value of an asset or liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 
inputs are not available, the Company engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The Company 
works closely with the qualified exte rnal valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniq~•r. ~~ iA~to 

the model. o.--- G (i.i!Jri'l 0,1 

~""(~) .... <:!.~~ q< d ~~ ·y:/f;"n, \ 
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DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST, MARCH 2019 
4. Property, plant aud equipment 

Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at :llst March, 2017 
Additions 
Disposals 
Balance at 31st March, 2018 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

Balance at 31st March, 2017 
Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Depreciation expense 
Balance at 31st March, 2018 

Carrying amoun!: as at 31st March 2018 

Cost or deemed cos t 

B<llance at 31st March, 2013 
Additions 
Disposals 
Balance at 31st !\larch, 2G19 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

Balance at 31st March, 2018 
Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Depreciation expense 
Balance at 31st March, 2019 

Carrying amount as at 31st March 2019 

Pump Office Equipment 

186,810 39,509 

186,810 39,509 

133,452 39,509 

7,422 \ 
140,874 39,509 

45,936 

Pump Office Equipment 

186,810 39,S09 

186,810 39,509 

140,874 39,509 

6,390 
147,264 39,509 

39,546 

Total 

226,319 

226,319 

172,961 ( 
. 

7,422 ( 
180,383 ( 

45,936 

Total 

226,319 

226,319 

1fl0,383 

6,390 
186,773 r 

( 



DEVI<RUPA BlliLD TEf:H LIMITED -
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STAT EMENTS FOR THE YF.AR ENDED 31ST, MARCH 2019 

5. Current Tax assets and lia bilitie 
Advance Tax paid 
Less: Provision for Tax 

Footnotes: 

Incom e Tax expense 
(a) Income Tax expense 

Current Tax 

s 

· for the year Current Tax on taxable income 
Tax in respect of earlier years 

Current tax expense 

Deferred tax 
Decrease I (ir~crease) in defer 

(Decrease) I increase in deferr 
Deferred tax charge I (credit) 

Income tax expense 

red tax a:;sets 
ed tax liabilities 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

1,501,718 
-

Total 1,501,718 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

-
-

-

-
-

-

-

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense 
Since the taxable incorre is neg 

and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate 
ative, there is no current tax payable; hence reconciliation 

has not been provided. 

6. Trade Receivables 
<.urrent 

ix Outstanding for a period exceeding s 
months from the date they are due ~ or 
payment 

7. Cash and cash equivaleut~ 
Balances with banks: 
-i n current accounts 

0. Other financial assets 
Current 
Security deposits 
Other Advances and Receivables 
Advances recoverable from others 

- Others 

9. Other assets 
Current 
Balance with Statutory Authorit ies ( Cenvat credit) 

\. & -".s-

-

Total -

325,573 
Total 325,573 

165,300 

1,878,468 
Total 2,043,768 

-
Total -

-
~\·,\JILo 

~ )' 

As at 
31st March, 20~ 8 

~ 

( 1,501,718 ~ -
1,501,718 

As at 
31st March , 2018 

-
-
-

-
-
-

-

. 1,29(i,845 

1,296,845 

325,750 l 
325,750 

.., 

190,301 

1,878,468 
( 2,068,769 --
\ 

5,593 
5,593 

(3) v 1 j)1j·f 
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DEVKRUPA RUII.D TECH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST, MARCH 2019 

10. Equity share capital 
Authorised Share Capital: 

50,000 (PY: 50,000) Equity Shares of ~ 101- each 

Issued and subscribed capital comprises: 

50,000 (PY: 50,000) Equil:'; Shares or· ~ 101- each fu lly pnid up 

Footnotes: 
(i) Reconciliation orthe number uf Equity shar~s out:;tanding a t the 
beginniPg and at the end of the year. 

Balance at 1st April , 2017 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back duri 1lg the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2018 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2019 

(ii) Details of shares held by each shareholder:; holding more than 5% shares 

31st March, 2019 

As at As at 

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

~ ~ 

500,000 500,000 ( 

500,000 ~ I soo.ooo 
500,000 500,000 

Number ot shares Share Capital 
~ 

\. 
50,000 \ 500,00 0 

( 50,000 ( 500,000 

50,000 500.000 

31st March, 2018 

No of shares %holding No of shares held % holding 
Fully paid equity shares 
Hubtown Limited with its beneficiary owners ( 50,000 100% ( 50,000 100% 

Totai ____ ~S~0~,0~0~0~----~1~0~0°~~~--------5~0~,0~0~0~--------~1~0~0~~~o 

(iii) Terms I rights a .:tar.hed to Eqnity Shares : 
The company has a single class of equity shares having a face value of ~ 101- per shnre. Each holder of equity 
share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of company, the holders of equity shares will be 
entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution 
will be in proportiOn to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

11. Other Equity 
General reserve 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Add I (Less) : 
Amount transferred from Retained Earnings 
Balance at the end of the year 

As <~t 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

52,500,000 

52,500,000 

(140,215,177) 
(1,880, 998) 

(142,096,175) 

( (89,596,175) 

As at 
31 March, 2018 

~ 

52,500,000 

52,500,000 

(139,633,808) 
(581,369) 

(140,215,177) 

(87,715,177)( 



DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST, MARCH 2019 

12. Borrowings 
Current 

Loans repayable on demand (Unsecured): 
From Related Party(Refer footnote i) 
From Companies(Refer footnote ii) 

Footnote: 

TOTAL 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

58,433,481 
2,829,325 

61,262,806( 

As at 
31st March, 2013 

~ 

59,730,326 
1,588,814 

61,319,140 ( 

(i) The Company has received interest free Loan from it's Parent Company, considering the nature of business in which 
the Company operate, the amounts so received arc considered to be repayable on call I demand as the repayment 
period of such amounts so received is not measurable precisely. 

(ii) Loan from other Company is received at an interest rate of C.Y NIL and P.Y NIL. 

13. Trade payables 
Trade Payables(Refer Footnote) 28,030,246 28,030,246 

TOTAL 28,030,246 28,030,246 
Footnote: 
As per information a\iailable with the Company regarding dues to Micro, S111all and Medium Enterprises as defined under 
the Micro Small Medium Enterprises Development, Act 2006 (MSMED Act), none of the suppliers of the Company are 
registered under MSMED Act, and the same has been relied upon by the auditors. 

14. Other financial lia bilities 
Current 
Other payables 

15. Other current liabilities 
Current 
Other payables : 
- Statutory dues 

TOTAL 

TOTAL 

2,174,203 1,578,600 
2,174,203 1,578,600 

1,539,525 1,531,802 
1,539,525 1,531,802 



UEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCI/\L STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST, MARCH 2019 

1 6 . Finance Co~t:; 

Delayed/penal in~\~ rest on loans and stattJ tory dues 

17. De precia tion 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipm<::nt 

18. Other Expenses 
Audito rs Remuneration 
Legal and professional fees 
Other expenses 

19. EAnNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) 
B::~sic and Diluted Earning Per Share 

(i) Bas>c a nd Diluted EPS 

Total 

Tota l 

Total 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2 019 

~ 

673,421 ( 
673,421 

6,390 
6,390 

18,150 
93,455 

1,089,582 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2010 

~ 

52,972 
52,972 

7,422 
7,422 

17,700 
18,290 

484·,985 
1,201,187 I 520,975 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

(37.62) 

Year Ended 
31st March, 201ll 

~ 

(11.63) 

The earnings a nc.l weighted average nnmue:· of equity shares used in the calculation of basic and d iluted earnings per 
share are as f:llluws: 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2 019 

Year Ende d 
31st Ma rch, 2013 

{ 

( 

Profit for the year attributable to th ~ owners of the Company 
Earnings used in the r.alculation ofbasit: and dilute d 
earnings per share 

(1,880,998) ( (581.369) ( 

(ii)Weighted alferage number of equity shares for the purposes of basic 
earnings per share 

' ......_ I 

~ 

_ __,(,.:;o1,:...::.8..::...80...:..,9.:_9;_;8:..L.) ------'(....::.5.;;;..;:;81,3691_ 

As at As at 
3 1st March, 2019 31 March, 201 8 

50,000 ( 



DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH l.IMITED 

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

A. List Of Related Parti es: 
a. Hold ing Company 

Hubtown Limited 

b. Fellow Subsidiaries wit h whom t ra nsaction has ta l<en place 
Urvi 13uild Tech Limited 

c. joint Ve n tures of Holding Compaay 
1\kr:.~ti jay Developers 

d. Other s ignifican t infuences with whom transaction taken place 
City Gold Managernc.nt Services Pvt Ltd 

Related party rela~:onsh!p are identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors. 

B. Transa::tion w ith Rela ted Partie~-

Sr. No. Partict:lars 

d I recovered I Ad justed 1 Loans receive 
llubtown Limit ed 

I given I Adjuste d 2 Loa as repa id 
Urvi Build Ted 1 Limited 

FELLOW 
HOLDING COMPANY 

SUBSIDIARY 

- -
[52,972) -

- 1,:!96,845 

- (-) 
3 Rcimburesem 

City Gold Mana 
c u t of Expe nses _L 
gcment Services Pvt Ltd 

------------
- -
- -

Footnote: 
Pr<.:vious Year li!Jures are given in hracl<ets. 

---· 
Bala nce outs t;mdin g pr.ynbles I r rcl'ivables: 

Natur e o f Tra nsactions 
Amount (~) 

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

1 Hubtown Li mited 56,735,898 56,735,898 

2 Urvi Build T ech Limited 1,697,583 2,994,428 

3 Akruti jay D evelopers 26,191,710 26,191,710 

4 City Gold M ~nagement Servrces Pvt Ltd 44,155 10,448 

21. FINANCIAL RISI{ MA NAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 

~ 

OTHER 
SIGNIFICANT 
INFLUENCES 

-
-

--
I 33,707 

I (9,0~ 

The company is exposed to market r isk, creclit risk and liquidity r isk. The company's management oversees the management of these 
risks. The company's baard of directors review and agrees policies for managing each of these risks summarized below: 

1) Market Rislt 
Interest rate ris k 

Company has received intrest free loan and it receives interest free funds for its operatmg cash flow from its holding company as and 
when required (Refer note 12), hence the Company is not exposed to interest risk. 

2 ) Credit Ris k 
The company is not exposed to credit r isk from its operating activities. Credit risk from balances with banks and inter corporate loans 
is managed by the company's treasury department in accordance with the company's policy. 

3) Liquidi ty r islt 

The companies cashflow requ irement are met by funds reccrved from its holding compan . .. 



DEVKRUPA nuii:~o-T_E_C_H_I_.I_r·1-IT_E_D __ ----·--------------------------, 

--------------------------------------------------------~ 
NOTES TO THE r-INANC!AL STATE;\fntHS FCm THE YE/\R ENDED 31ST, MARCil 2019 

22.CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

The Primary Objective of Company's capital r.1anagen~cnt is to ensure that it maintains strong cavital ratios in order to 
support its business and ll"<lXimise shareholder~ va!ue. The company's board of directors reviews the t.:<lpi tal structure on an 
annual basis. 

The capital structure of the company consists of net debt ( Borrowings and offset by cash and bank balances) and total equity 
of the company. Then• arc no borrowin3s from banks/fin:.Jncial institutions or corporates other than the equity shareholders 
and thei r groL:p companies, the company has received interest free loan from its holding company. 

23.CONTINGENT LIABILITY 

~--------------------------------·--------------------------r---------------r----------------

Particular 
As At As At 

31st l\1arch,2019 31st March,2018 
Claims against tht company ,not acknowledged as debts~~~ <tccount o_f_: ___ -------+--------
Income tax matters under appeals for : 

Income tax matters under appei'lls v1ith CIT for the lln-mcial year 2011-2012 

Note: 
Interest/Pe:1alty th e:t may accrue on origina! demm~ds nrc not ascertainab!e, at present. The company h;•s taker. necessary 
steps to protect its po~. ition with respect ~o the ;.;hove referred claims, which in its opinion, based on profcssion<~l/legal advice, 
are not sustainable. 

24. In the opinion of ~he bo<trd of direc~ors of the company, all items of Current Assets, Current Liabilities and Loans and 
Advances continues to have a realizable value of at least the amounts at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet. 

25. Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to make them comparable with cun cnl year 
figures. · 

~------------------------------------------------------------------------------------~ 



DEVKRUPA BUILD TECH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST, MARCH 2 019 
Note 2 6 : Fair Va lue m easurem e nt of Fina ncial Inst ruments 

(?f) 
31st March 2019 31st March 2018 

FVPL FVOCI Amortised Cost FVPL FVOCI Amortised Cost 
Financial Assets 
Trade receivables - - - - - 1,296,845 

Cash and cash equivalent - - 325,573 - - 325,750 
Other financial assets - - 2,043,768 - - 2,068,769 
Total of Financia l Assets 2,369,341 - 3,691,3 64 

Financial Lia bilities 

Borrowings - - 61,262,806 - - 61,319,140 
Trade payables - - 28,030,246 - - 28,030,246 
Other Financial liabilities - - 2,174,203 - - 1,578,600 . 
Total of Financial Liabilities 91,467,255 - - 90,927,986 

As per our report of even date 

ForM. K. GOHEL &ASSOCIATES 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
FIRM REG. N0.:103256W 

DI N : 06843982 A .. 
l 

MUKESH K GOHEL 9 
PROPRIETOR RAJESH DOSHI 

Membership No. 038823 DIRECTOR 

~~ 
DIN : 03626861 fJ-

Mumbai Mumbai 

Date: 26th May, 2019 Date: 26th May, 2019 
------ ---------
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

GANDHI MANSION, 3RD FLOOR, NEW SILK BAZAR, OPP KALBADEVI HEAD P. 0 ., 

MUMBAI - 400 002 * Tel.: 2205 5916 * E-mail: ca_lalitkothari @yahoo.co.in 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of M/s. Diviniti Projects Private Limited 

Report on the lnd AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying lnd AS financia l statements of M/s. Diviniti Projects Private Limited 
("the Company'') which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash 
flows for the year then ended and notes to the lnd AS financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as "lnd AS 
f inancia l statement"). 

In our opinion and t o the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid lnd AS f inancial statements give the information requ ired by the Act in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India 
including the lnd 'As, of the financial position of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and profit (including 
other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with t he Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 
the Auditor's Responsibilities for t he Audit of the lnd AS Financia l Statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India together with t he ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
the lnd AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
t hereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethica l responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 



Responsibility of Management for the lnd AS Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (/(the Act") with respect to the preparation of these lnd AS financial statements 

that give a true and fair view of the f inancial position, financial performance(including other 
comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) 
specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

This responsibi lity also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; se lection and application of appropriate implementation and 
maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the lnd AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the lnd AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements. 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the lnd AS financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materia l if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resu lt ing from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
invo lve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such contro ls. 

) . r~ 
. '\A\ J 



• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to 
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the f inancia l statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements oft he current period and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order''), issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give 

in the "Annexure A" statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the 

extent applicable. 

II. As required by Section 143{3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as 

it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the 

Cash Flow Statement and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in 

agreement with the books of account. 



{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid lnd AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2019 taken 

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2019 from 

being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure 

B11
; and 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information 

and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its 

financial statements, if any; 

ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 

were any material foreseeable losses; and 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company. 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO 

Firm Registration No. 105313W 

Chartered Accountants 

LALIT KOTHARI 

Proprietor 
Membership No.: 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 26th May, 2019 



ANNEXURE "A" REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIVINITI PROJECTS 
PRIVATE LIMITED ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st 
MARCH, 2019; 

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and 
explanations given to us, we state that: -

(i) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company does not have any fixed assets during the 
year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i) of the Order is not applicable. 

(ii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company does not have any inventory during the year. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, 
limited liability partnerships, or other parties covered in the register maintained under 
Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any 
guarantees or security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186. Therefore, the 
provisions of Clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year within the 
meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder to the 
extent notified. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

(vi) The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records 
under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company. 

(vii) a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in 
depositing, undisputed statutory dues, including income-tax and other material 
statutory dues, wherever applicable, with the appropriate authorities. 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examine'd by us, there were no disputed dues in respect of Income Tax as at 
the Balance Sheet date. 

(viii) On the basis of records examined by us and the information and explanation given to us, 
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution, bank or 
debenture holders. 

(ix) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term 
loans have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained. 

(x) Based on the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by 
the management, we report that no material fraud by the Company or on the Company by 
its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit. 



(xi) The Company has not paid I provided managerial remuneration during the year and 
hence, the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(xiii) The Company has not entered into any related party transactions as covered by the 
section 188 of the Act. The details of related party transaction have been disclosed in the 
financial statements as required under lND AS - 24 Related Party Disclosure specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
Further, the Company is not required to constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 
of the Act, and accordingly, to this extent, the provisions of Clause 3(xiii) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company. 

(xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment 1 private placement of shares or 
fully or partly convertible debenture during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 
by the management, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is 
not applicable. 

(xvi) The company is not required to be registered under section 45 lA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable. 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO 

Firm Registration No. 105313W 

Chartered Accountants 

LALIT KOTHARI 

Proprietor 
Membership No.: 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 26th May, 2019 



"ANNEXURE B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF DIVINITI PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DIVINITI PROJECTS 
PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company") as of 31st March, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind 
AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (ICAI) . These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, to 
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal 
Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, 
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risks. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that; 



(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and 

( 3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at 31st March 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company, considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 30917 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 26th May, 2019 



ro7viNITI PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

~-------------------~ 
I 
:BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3 1ST MARCH, 2019 

Particulars 

ASSETS 
Non-Current Assets 
(a) Financial assets 

(i) Investments 
(h) Current tax assets (Net) 
Tota l Non-Current assets 

Current a ssets 
Financial assets 
( i) Cash and cash equivalen ts 
(ii) Other fi nancia l assets 

Total Current Assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
(a) Equity s hare capita l 
(b) Other equity 
Total Equity 

Liabilities 
Non-Current Liabilities 
(a) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 
Total Non-Current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
(a) Financia l Liabiliti es 

(i) Borrowings 
( ii) Other financial liabilities 

(b) Other current liabilities 
Total Current Liabilities 
Total Liabilities 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIAniLITIES 

Note 
No. 

3 
4 

5 
6 

7 
8 

10 

9 
11 
12 

As a t 
31s t March, 2019 

~ 

As at 
31s t March, 2018 

~· 

28,14,65 2 16,00,982 
6,55,283 !3,72,890 

----------~~-------------
34,69,93 5 24·,73,8781 

1,08.828 2,34,672 
4,74,5 7,242 5,85,18,602 

4,1 5,66,0 z.Q _ ____ 5,'-s_7.!....,5_3_,_,z_7_4-l· 
5,10,3 6,0:15 6 ,1 2,27,1 57. 

5,00,000 
4 ,99,o8,466 

5,00,000 

1·!_?·1-,04, 73_~ 

5,01·,839 2, 1 1,8~5 
_________ 5_:,_0_4_.:...,8_3_9 _____ . __ 2,1:~~!25 

62,700 
97,60, '19 8 

/.,43,920 

_"!_!_,05,~03 -

_________ 6_2:._, 7_09___ 1,11,10,521 i' 
_____ ..::.5:...:,6~7.!c:,5:C.:3...::.9 ___ ~~·13.!.22,41 6 

5,10,36,005 6,1 2,27,1_? 2 

The a ccompa nying notes a r c a n integra l pa rt of the fina ncia l statements. 

As per our repor t of even date 

FOR L. J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No.1053 13W 
CHARTERED M~COUNT/\ NTS 

LALIT KOTHAIU 

Proprietor 
Membersh tp No. 3091 7 

Mum bai 
Date: 26 th May, 2019 

Fo r a nd o n behalf of the boa rd 

HAJEEVAN PARAMdAN 
Di1 ector 

DIN:0314; 200 

...:!J-~~)lo.:/ -SAo./ " 
fl 'J'EN DR/\ J .SHJ11l 

Director 
DIN:0699 5:l':1 

M urnbai 
Date: 26th May, 2019 
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DIVINITI PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARC_H.:.., 2_0;...1_9 __ ~~------------f 
Particulars Note Year ended Year ended 

I INCOME 
Other Income 
Share of Profit I (Loss) of joint Ventures 
TOTAL INCOME 

II EXPENSES 
Finance Costs 
Other Expenses 
TOTAL EXPENSES 

III Profiti(Loss) before Tax 
IV Tax Expense 

(i) Current Tax 
(ii) Deferred tax (charge)/ credit 
(iii) Excess 1 (Short) provision for taxation in 
respect of earlier years 

V Profiti(Loss) for the year 
VI Other Comprehensive Income 

VII Total Comprehensive Income 

No. 

13 

14 
15 

VIII Earning per equity share of nominal value of 't 101- each 

Basic and Diluted 16 

The acco mpanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements. 

1\s per our report of even date 

FOR L. J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No.105313W 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT~ 

,._o1HAR;If 
J (' ..J / _Q ')• " 

0 

LALIT KOTHARI 

-: MEMBERSHIP ·.. rl 
~ No. 30917 f. 1J 

~OACCo'\:J'.$::-t -Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Mumbai 
Date: 26th May, 2019 

• -

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 
't 't 

12,13,128 96,79,488 
(6,119) (1,947) 

12,07,009 96,77,541 

- 90,32,674 
1,32,722 1,64,060 

1,32,722 91,96,734 
10,74,287 4,80,807 

(2,20,542) (95,000) 
(2,92,944) (1,02,957) 

2,929 -
(5,10,557) (1,97,957) 
5,63,730 2,82,850 

- -
5,63,730 2,82,850 

11.27 5.66 

For and on behalf of the board 

RAJEEVAN PARAMllAN 
Director 

DIN:03141200 

J.ti~&-J_s~~ 
JITENDRA J SHAH 

Di rector 
DIN:06995353 

Mumbai 
Date: 26th May, 2019 



DIVINITI PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

CASii FLOW STATEMENT FOR TilE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCil, 2019 
Particulars 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

~ ~ 

I CASI::I EI.QWS ARISitliG ERQM m~r::RAIItliG ACII~IIUlS 
Net Profit/(Loss) before taxation as per Statement of Profit and Loss 10,74,2 87 4,80,807 
Add/ (Less) : 
Finance costs - 90,32,674 
Share of (Profit )/Loss from investment in partnership firms and )Vs 6,1 19 1,947 
Interest Income (92 35,809) 

6,119 (2,01,188) 
Operating profit before worlting capita l changes 10,80,406 2,79,619 
Add 1 (Less) : 
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade and other receivables 1.10,61,361 51,29,82,811 
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade and other payables (9,99,998) (5,82,991) 
Direct Taxes paid (2,92,944) (10,26,538) 

97,68,419 51,13 73,282 
Net cash flow from operating activities 1,08,48,825 51,16,52,901 

II. Casb flo~s nrising [rom illJ<csting a~:tiJ<itics 
Inflow I (Outflow) on accoun t of: 
Interest income received ')2,35,1!09 
Purchase of Long term/ Current investments ( 12, 13,670) ( 1,92,753) 
Net cash fl ow from investing activities (12,13,670) 90,43,056 

III. Casb flo~s arising from financing actiJ<itics 
Inflow I (Outflow) on account of: 
Repayment of Long Term Borrowing (97,60,999) (51,15,00,000) 
Finan~e costs paid (90 32 67~) 
Net cash flow from fina ncing activiti es (97,60, 999) 152,05,32,674) 
Net increase in cash and cash equiva lents ( I + II+ Ill) (1 ,25,844) 1,63,283 
Add: Balance at the beginning of the year 2,34 672 71,389 
Cash a nd cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,08,828 2,34,672 

Components of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 5) 
Cash and cash eqUivalents: 

Cash on hand 11,01 5 1,065 
Balances with banks 
- On Current accounts 97,813 2,33,607 

1,00,828 2,34,672 

Footnote: 
The Cash Flow Statement has been pepared under indirect method as set out in Indian Accountin~ Standard (lnd AS -7) statement uf cash llows. 
The accompanying notes arc an in tegra l part of th e finan cia l s tatements. 

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the board 

FOR L. J. KOTIIAHI & CO. ~t£1. 
Firm Registration No.105313W 
CIIA RTERED ACCOUNTANTS o'1'HAR/ RA)E EVAN PARAMBAN 

I l " p .c__..S2\. ... }" cf" Director 
. 0 DIN:03141200 

( ;! MEMBERSHIP '• 1} 
~ No .• : '17 f. -

LALIT I<OTI IARI ~ 't:'f' ~oJec,. ..J iffb:>.d}?t;{ J~ 
Proprietor ~-9~ ACCO\S 

o~ 
JITENUHA J SIIAII 

Membership No. 30917 - - ~~ Director 
; :-4 DIN:06995353 
~ ; 
() .() 

Mumbai * - Mumbai 
Date: 26th May, 2019 Dale: 26th May. 20 19 
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DIVINITI PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCil, 2019 

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 
As at 01st April, 2017 
Changes in equity share capital 
As at 31st March, 2018 
Changes in equity share capital 
As at 31st March, 2019 

B. OTHER EQUITY 

Balance at 1st April, 2017 

Profit I (Loss) for the year 

Other Comprehensive Income for the year 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2018 

Balance at 1st April, 2018 

Profit I (Loss) for the year 

Other Comprehensive Income for the year 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2019 

Reserves and Surolus (Amount{) 
General reserve Retained Earnings 

1,21,000 4,90,00,886 

- 2,82,850 

- -
- 2,82,850 

1,21,000 4,92,83,736 

1,21,000 4,92,83,736 

- 5,63,730 

5,63,730 

1,21,000 4,98,47,466 

Amount 
t 

5,00,000 

5,00,000 

5,00,000 

Total 

4,91,21,886 

2,82,850 

-
2,82,850 

4,91·,04,736 

4,94,04,736 

5,63,730 

5,63,730 

4,99,68,466 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

1\s per our report of even date 

FOR L. J. KOTHARI & CO. 

Firm Registration No.105313W 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTHT.T..c. 

~ ~oiHAI?tlf 
1 ~L ~ 71')· "o 

1 -: MEMBERSHIP .* 1\ 
1 n No. 30917 ~ '1 

LALIT KOTHARI \ '.t:~ 
Proprietor ~~D AccfsS. 
Membership No. 30917 -

Mumbai 
Date: 26th May, 2019 

For and on behalf of the board 

RAJEEVAN P/\IV\MBAN 

Director 
DIN:03141200 

~.ifo,,)}? do- -f ...st'O{ '­
JITENDRA J SHAH 

Director 
DIN:06995353 

Mumbai 

Date: 26th May, 2019 



DIVI" ITI PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO TilE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TilE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCil, 2 01 <) 

Note 1. STATEMENT OF IGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POI.ICIES 

1.1 Compa n y Overview 

Divi ni ti Pro jects Private Lim ited is a Private Limited Company domiciled in India, incorpo rated under the Companies Act, l '!56. The Company ;s 

engaged to acquire by purchase, lease, exchange, hire, or otherwise la nd and p roperty of any tenure or any interest in t he same and to erect ;nH! 

construct houses, huilding or work of every description on any land of the company or upon any other lands of property a nd to pull down, rebui ld, 
enlarge, a lter and im prove exis t ing, houses, building or work thereon to convert and arprop riate any su ch land into and fo r roads, streets, squa res, 

ga rde n, and any other conven iences and general ly to deal with and improve the prorerty of the co mpany or any other pro prrty, and to act ;1s 

ea rthmovers, contractors, developers of land, government contractor, construction of road, bridges, ea rth work, sewers, t anks drains, culven. 
channels, sewage, or other works. 

1.2 The financ ia l statements a re approved for issue by the Company's lloard of Directors on 26th May, 2019. 

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies followed b y the Company 

l. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(i) Compliance with Ind AS 
These financ ial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (herein after referred to as the ' lnd 1\S') as IH>lilh~ cl 

by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant lo Section 133 of the Companie s 1\ct, 2013 ('Act') read with of the Conrpan ies ( India11 Accounting Stancl:irds) 
Rules, 2015 as amended a nd other relevant provisions of the Act. 

The accoun ting policies are applied consisten tly to all the periods presented in the financial statements. 

(ii) Historical cost convention 

The financia l statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, excep t for th e following: 

J) certain linancial assets and liabilities t hat a rc measured at fair value; 

Zl asse ts hdd for sale- measured at lower of carrying amount or fair valu e less cost to sell; 

3) defined benefi t plans - plan assets measured at fa ir value; 

(iii) Curren t nun-current classification 

/\lithe asst>ts and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the operating cycle o f thf' Comp;111y as pr·r tlH· 

flllidance set out in Schedule III to t he Act. Operating cycle lor the business activities of the Company cove rs th e duration of the proj ect/ contract 

in cluding the defect liability period, wherever applicable, and extends up to the realisation of receivables (including r<:lcntion lfHIIIics, if any) wilh!n the 

cred it period normally applicable to the respective project. 

il Sit:nillcant acwunting judgements, estimates ;.JJld assumptions 

The prcp;.1 r~tion of f1nancia l statemen ts in conformity with the recogn ition and measurement principles of lnd 1\S requires nranage1nent to 111akc 

judt,cnwnt,; estimates <llld ass umptions that affect the report ed balances of revenues. expenses, ;:ssets anrl liabil ities ;.md tlw ;~ccomp;.o~ , ying 

disclo!>lll'e!>, alll.! the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainly about these assumptions and estimates .:oul d result in outcomes tlw t require• ;1 

m;,lcri<JI adjustm ent to the carrying amo unt of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

a) Judgements 
Classification of property 

The company Jete rmines whether a property is classified as investment property or inventory p ro perly. Investme nt p ropc·rty co 1n pri~:es l;;nd ;urd 
t>tn ld ings that arc not occupied substantially for usc by, or in the opera tions of, the company, nor fo r sale in the ordimuy course• ot' husii i<!S>, i>Jl ar!· 

held primarily to cam rental income <llld cap ital appreciation. These bui ldings arc substantially rented to tenants and not inlc nticd lo be solo in the 

ordinary course Ill business . Inventory comprises property that is held for s;de in the ordinary course of busin ess. l'rincip<dly. these arc p ropc rti ,!s ll•at 

tire com pany develops a nd intends to sel l before or on completion of construction. 

h) Estimates a nd assumptions 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation un certainly at the reporting date, tha t have· a signill~a nt r isl: of c;::1si!rg 

a material adjustment to the car!-ying amounts of asse ts and liabilities withi11 the next fina ncia l year, a re Jc:;criiled below Th~ Comp;l ll )' IJ;,~,:d .Is 

assurnpt1o;rs and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing ci rcumstanu:s and a·;sunrption\ :i!Hhil 

fu ture developments, however, may change due to m;1rket changes or circums tances <I rising that arc beyond ll!C' c<lntrnl ol U•" C:nlllJl;l!lV ~iur:h cln··>:: ' 'S 

a !·c rr llccted 111 the assumptions when they occur. 



DIVL :'JTI PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO TilE I'INA NCIAI. STATEMENTS FOR TilE YEAH ENDED 31ST MARCil, 2019 

Ill REVENUE RECOGNITION 
f(evenue Recognition Revenue is recognised upon t ransfer of control of pronnscd goods or scrvtcc~ to custtuners 111 an ;uuount that renects th(• 
consideration which the Company expects to receive in exch~nge fo r those goods or services. 

A. Reven ue lleven ue from sa le of properties/ development rights 

i. l{cv(•nue fro111 the sa le of propert ies / nats/ commercial premises I units in a project arc recognised when the company sat isl1cs pcrform<IIIC!: 
obligations at a point in time i.e w hen control is transferred to the customer which is usually on giving soft possession for fitouts or actual possession 
to the customer. 
ii. Revenue is measured b<1scd on the t ransaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts, rebates. price concessions, returns ;111d 
financing component if any, as specified in the contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes t<~xcs collected from custonwr~ on behalf of tlw 
government. Where the total project cost is estimated to exceed total revenues from the project, the loss is recognized immediately in the Statemen t of 

i1i. /\rnount recctvcd as Advance from customers on Invoicing I raising demand l c t tt ~rs arc classified as Contract l.iabiliuc,. Th(• comp;llty's nght to 
considcr<lllo!l i:1 Pxthange forgoods or services that the company has t rans ferred to the customer arc classificn as receivabl•~s. 

Th e Company has adopted lnd /IS 115 Revenue front contracts •..vith customers. with effect from April I, 201 tl. lnd liS 1 15 c~tahlisiH's pt·inciplcs for 
reporting information ~bout the nature. amoun t, timing and uncertainty of rc·vcmtcs and cash nows arising from the contr<tcts with its rustomcr~ and 
rcpl;.ces lnd /IS lH "Revenue" and Guidance Note on "/\ccouoting for l~eal Estate trans<tctions" for entit ies tn whom lnd AS is apphGtblc. 

U. Reven ue from T1·ading Materials: 

Hcvenuc from sale of t rading material is recognised when control of promised goods arc transfcrreJ tot he cu~t•llliC'r 

C. nevenuc fro m project managem e nt services: 

Revenue front 'project m:tnagcment se rvices' is recognized only on s;tttsf;oction of IH'rforman•·•· ohltg.tttnn of prntnl ~(·d ..,,., v:t t'\ b.ts!'d 'l!l th!' 
agreements between the Compa ny and the customer to whom such services arc rcntkred. 

IV FINI\NCIAI. INSTIUJMENTS 
1\ financia l instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

Investm ents and Financial Assets 

.. !nitta! 1 ecugnition 
i·tn.uKt;1; "''et' arc ~uhsNjlH'ntly mt·asured at anu1rt1sed cost if these financial assets arP held wtth111 a hustiii'SS nnhkl wnh ,.n oiiJ('CIIve 1n twid tla:'c 
<I., set~ 111 order to collect contractual cash Oows and the contrac~ual t(•rms of the fin<lltcial asset give nsc on spt•cifkt.i tlat~s td 1 .,,I: ~ illws th.tl .uP st<"'l) 
p.t;•:n::ttts tlf principal and interest on the principal anwt~nt out·nandine. Interest income from these financial a"ets is indad~d in 1: nancr ittcotne u st~ IJ: 

the crf<·Llii'C tntcrcst rate ("EIH") :11etholl . lmp;li rmcnt gains or ),Jsscs arising onthrsc· a~.sets an· n:rognis!'cl intlu· Statcllh'l ll or 1':-ofit and !.oss 

il . . ~u llscq\t cM m ea:;urcment 
Fnr purposes of sub~cquent measurement, financial assets arc d~sstficd in following categories: 

.1] rmancial f•sscts at 1\mo rtis ed Cost 
11 fin~nCJal asset rs subseql!ent!y mcasu! ed at amortised cost if it is held Within a busine:;s model whose nhi!'ct ive IS to hold tlw .ts:,ct :n urdl'r to roliPc: 
t ont ractu"l o~h nows aarlt~.e ccntr:tctual terms of the financial 3sset give r ise on specified dates to c;;sh llow~ th,ll .tr!' ·;okh Jl ·l~ ll h'lll~ o! p~·ll'( !I i ll 

.tnd llllPrt:>l o n the principal amount outstanding. 

c:j t ' in<~ncial ll.;sc ts M<:us uJ·cd .. t Fuir Value 

Ft:ldncial a.>~:crs arc measured at fa ir value through OCI if these fi nancial assets arc held within a lwsincss IIHHkl wit it ar: ubte• ·ti v(· lP :~oil! litl'se <~ ;s,·ts 
in ur.i<!r w coll,..r t contractual c;;sh flows or to sell these fi na ncial assets and the to:1tractual term~ nr the fitt~ncthl asset gtvr r1sc cHi ·'l"'c:!'tcd ""·''~ tn 
cash flow~; tl:;o. t ~rc solely paymen ~s of principal and interest on the princip:.ll ;uno::nt ou tstam: int~. Movements in the • M; vin 1 ~ ,t!IHlllill ~~··· tak,· n 
tlrrmtgb OCI ('XC'Ppt for t!u: rcr.(lv.niliOI! of impairment gains or losses, intc~cst revenur and fo1 eign Pxd w ngt· gains and los,· ·~ ·.~h.c :t .tl'l' :·t·• ·ll1:n<s•'' i !il 
t:l l' ~ t ;•lctn"nt ''' f'rn :it a nd l.oss. Furthc:·, in cases wncre the Comp;u.y has .n~de an irrcvocal.:c d ccllnn h.ts.::l .. 11 li~ ' •t.\tl' t'S. 111 • .r,•r t.'· t' 
iuvt!=''l nfln ~s '"''uch nn• classifi('d :1s •.!q111ty instrurnent~;. the suhscqueni changes irt fair vah1c ;-~rc recogniz.Pd 111 tJtncr,·nnl·;n 111 ':1 \l\'t ... u ;nh' 

Finar.cia! '" sN notme .. surcd ill a111ortiscd cost or at fair value through OCI is carri.:u at FVTPL. 

:11. De-r ecognitto n n f Fi:l~ n cta l Asset.~: 

I' he Ct>lll;'<' IIV dc-rccognl ,, (~ 5 a financial a s:;ct only when tlw contractual ri t;h t~ to the ca~h flows fron t tlw as•.(' t .:xp irc 01 'I :t.tnsiel s the ~in .. n •. :;d .!' 'L: 
~nd sansta n~tal!y all risks and rcw<~rds of ownership of the asset to another ~nlity. If th~ Company tH!Ithet ll illl~.fe"s lll>r . cta1n' ~uh".n .11 tl'v .11: Ut.• 
nsks and n·w~rds nf ownc1 sh ip and cont inues to cont: ol thP transferred asset. tl:e Company rccogruzcs it ~ rcta11:cd t:t te rl' 't 111 th•· ;tssets tn<' 1~1 

ts~:vt,.ltc·n h .. ~>th\~ f<>r ammmts it may have to pay 

I' :nc t.;Hnp:ll'l' 1 Clan\\ S'tbslantmlly ~II tlw n:.ks and n·wartl~; of own!'rshtp of,, t ra nstr:n ed ftn.mcial .tssct, the Ctl lllpan:: etlllllllll !' ~ tn 1 t'tt>g.t!>c 1 h,• 
(t n.tnco;tl ass·. l .ratt abo recogni~P~ a collalcralisect hot rowtng 'ur the procct·ds :·ccetvr·d . 

i3. E:]U ily lnstrum cm s a nd Fiuanciai Li<J bili tics 
l't~l3nn~ll!;t<tilttlcs ,tll d cquil.v inslll'mcnts 1s.med by the Co ntpany an• classi ltcd an :orrl!,:g to the suk:t:mcc· o f the CO:l tr;H·ttu l arr<t!ll~<· lll i! llt ~ er- .. Tc,: 
~ tHti .md tr~e tlciitutton.t; ol a fina :l ('ialliabilily and anct;uily ir.s tn!Jil ~· nt. 

l'quJty tnstnu iwltl.\ 

r\ 11 ~'q~i!y •nsi.rllli\Cnt' j..; .tny contrch.:l that cvidcncPS a :·csuiucd iillcn•·: t in the aS~l'l :-) tl l til ~· C: t' lllp.lllV ;tll l'l d!'ttl.l d:l!~ d: of \' lt; ttJIIi :tl'\. !·qt•.;• 

IIISln.lm,~l'l ') 1/Jhtch ,p·c ISSlh!d for CLSh rt re recorded at the pt OC:!l!,J:; !"l.!t 't'IVCd , rtt: t o f dt! C!Cl 1~!\\lt' .:OMS. (·.quH}' Jrp.;!(~t · Ja•nt~ \J.W h ol! ,. j~;:-.t :Pt' I •: 

.·nnsr:lcratwr: o tl:e1 llun c,:sh are, ecnrtled at fair valut~ (JJ the l!!JUH) : r.~tn ;mt nt 

i1. fin.lnctal Lluilil:til!~ 

1. h!:t iai Hccnvuition 



DIVI ~.ri'II'IWJECTS I'IUVATE LIM ITED 

NOTES TO T il E FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR T il E YEAR ENDED 3 1ST MARCil, 2019 
2 . Subseque n t Measuremen t 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their cl~ssificat ion, as described below: 

- Financial li abi li t ies at FVTPL 
Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilit ies held for trading and financia l liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at FVTI'I .. 
Fin<~ncialliabilities are classified as he ld for trading if they arc incurred for the purpose of rc purd1as ing in the ncar term. Gm11s or losses on lial>iiltll's 
lwld for t rading arc recognised in the Statemen t of Profit and Loss. 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company arc those wntracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs 
because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in a~cordance with the terms of a debt instrument. FinanCiill guarantee contracts arc 
rCCO!lnised initially as a liability a t fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that arc directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently. 
the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per in1p;1irmcnt rcquireoncnts of lnd AS 109 and the ;n1101111t 
recognised less cumulative amortisation. Amortisation is recognised as finance income in the Statement of Profit and l.oss. 

- Financia l liabilities at amortised cost 
Aft<·r initial recogni tion, interest-bearing loans nnd borrowings arc subsequently 1neasurcd at <lll tortiscd mst using the Ell( method . Any difference 
between the rro~eeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term ol the horrowmgs in th,, 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Amortised cost is calcu lated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or wsts that arc a !I 
111tenral part of the EIR. The Em amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of l'rof1t and Loss. 

3. Derccognition o f financial ins trume n ts 
The Company dcrccognizes a financial asset whe n the contractual rights to the cash nows front th e financial a~sl't expire or 11 transfers the fina~1al 
asset and the transfer qualifies for derccognilion under lndAS 109. A financial liah1hty (or a part of a finilnnal habdity) IS dt•recognizl'd from thl' 
Company's balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or exp1res. 

C. Offsetting Financial In s truments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities arc offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there IS .1 currently t•nlorceabi<· l<·gal right to 
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simu ltaneously. 

V Dcrccogn ition of financial instruments 
The Company dcrccognizes a financial asset when the contrncn1al rights to the cash nows from the financial asset exp1r<•s or II transfers the lln:.n:ll 
asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under lndi\~; 109. i\ financinl liability (or ~ part of a financi.ol li ability) is derecog111Zcd h>m th<· 
Compa ny's ll~!ance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or ca ncelled or expires. 

VI IMI'AIHMEN T 
a . Financial a~sets 

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the fin~ncia l assets which are not f:1ir va lued through profit or 
los~. Loss allowan~c fur trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to life time ECL. For all other 
financial assets. t•xpected cr<•ditlosscs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has heen ;o signilicantll>crcas<• m<redit 1 isk 
from initial1erogmtion in which case thoseare measured dtlifetime ECL.The amount of expected credit losses (or reversa l) that is r<'<Jlllrt'd to :ul}ust 
the loss allowance at the reporting d ate to the amount that is required to be recogn1se rl is recogn ized as an in1painnen t g:oi n 01 loss 111 the st:otenH!nt of 
profit or loss. 

b. Non-financia l assets 
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be 1m paired. lf any indication <'Xists. or when aa1H .. ol 
impairment testine for a n asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's rcwvcrabk amount. An asset's rccoverab l<! .o n1oUIIt is the lughn of ;111 
asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair va lu e less costs of disposal and its value in usc. Recoven1hlc a111ount is detenuinl'd for an tmlividual as><·t. 
unless the asset docs not generate cash innows that arc largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Wn<•n the c;~rry1ng ammn:t 
of an as~et or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered im paired and is written down to its rewvcrahle amount 

In assessing valu e in usc, the estimated futu re cash nows are discou nted to thei1· present valu<' using " prl'·t;ox discount r:ote that relll'cts current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In detern1111ing fair vahu• less costs of disposal. recl'nt n1arkt•t 
transnctwns a!'C' taken into account. If no such transartions can br idl'ntificd. an appropriate' valuation nwdrl is usN} These c:tln1btion~ on· 
wrroh<lratcu hy valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded compantcs or other .IVilolable f;ur value 1nd i(,1to1' 

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, arc recognised in the statcnu•nt of profit .ond loss. 

i. Inta n gi ble asse ts and prope r ty, p la nt and equipment 

Intangible assets and property, p lant and equipment arc evaluated for rccoverability whcnecr events or changes in ci1 nnnstanccs indicate that their 
cnrrying amounts may not be recove rable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair v:1 lue less cost tn 

~ell anrl the value-in-use) is determined on an ind ivid ual asset has is unless the <1sset does not generate cash flow~ that a rc largely imlcpcndent of thos<' 
from other .1ssets. In such cases, the recoverable amountts clctcnmncd for the CGU to winch the asset belongs. 

ii. Provisions 

A provisiop IS recognized if. as a resu lt of a past event, the Comp;o ny has a present legal or constn1ctivt• oblig:lt lnnthat IS reasouahly estin1.ol)k anti II· I, 

probable that ;on outnow of economic benefits will be required to settle the ob ligation. l'roviSitJns arc detcmunl'd by discounlinf! the t·xp<·r t<•d lutun· 
cash !lows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks spec1fic to the h.1b1hty 



DIVI I(ITI PROjECTS PIUVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO TilE FINANC IAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAn ENDED 31ST MARCil, 2019 

VII TAXATION 
i. Current Tax 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' ~s reported in the financial statement t>f 
profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that arc never taxable or deductible. The 

Company's current tax is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting penod. 

In case the Company is liable to pay income tax ujs 115]13 of Income Tax /\ct. 1961 (!.e. MAT), the amount of tax paid in excess of normal income tax is 
recognized as an asset (MAT Credit entitlement) only if there is convincing evidence for realizatinn of su ch asset during the specified period. Mi\ r 
cred it entitlement is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. 

ii. Deferred Tax 
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary difercnces between the carrying a mounts of <1ssets and liabiliti es in t he fi nancia l statc n:cnts ;111U t lw 
corresponding tax bases used in the computa tion of taxable profit. Deferred tax li~bilities are gcncr~ ll y recogn ized for all taxable temporary 

differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible tempor:n-y differences to the extent tha t it is pn>bable that taxable profits 

will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reducer! to tlw extent t hat it is no lnngc:r probabl<' t l ·o~t 

sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in wh ich the liability is sellled or the a'sct 

reahzc•d, bilscd on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the encl of t he repon ing pPriod 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company cxp!'ct s, 

at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

iii. Curr ent and deferred tax for the year 

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to ite111s t hat arc recognized in other colllprPiwn:;iv.· inco 111!' or 

directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax arc also recognized in other comprehensive inconw or directly in equity rc:spcrtivr· iy. 

Vlll TnADE AND OTIIER PAY ABLES 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services pre vided to the Company prior to the end of fln<IIIC:i<ll ye<lr which are unpaid. Traci e and 
other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after reporting period. For trade and other payablcs 

malur::1g within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approxim ate fair value due to the short ma turity of tl:ese instruments 

IX BOHIWWINGS AND IJORROWING COSTS 
Borrowing are initally recognised at Net off transation cost incurr<!d and measured at ;nnortised cost. /\ny d 1fff'l'cncc betwee n th e procc:ccls ( nc• t of 

trans;~tion cos1s) and the redemption amount is recognised in statctrnen t of profit and loss over t her period of th e borrown1gs using th e effective 

!nte ; cst method. 

Prcl(~rerH:e shares. which arc mandatorily redcemabk on a specific da te arc classified as liabilit ies. Tlu· d1vrdend on th• •sc prc lcrrnce shan'' :s 

recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance cost. 

Interests and other borrowing costs ca lculated as per effective interest rate attributable to qualifying <lsscts a rc allocated as part of the cost of 

construction f development of such assets. Such allocation is suspended during extended periods in which active development is int e r rupted ;1nd, no 

costs art• J iloca ted once all such activities arc substantially complete. Investment income earned on the tem porary investment o f specific· bor rowings 

pending thci1 expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other bor-rowing costs arc cha:·gecl to 

the Profit and Loss Account. 

X EARNING PER SIIARE 
13asic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity sh<1rcholdcr' by the weighted .1ver;1ge 

number of equ ity shares outstand ing during the year. The weighted average number of equ ity sha res outstanding du r ing th e y<'<lr i~ <H ljustcd for r·vr·nts 

of bonus issue, if any. 

For the pnrposc of caicubting dilurcd earnings per share. tlw net profit or loss for the year· attributable to equity ~ha rcholdr.rs and the wf'ighlc·r! 
avPragc· llllr.lilC'r nf snares outstanding during the yc;1r an• ;1ujustcc.l for the effects of all dihnive potcnti;ll equity sh;lr<!s . 

(~ 



DIV !i !ITI PROJECTS 1'1\ IVATE I.I MITED 

NOTES TO TilE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TilE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCil, :.! 019 

XI CASil FLOW STATEMENT 
Cash nows are reported using the ind irect method, w hereby profit for the period is ~djustcd for tlw t•ffens of trans;I(Lions of ;o 111111 ra'h nature. any 

deferra ls or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expensPs iiS,ociated w1th lllVt•stint: or lnJ<mCIIlg ca,h 

nows. The cash nows fro m operat ing. inves ting and financing activities of the compa ny ;1re segregated . 

XII CASil AND CASII EQU IVALENT 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet com prise cash at hanks and on hand and short-term deposits with a n original maturity of three months 

or less, which are subject to an insignifica nt risk of changes in value. 

For the purpose o f the s tatement of cash nows, cash and cash equ ivalents consis t of cash and short-term deposits. as defined above. net of outstanclin~: 

hank overdr.1fts as they arc conside red an integr<~l part of the Company's cash managemen t. 

XII I PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT I.IABII.ITIES 
A provision is recognized w hen an ente r prise has a present obliga tion (legal or constr uctive) as result o f past <'Vent ;111d it is probable• th;ll a•• outflow ol 

embodying economic benefits of resources will be required to settle a reliably assessable ohligil tio n. Provisions arc detennir.cd has,·cl 011 bC'st estirnall• 
req uired to settl e each obligation at c;~ch balance sheet d~ te. If the effect of the time value of 111011ey is 111at<:rial. provisions ;u·e ebscounted us111p," 
current pre-In>. rate that renects, when app ropr iate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, 1 he incre~se in the provision clue to tlw 

passage of t ime is recognised as a finance cost. 

Contingent liahilitics a rc disclosed in respect of possible oblir,ations tha t ~rise from p<~st events, whose existence would he LOIIfirmPe! by the 

occurrence or non-occu rrence o f one or more uncert<~in future events not w holly within the control of the C:on1p;111Y. A co11ti11gent liab il ity also arist·s. 
in rare cases, where a liability cannot be recognised because it ca nnot be measured re liably. 

Conti11gent assets arc neith e r recognised nor disclosed in the financial s tatemen ts. 

XIV RECENT ACCOUNTING I'RONOUCEMENTS 

lnd AS 116 

On 30 th March 201 CJ, the Ministry of Corporate Affilirs ( MCA) has notified lnd AS 116 Leases, unde'r Comp<~nics (Indian i\croulltlllg S1andard~:) 

i\mendmcnt Rules. 2019 which is applicable with effect from 1st April, 2019. 

l11d AS ll6 sets out tlw p r inciples for the recog nition,measuremr nt. presen ta tion ilnd d isclos ure of l c<~ srs fo r both parti<:s to" C'OII t l'ill't 1.e .. the· lesSl'(' 

:1ncl the lessor. lnd AS 116 introduces a single lease a ccounting nHld el for lc•ssee an d requin:~; the lessee to recognizt• right of ust· asst·ts and !.•as.· 
liahil:ties for all leases wit h a term of more than twelve months. unless the underlying asset is low value iu ll<Jtul ,. Curn·nlly. e •pero~t 111: : lr·;;sc• rxpe·ns:s 

;1rc charged to the s tatement ofprol1t a nd loss. lnd AS ll (, substantia lly car ries forw<~nl t he lessor iiC<:Olll lllll)! requirc ll>elllS 111 !11ci.'\S 1'/ 

i\s per lnd i\S 11 6. the lessee needs to recognise depreciation on r ights of usr nssets and finance costs on IPasr liabilities in the s la te•IJ:<•nl nl pr:.fit aild 

loss. The lease paymen ts made by the le,;sec under the lease arrangement will he adjusted against the lease liabilities 

'J'hc Ce>mp,;ny is evalua ting the requireme nt of the ame ndment and the impact on the financial s tateu1e11ts. 'I'IH: effect"" adopt ion of I !'li D /\~ \I (, 1s 

expected to be insignificent. 
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D1 ll iNITI P ROJECTS PRIVAT E LIMITED 

NOTES TO TilE FI NANCIAL STATEM ENTS FOR T ilE YEAR EN DED 31ST MARCil, 2019 

/\sat 1\s at 
31st Mar c h, 201 9 31s t March, 2018 

~ ~ 

3. Investme nts 

Non -Cur r e nt 
/\) Investme nt in o ther equity ins trume nts (Unquotcd) (Re fe r foo tno te ) 

(/\t fair value thro ugh profit a nd loss) 
a) 125 l~quity shares of ~ 25/- each (PY: 125) 

The Sh a mrao Vitha l Co-o p erative IJan l< Limit e d SIJ.:lB3 51,382 
b) 2,000 Equity shares of~ 10/- each ( PY: 2,000) 

Su ra l<s ha Rea lty Limited 27,18,769 15,36,600 
To ta l 2777 1 52 1 5 90 9B2 

Footnote: 

Investments in Shamrao Vi th al Co-oper ative Bank Limited & Suraksh~ Hcalty Limited arc measured at f;lir value as at :l l st Ma rch, 201 ') 

13) Capita llnvcstsu e n t in Partne rs hip Finns a nd joint Ve n t ures (Refer footno te) 

M/s J(isinl: Glory Developers 

Footnote · 
Details of Investments made in capital of Partnership Finn : 

Sr. 

No. 
Name of Pas·tners 

1 llubtownl.imited 
2 Citygold Education Research Lim ited 
j Oiviniti Projects Private Limited 
4 l leet Bui lders Private Li mited 
~ 1\rkrut l Safegua rd System Private Li m ited 

_L ~~\YB!:!l~•Em111g Private Limited 

~( I !illltious Dr:vclopcrs Limited 
. a lleadland Farming Private Limited 

~i_ llr.ddle Knowledge Private Limited 
10 Suhhs1ddlu Builders Private Lim1ted 

~~-- Sunstrcam City Private Limited ill 
I 12 Upv<~nlake Hesort Private Limited 

l3 Vega Developers Pnvate Limi~ed 

11 Vvlutcbud Developers Limited 
15 Yanlti lluildcon Private Limited 

Tot.a! Capital o f the firm in ~ 

4. Curre n t tax assets (Net) 

1\d Jance Tax p::~id for the Current Year 
Ll'SS: l'rov1sions 

5. Ca~h Jnd cash equ iva lents 

Balance~ with banks: 
111 cu rrent accou!llS 

Cash on hand 

G. Othe r li:1a uciai assets 

Cw:l.:.cll1 
Other Advances anu Hetcsvables 
Advanre~ rccovcrJble 
- Related parties (Refer note 19) 
Other~ 

Current 1\ccuunt Balances in Partnership Firms ::~nd Joint Vcnwre~ (((efr.r note 19) 
Other receivables from a related party (Refer note 19) 

T otal 

Total 

Total 

37,500 10,000 
37,500 10,000 

28,11,652 16,00,982 

31st Ma r c h, 2019 31st Ma r ch, 2018 
Profit Sharing natio Profit Sha.-ing Hatio 

25.00% :10.00% 
25.00% 5.:l3% 
2!i.OO% !i. }l.'.lli 
25.00~/h s.;~ 

0.00% ~~ 
0.00% ----------s.:i;t'& 
().()()<Jio ____ S.:l}_y.~ 

0.00% _ _2J}% 
0.0(~~ -- :iT;~~ 
0.00% 5Tl•Y., 
O.Q~ 10.G6'Yo 
0.00% 5Tl% 
0.00% S.~>:~ 
0.00% S .. B % 
C.OO% STl 'Y:, 

1,50,0 00 1,50,000 --

I 
B,7S,I!2S lJ ,lhl.'I'Jl I 

(2,/.0,:,'I l) ________ l.!.,Q,Z.,S'J :-) 
6,!i5,2!U B,7Z,Il% 

97,B l:l 
11,01 5 

1,0B,fi2B 

B.50,000 
4,(>(,,07.?.12 

-----------------

I 
) 

2,:l:l,GO'/ 
1,0(,:, 

2,]'1,672 
. 

G.3o.n61 
ll,'j(J,OO<: I 

S,52,/1,.l(, J 

Tota l 4,71,57,212 
I '/,6'\, I fl!> I 

5,!!!i,lll.!•Oi.l 

I 



Ot\..INITI PHOJECTS PHIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO TilE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOH TilE YEAH ENDED 31ST MAHCII, 2019 

7. Equity share capital 

Authorised Share Capital: 
50,000 (PY: 50,000) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each 

Issued and subscribed capital comprises: 
50,000 (PY: 50,000) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each fully paid up 

a) Hecon ciliation of Number of s hares outs tanding at the beginning and at the 
cud of the year 

Fully pa id equity s hares 

Balance at 1s t April, 2 017 
/\dd · Issued during the year 
Less: Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March , 201!1 
1\dd : Issued dunng the year 
Less: llought back during the year 

Balaotce ut 31st March, 2 019 

Total 

Total 

/\s ;~ t 

31st March , 2019 
~ 

5,00,000 

5,00,000 

5,00,000 

Number 
of s hares 

50,000 

50,000 

50,000 

1\s at 
31st March, 20 1!l 

~ 

5,00,000 

5,00,000 

5,00,000 

,,.,, ;· "'"·' I 
~>0,000 

50,000 

--
50,000 

Th·~ company has a single class of equity shares having a par value of ~ 10/- per share. Each holder ol cqutty share is t•nt it led to one vmt p t•r ~h.u c.1 

!
The company declares anti pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Direnors !S suhjl'cl w l he approv.il oq 
sh,,rrhnldcrs in the ensu ing an.nu;-tl gencr;-tl meeti ng. 1 

l
ht Equity Shares h e ld by its holding company or its ultimate liolding co mpany, s ubs idiaries or associates of the holdmg compan y or the 
ultimatt' holding company 

I As at 31st March. 2 019 1\s at 3 1s t M<trch, 2010 

No of shares held % h o lding No of s hares held 

l
ll uuLOwul.tnmcd w u lt Beneficiary owners 50,000 

50,000 
100% 
100% 

:JO,O OO 

50 ,000 
I Oll·Yt. --------- · 

100% 

~ ) Detai ls of .~hares h eld by each shareholders ho lding more llwn 5% s h ares 

__ ....:A..:cs::...a;;;ct:...;3::...1;;..;s:..;;l.c.M-'-a"'r'-'·c"'"h"-, .::.2c:.O.::.l _;_'J ______ __c.l\s a l 31 March, -~ 01 ? _____ _ 
No of sh :u cs held % holding 

Fu lly pa itl equity shares 
l lubtown Limited wtth llcncftciary owners 50,000 100% 

5 0,000 1 00°;\, 

d) J'erms I IUghl attached to Ordinary Equity Shares: 

No of s hares h e ld 

50,000 
50.000 

'Yo holding 

: 00% 

1 OO'Y:• 

' t' ho• co:ll!JilllY has a sinele d~~s of equity ~h:.tres having ;1 pdr valm· of '{ 10/- pL·r sl1:trr.. l~ach holder of equit y sh<~re is ent itled to one volt' per shMc. 
The romp«ny declares and pays dividend in Indian ru!Jec~. The d ividend proposed by the Board ol Dtn·cwr~ 1~ subJ eCt to llt t' .!Jll·l'll\',tl ul 

~ nan·holders in the ('n~':ing annual general meeting. 



Dl\IJNITI PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TilE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCil, 2019 

8. Other equity 
General reserve 

Balance at the beginning of the year 

Balance at the end of the year 

Reta ined Earnings 

Bala nce at the begtnni ng of the year 
Profit attributable to t he owners of the company 
Balance at the end of the year 

9. Borrowings 
Current 
Unsecured 
(i) Loa ns repayable on demand : 

- From Related Party (Refer note 19) 
- From Companies 

10. Deferred Tax balances 

Total 

Total 

Total 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

'( 

1,21,000 

1,21,000 

4,92,83,736 
5,63,730 

4,98,4 7,466 
4,99,68,466 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

1,21,000 

1,21,000 ·-

•L90.00,!ll!6 
2,82,850 

4,9:!,83,736 
4,94,04,736 

lt! ,J1,532 
83,29,466 

97,60,998 ·-

The following is the analysis of deferred tax (liabilities)lasset presented in th e balance sheet. 

Deferred Tax Liabili ty 

2018-19 

Dcfened tax (liabilities) I assets in re lation to : 

On ,1ccounl of fair valuation of inves'.ments 

2017-2018 

Oeferrcd tax (liabilities) I assets in relation to: 

On acco unt of fair Vct luation of investments 

11. Other financial liabilities 

.Cl.lf.(!jlt 
Other payr~bles 

Footnote: 

_ ____ _...(_5_'-,0_'l·-'-,!3_3_9..._) ------- (2,ll.B9S) 
Total (5,04,839) (Z, 11,89:.) 

.~ 

Rewgnise in Profit & 

Opening B<::..:tl.::.a::..:n.=.ce::..' __ __:L::..o::..:s:.:·s:...:A...:.c::..:c:..:o:..:u::..:n:..:t ___ __cCl osi ng n:~ Ian ce 

(2,11,895) (2,92,944) ~olj n:l'Jl 
Tota l ____ __,(...::2.:..::, 1~1.:..::,8_:..9:::...5),____ __ _ ~~~.944) ------·---- .(S,Q•},,\_i_?.)

1
· 

Recognise in Profit & , 

_ __:O:..~p:..:e:.;:.t::..:li::..:na.g...::B:...:.a:..:..l a::..· n:..:..c::..:·e:...· __ __:L::..:o:.:s:..:-·s . ...:.A:...:c:..:·c:..:u...::...:..u n _t ----~1 osi ng I!~ la n~'=---- 1 

----_ ...._(1:;.:..;,0;...;:.8-'-",9...;;;.3-'-8)'--·---__l! ,02, 95 7) 
Tota l (1,08,938) (1,02,95 7 ·, 

6/.,700 

I 
I 

(2,1 U3~·.il l 
(2, l J ,8Y :i .l 

2,43.')20 

Tota l 62,700 2,43,9ZJ 

1\s per information avatlable with the Company regarding d ues to Micro, Small <tnd Medium Enterprises as defi ned under the Mit:l'v l 
Small Medium Enterprises Development, Act 2006 (MSMED Act), none of the suppliers of the Company arc regis tc• red under MSMED 
/\ct. and the same has been rel ied upon by the auditors. 

! 12. Other current liabilities 

.C.w:.t:W.t 
Other payables : 

Stcttutory dues ________________ i_l,OS.\>0 :1 

l Total 11,05,603 
--------::;;;:::~:=;:---------""1 

--------lob,__--~~--------------------~~~ ____ ,_. - · 



0:0 / INITI PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCil, 2019 

13. Other income 
Interest Received on loan (Refer footnote) 
Excess Provision written Back 
Creditors Balance written Back 
Gain on fair valuation of Investment 

Footnote: 

Total 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

-
16,534 
10,424 

11,86,1 70 
12,13,128 

Year Ended 
31 March, 2018 

f 

92,35,809 
2,50,172 

754 
1,92,753 

96,79,488 

Interest received on lo <~ n includes~ Nil from related parties (P.Y.: Nil). Further attention invited to Note 19. 

14. Finance costs 

lnterst Paid (Others) 
Delayed/ penal interest on loans and statutory dues 

15. Other expenses 

Rates and taxes 
Leg:~l and professional fees 
Other expenses 

Footnote · 
Autiil or's Remuneration (included in other expenses) : 
1\ud itJ.'ce~: 

GST / Service Tax on above 

16. Earnings Per Share (EPS) 

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share 

Basic and Diluted EPS 

Total 

Total 

Total 

2,500 
94,155 
36,067 

1,32,722 

'.10,19,067 
13,607 

90,32,674 

2,500 
77,740 
83,820 

1,64,G60 

17,500 17.500 
3,150 :3,150 

----------~~~----------~ 
2 0,650 20,6S9_ 

Asa t J\sat ···-·! 
31st March, 2019 31st Marcls, 2 018 

f f 
----------------------------·--

11.27 5.6£, 

The enrnings anJ weighted average number of equity shares used in the calcu lation of bas ic and dilu ted earnings per 
sha:-l' <:1 re as fo ll ows. 

Earnmgs used in the calculation of basic earnings per share 

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic and diluted 
earnings per share 

11 7. Cont1:1gent Ltabihties (Not Provided For:) 

5,63,73 0 2,82,850 

50,000 5 0,00 ~) 

The Co mpany does not have any contingent liability as on balance sheet date, as certified by the ma nagement antl relied 
upon oy tht: auditors. 

18. In the opinion cf the Board of Directors of the Company, all items of current assets, non current assets, non curren t 
liabilities and currenl Liabilities continues to have a rea lizable value of at least the a mounts al which they arc sta ted in tr.<' 
IJalance S!J eet. 



DI\'INITI PROJ ECTS PIUVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO TilE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TilE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCil, 2019 

L 

19. Re lated Party Disclosure 

A. Name of related pat·tics and description of r elations 

(I) IIOI.IJ ING COMP/\NY ll ubtown Ltd 

( II) ENTITIES UN DEll T ilE JOINT CONTitOL OF IIOI.Ili NG COMPANY Twenty Five South Healty l.imill'd 

(Iii) JOINT VENTillJE OF Ti lE COMP/\NY His inA Glory Develop!'rs 

Footnote: 
Related party relationship are iden tified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors. 

fl . Transactions with r c atec1 p;u·ttcs 
Sr. No. Nature of Transaction 

Loa ns received I recovered 
Twenty Five South Realty Limited 

Il oldi ng Com p;m y Entities Under The joint Venture of th e 
Joint Control Of w mpany 

llohling Compa ny 

~ 
( · ) _('II O,OOO,OClllJ 

~------+----------------------------------------------~r-----~~------+-~ 
( ·) 

Loans given /repaid ii 

~ ;;; 
I 

iv 

v 

Twenty rive South Realty Limited 

ll uhtown Limited 

Share of loss from Pal'lner sh ip Firm: 
His1ng Glory Developers 

'

Investmen t in Cunent Account of Partnet·ship Firm 
Ris1ng Glory Devdopers 

Rising Glory Developers I 
In vestmen t in Capita l Account of Pa rtnersh ip Fin11 

1 --E r- - -;;j· Interest Inco me 

I Twenty F1vt• Soul h He~rty Limited 

~---;;--- Debit Balances r eceived 
Twenty Fi ve South 1\calty Limited (Refund received) 

Hts111!\ Cl<>rv IJcvclopcr~ 

(-) 

·~ .:! 1 ,532 

(-) 

(-) 

(·) 

( ) 

(· ) 

(·) 

~~ 10.000,000) 

(-) 

(-) 

( l 

(· } 

(61 19) 
( 1,91 7) 

! 
1 

i 
l 
I 

I 
. . ! 

___l:_l ---~· __ (I ~>,l~~r~~·-·-·· 1 
- n,. ,,~., I 

_j·_l _----1 _ _1Ul<'h!.:L ___ ~ 

rw;,a09) I l:l --1 
17.61. 105 I 

(51.'11>.1:!,361) 

() I 
t·l 

Bt>.hi ,OOIJ 

'' I 

·:\wmy Five South Realty Limited (In terest received) - , 
~__ __ ...L_ _______________________ _._ __ ~(-2) . ____ 1 ___ (!l:.!J_?.,_~2c:.B.t...)_-"-j ___ _,_(·_,_) _ __j 

Footnote : 
Previous Year figures arc given 111 brackets. 

Balance outstanding payah lesfrecC'ivable: 

F 
Nature ofTransacti on 1\s a-t-----T--~1-t----l 

___ __ ----------------------------------------------J---'-J_1_s_t ,_M_a_r_c_· l~1,_2 __ 0._19l ' _2 1st M '! rd1, 20 Ill. I. 

a. RcceJva hlc l 
)oint Venture of Hold ing Company 1 I 1 

' I I 1 flis111g Glory tlevclopcrs - Current Ac 'l,b6,1J 7,2,fZ ~i .Sl.l~.:u,! I 
H1S1111: Glory developers - Capital 1\c !7,500 10,000 

1 

I 
Entities Under The Joint Control Of Holding Company 
Twenty Five South Realty Limited 17.(>•1, 1 05 

- .11 I b. Pay;1blc 

Il olding Company 1 
II I I . . I I' ,, 1 "'''' I 

ll '>IOWJ1 ,I Illite< ·---·~----·~-' _ .. _, _" __ j ., 
------ ----------------------------------------------------------~-----------

-------------------------------------·------ -----



DI' \INITI PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

20. Capital Management 
The primary objective of company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong capital ratios in order to support 
its business and maximise shareholder's value. The company's Board of Directors reviews the capital on an annual basis. 

The capital structure of the entity consists of net debt (borrowings and offset by cash and bank balances) and total equity of the 
company. There are no borrowings from banks/financial institutions or corporates other than the equity shareholders and their 
group companies. 

Gearing Ratio 
The gearing ratio at the reporting period was as follows: 

Unsecured Loan 
Less : Cash and Bank Balances 
Net Debt(/\) 

Equ1ty Share Capital 
Retained Earnings 
Total Equity (B) 

Debt Equity Ratio 1\/B 

21. Financial Risl• Management Objectives 

As at 

31st March, 2019 

[1,013,828) 
(1 ,08,828) 

5,00,000 
1, 99,68,166 

5,04,68,466 

0% 

As at 

31st March, 2018 

97,60,998 
(2,34,672) 

95,26,326 

5,00,000 
1,94,01,736 

4,99,04,736 

19% 

"!"he Company's ::Jctivities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, cred it risk and liquidity risk. The Company's focus 
is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seck to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial 
performance. 

1) !\llarlwt Risl< 
Market ri sk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument which nuctuate because of chang~.:s in 
market prices. 

aj Interest rate risk 
luterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash nows of a financial mstrumcnt will lluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates. The compnny's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relate~ prim::Jrily to company':; 
long term debt obligations with floating interest rates. 

The Company has received interest free advances from its holding company and hence it is not exposed to interest raLC risk. 

?.) Credit Risl< 
Credit ri sk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financi<il instrument or custonwr contract 
le;•ding to <1 financial loss. The company is not cxpo!:>ed to credit risk from its operating activiti e~; or tr:1de receivables s1r~ce the 
agreement of sale of land is executed only on receipt of full consideration. 

C:rcdit risk from balances with banks and inter corporate loans is managed by the company's treasury department in accordance 
with the company's policy. 

3) Liquidity risk 
The opcrati11g cash flow reqturements are met by Interest free funding from shareholders. 



TD!VJN'iT!"r"RniE"tis "P"RiillEiJM:TEo____ - ------- --·--· ·-

~oTEs TO THE FiNANCI'.L STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED "1ST MARCil, 201 S 

~- Fair_Vaiu<' measurement ofFinancial_Instrum.;nts 

• l 31st March 2019 31st March 2018 b--:- 1 FVPL I FVOCI -,t, Amortised Cost FV~ FVOCI Amortised Cost 

1E!nc>nCial AssE',.ts __ __ 
Investm~nts 27,77,152 37,500 15,90,982 I - 10,000 
Cash and cash equivalents _ _ 1,08,828 2,34,672 
Other fma!!cial assets 4,74,57,242 5,85,18,602 
~t~tal of Financial Assets ---· 27;n:l5f} ____ ----. 4,76,03,570 15,90,982 - 5,87,63,274 

Financial L;abilities 
Borrowings I -

I I I 
-

62,700 ' -
I 62,700 ' ' - I - -

Trade payables 
Other financialliab!lities 
Total of Financial Liabilities 

i} Fair Value hierarchy 
jThis section explams the judgements and estimates in determining the fair vaiue of the financial Instruments that are recognised and measured at fair value. 

j;.inanci31 assets and iiabilitics-~easurcd at fair value· recurring 
!fair value measurements 
1 At 31st March, 2019 
Financial Assets 

Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total 

Jnvest:nents as at 31st Mardt, 20~- - I I 27,77,1521 27,77,152 
1 

Total Financial Assets · 27,77,152 27,77,152 

At 31st March, 2018 I 
Financial i\ssets 

iinvestments as at 31st March. 2018 I 15,90.982 15,90,982 .....---- ·- -----
[Total Financial Assets __ _ ________ j__ ____ 15,90,982 15,90,982 

L 

(;' ~ 
..f-<t ~ J'.5£-.d,.. 

97,60,998 

2,43,920 
1,00,04,918 



DIVINITI PROJECTS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Level 3 
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instruments is included in level 3. During the year ended 31st March 2019, the company has 
fair valued its investments. Since valuation of investments are not based on inputs from observable market data, same has been classified in Level 3. 

ii) Valuation technique a nd process used to detemine fa ir value 
The fair value of the financial instrument is determined using book value method. 
Cha nges in Level 3 it ems for t he year end ed 31st March, 2018 and 31st March, 2019 

As at 1st April, 2017 
Gain/(loss) recognised in profit or loss 
As at 31st March, 2018 

Gain/(loss) recognised in profit or loss 
As a t 31st March, 2019 

Footnote: 

Investme nts 

15,90,982 
11,86,170 
27,77,152 

27,77,152 

Total 

15,90,982 
11,86,170 
27,77,152 

27,77,152 

Investments in Shamrao Vithal Co-operative Bank Limited and Suraksha Realty Limited have been measured at fair value using the book value method. However, the balance 
sheet of these entities were not available for fair valuation for the financial year 2019, hence fair value for the financial year 2018 has been carried forward to the financial year 
2019 as the management is of the opinion that there is no significant change. 

As per our report of even date 

FOR L. J. KOTHARI & ASSOCIATES 
Firm Registration No.105313W 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

I J "p.._____,:::r.r 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Mumbai 
Date: 26th May, 2019 

-
-,q_i.OJEc l'~ . 

((Q;n 
" * 0 

-

For and on behalf of the board 

G~ 
RAJE EVAN PARAMBAN 

Director 
DIN:03141200 

...h/~Jz(J....J -s.~t._ 
JITENDRA J SHAH 

Director 
DIN:06995353 

Mumbai 
Date: 26th May, 2019 
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L. J. KOTHARI & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

GANDHI MANSION, 3R° FLOOR, NEW SILK BAZAR, OPP KALBADEVI HEAD P. 0., 

MUMBAI- 400 002 • Tel.: 2205 5916 • E-mail: ca_lalitkothari@yahoo.co.in 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF HEADLAND FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the lnd AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements ofMjs. HEADLAND 
FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company'' ) which comprises the Balance Sheet as 
at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 
income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as "Ind 
AS financial statement"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the aforesaid lnd AS financial statements give the information required by 
the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the lnd AS, of the financial 
position of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and loss (including other comprehensive 
income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind 
AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS 
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Responsibility of Management for the lnd AS Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these 
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 



financial performance(including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under 
Section 133 of the Act. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing 
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 



• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in 
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent 
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We 
communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of 
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters 
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should 
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by 
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure A" statement on the matters specified 
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

II. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 

of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 
income), the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of changes in equity dealt with ~ 
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 ofthe Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 



(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 
March, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on 31st March, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate Report in "Annexure B"; and 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 
position in its financial statements. 

ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts 
for which there were any material foreseeable losses; and 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accounta~ 
~~-

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Date :26th May,2019 



ANNEXURE"A"REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HEADLAND 
FARMING PRIVATE LIMITEDON THEIND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 3tstMARCH, 2019; 

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and 
explanations given to us, we state that: -

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets; 

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the Management during the year and 
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification; 

(c) The Company does not own any immovable property therefore provision of clause 3(1)( c 
) of the said order are not applicable; 

(ii) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at the reasonable intervals by the 
management during the year. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory 
as compared to book records were not material and have been appropriately dealt with in the 
books of accounts; 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any 
secured or unsecured loans to companies; firms or other parties covered under section 189 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'). Therefore, provision of clause 3(iii), 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b), 
3(iii)(c) of the said order are not applicable to the company; 

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any guarantees 
or any security to the parties covered under section 185 and 186. Therefore, the provisions of 
clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year, Therefore the 
provisions of clause 3 (v) ofthe Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to 
the Company; 

(vi) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has 
not crossed the threshold limit as prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) 
of section 148 of the Act for maintenance of cost records and hence the provision for 
maintenance of records are not applicable to the Company; 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, in our opinion, except for dues in respect of Income Tax 
payable, Tax deduced at Source and Interest on tax payable, the Company is generally 
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Sales 'Tax, Service tax, duty of 
customs, Value added tax, Goods and Service Tax, cess and other material statutory dues, 
as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. There was an amount of Income Tax 
payable~ 13,51,746 and Interest on tax payable~ 17,41,288 is outstanding as at the last 
day of the financial year for a period exceeding six months from the date they became 
payable. 

(viii) 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, there are no disputed dues in respect of Income Tax, Service 
Tax, Custom Duty, Sales tax, Value added tax, Excise Duty or Cess. 



provisions of Clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(ix) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer 
(including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(x) Based on the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or 
employees has been noticed or reported during the year; 

(xi) The Company has not paid or provided managerial remuneration during the year and hence, 
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable. Accordingly, 
the provisions of Clause 3 (xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4 (xii) 
of the Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(xiii) The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the 
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions 
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Ind AS 24, Related Party 
Disclosures specified under section 133 to the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2015. 

(xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment I private placement of shares or fully or 
partly convertible debentures during the year, the provision of clause 3(xiv) of the Companies 
(Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company; 

(xv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 
management, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or 
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company; 

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45 lA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company. 

L.J. KOTHARI & CO 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 
~~ 

LALIT KOTHARI 

Place: Mumbai 
Date :26th May,2019 



"ANNEXURE B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
IND ASFINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF HEADLAND FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act'1 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of HEADLAND 
FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company") as of 31st March, 2019 in conjunction with 
our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
over financial reporting based on our audit We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Aud\t of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note'1 and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, 
both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risks. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the lnd AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting. 



.· 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that; 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2019, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company, considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 26th May,2019 
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HEADLAND FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

_'JALANCESHEET ASAT 31ST MARCH, 2019 
· Particulars 

ASSETS 
1. Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Investments 
(c) Other non-current assets 
Total Non-Current assets 

2. Current assets 
(a) Inventories 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 
(ii) Other financial assets 

Total Current Assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

II EQUI1Y AND LIABILITIES 
1. Equity 

(a) Equity share capital 
(b) Other equity 
Total Equity 

2. Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Other financial liabilities 
(b) Other current liabilities 
(c) Current tax Liabilities (Net) 
Total Current Liabilities 
TOTAL EQUI1Y AND LIABILITIES 

Note 

No. 

3 

4 
5 

6 

7 
8 

9 
10 

11 
12 
13 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As pf,!r our report of even date 

FOR L.). KOTHARI & CO. 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Place: Mumbai 

Dated: 26th May, 2019 

- -- -----

As at 

3151 March, 2019 
~ 

5,59,89,777 

4,46,128 
20,523 

5,64,56,428 
5,64,56,428 

1,00,000 
(2,12,66,871) 

(2,11,66,871) 

7,43,96,969 
8,500 

32,17,830 
7,76,23,299 
5,64,56,428 

As at 

3151 March, 2018 
~ 

10,000 
6,10,000 

6,20,000 

5,59,89,777 

9,06,105 
14,87,728 

5,83,83,610 
5,90,03,610 

1,00,000 
(2,03,61,018) 

(2,02,61,018) 

7,79,06,382 
6,500 

13,51,746 
7,92,64,628 
5,90,03,610 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Dated: 26th May, 2019 
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• HEADLAND FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

' lsTATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 
Particulars Note 

II 

III 

IV 

v 

VI 

Income 
Revenue from Operations 
Other Income 
Share of Loss/ Profit from Partnership Firms 
Total Income 

Expenses 
Costs Of Development 
Changes in Inventories of Land and ancilliary costs 
Finance Costs 
Other Expenses 
Total Expenses 
Profit I (Loss) for the year 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Earning per equity share of nominal value off 10/- each (in 
Rupees) 

Basic and Diluted 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Dated: 26th May, 2019 

No. 

14 
15 

16 
17 
18 
19 

20 

Year ended 

31st March, 2019 
f 

9,35,000 
150 

20,524 
9,55,674 

3,38,410 
15,23,117 

18,61,527 
(9,05,853) 

(9,05,853) 

(90.59) 

Year ended 

31st March, 2018 
f 

74,22,750 
6,07,00,000 

(1,580) 
6,81,21,170 

3,05,00,000 
(2,04,59,414) 

1,65,194 
7,50,27,354 

8,52,33,134 
(1, 71,11, 964) 

(1, 71,11,964) 

(1,711.20) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

. 

JAS~HOD 
Director 

DIN: 03147669 

Dated: 26th May, 2019 



HEADLAND FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Particulars 

I. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM OPERATING ACTMTIES 
Net profit I (loss) before taxation as per Statement of Profit and Loss 
Addf (Less): 
Finance costs 
Share of loss of firm 

Operating profit before working capital changes 

Add I (Less) : 
(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories 
(Increase) I Decrease in trade and other receivebles 
Increase I (Decrease) in trade and other payables 

Net cash now from operating activities 

II. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM INVESTING ACTMTlES 
Inflow I (Outflow) on account of: 
(Increase)/ Decrease on long term Investments 
Net cash now from investing activities 

III. CASH FLOWS ARISING fROM FINANCING ACTMTIES 
Finance costs paid 
Net cash now from financing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ( I + II + III) 

Add: Balance at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Components of cash and cash equivalents 
Cash on hand 
Balances with Banks 
-in Current accounts 

31st Mar ch, 2019 

t 

(9,05,853) 

3,38,410 

3,38,410 
(5,67,443) 

20,77,204 
(16,41,328) 

4,35,876 
(1,31,567) 

10,000 
10,000 

(3,38,410) 
(3,38,410) 

(4,59,977) 

9,06,105 

4,46,128 

4,46,128 
4,46,128 

31st March, 2018 
t 

(1,71,11,964) 

1,65,194 

1,65,194 
(1,69,46,770) 

(1,88,65,020) 
10,43,95,685 
(6,76,36,976) 
1,78,93,689 

9,46,919 

(1,65,194) 
(1,65,194) 

7,81,724 

1,24,381 

9,06,105 

35,943 

8,70,162 
9,06,105 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (lnd AS- 7) statement of cash flows. 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Dated: 26th May, 2019 

--

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Director 
DIN: 03140671 

Dated: 26th May, 2019 



. HEADLAND FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 (in~) 

L 

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

As at 1st April, 2017 

Changes in equity share capital 

As at 31st March, 2018 

Changes in equity share capital 

As at 31st March, 2 019 

B. OTHER EQUITY AND CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS 

Balance at 1st April, 2017 
Profit I (Loss) for the year 
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 
Balance at 31st March, 2018 
Profit/(Loss)fortheyear 
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 
Balance at 31st March, 2019 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financ1al statements 

As per our report of even date 
FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 

J 

LALIT KOTHARI 

Place: Mumbai 

Dated: 26th May, 2019 

Note Amount 

9 

1,00,000 

-
1,00,000 

-
1,00,000 

Reserves and Surplus Total 
Retained Earnings 

(32,49,054) (32,49,054) 
(1,71,11,964) (1,71,11,964) 

- -
(1,71,11,964) (1,71,11,964) 

(2,03,61,018) (2,03,61,018) 
(9,05,853) (9,05,853) 

- -
(9,05,853) (9,05,853) 

(2,12,66,871) (2,12,66,871) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

JASMZ'HOD 
Director 

Dated: 26th May, 2019 



HEADLAND FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

: NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

N.ote 1. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies. 

- 1.1 Company Overview 
Headland Fanning Private Limited is a private limited Company domiciled in India, incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. The main object of the company 
is to acquire by purchase, lease or otherwise, agricultural land for fanning. to establish and run fanns and to Construct, erect, acquire, equip, lease, furnish, 
convert, adapt, improve, develop, operate & manage all sorts of Agricultural Parks, Industrial Parks, Special Economic Zone & related infrastructure facilities, 
commercial & social infrastructure facilities & amenities. 

1.2 The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 26111 May, 2019. 

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies followed by the Company 

I. Basis of preparation of financial Statements 

ril Compliance with lnd AS 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'lnd AS') as notified by 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as 
amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. 

(li) Historical cost convention 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following: 
1) certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value; 
2) assets held for sale- measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell; 
3) defined benefit plans- plan assets measured at fair value; 

(Ill) Current non-current classification 
All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the operating cycle of the Company as per the guidance set 
out in Schedule Ill to the Act. Operating cycle for the business activities of the Company covers the duration of the project/ contract including the defect liability 
period, wherever applicable, and extends upto the realisation of receivables (including retention monies, if any) within the credit period nonnally applicable to 
the respective project. 

II. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 
The preparation of financial statements in confonnity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, 
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

a) Judgements 
Classification of property 
The company detennines whether a property is classified as investment property or inventory property. Investment property comprises land and 
buildings that are not occupied substantially for use by, or in the operations of, the company, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business, but are held 
primarily to earn rental income and capital appreciation. These buildings are substantially rented to tenants and not intended to be sold in the ordinary 
course of business. Inventory comprises property that is held for sale in the ordinary course of business. Principally, these are properties that the 
company develops and intends to sell before or on completion of construction. 
b) Estimates and assumptions 
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a 

' material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its 
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future 
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are 
reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 

III. Revenue recognition 
Revenue Recognition Revenue 1s recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the 
consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services. 

A Revenue from Sale of Land 
Revenue from sale of land's recognized when the company satisfied perfonnance obligation at a point in time i.e. when company is transferred to the 
customer which is usually possession of land to customer. 
Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts, rebates, price concessions, returns and 
financing component if any, as specified in the contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf of the 
government 
The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers, with effect from April1, 2018. Ind AS 115 establishes principles for 
reporting infonnation about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues and cash flows arising from the contracts with its customers and 
replaces Ind AS 18 "Revenue" and Guidance Note on· Accounting for Real Estate transactions" for entities to whom Ind AS is applicable. 

B. Interest and dividend: 
Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of 
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding at the effective interest rate 
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net 
carrying amount on initial recognition. 

C. Others: 
Other revenues J incomes and costs I expenditure are accounted on accrual, as they are earned or incurred. 

D. partnership firms 1 association of persons: 
from partnership finns j association of persons (AOP) is accounted n respect of the financial year of the finn I AOP, during the 



HEADLAND FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

IV. Property plant and equipment and depredation I ammortisation 

A. On transition to lnd AS, the Company has opted to continue with the carrying values measured under the previous GAAP as at 1st April, 2015 of its 
Property, Plant and Equipment and use that carrying value as the deemed cost on the date of transition i.e. 1st April, 2015. 

B. Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction including attributable interest and finance cost, if any till the date of 
acquisition/installation of the assets, less accumulated depreciation/amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

C. Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements, either on 
disposal or when retired from active use and the resultant gain or loss are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

D. Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions to 
assets or on sale/disposal of assets is calculated pro· rata from the month of such addition, or upto the month of such sale/disposal, as the case may 
be. 

Asset category Estimated useful life (In Years) 
Computers & Laptops 3 
Office Equipments 5 
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant equipment are reviewed at each financial year and adjusted 
prospectively, if appropriate. 

V. Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

A Investment and Financial Assets 
i. Initial recognition 

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold 
these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance 
income using the effective interest rate ("EIR") method. Impairment gains or losses arising on these assets are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 

ii. Subsequent measurement 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories: 

a) Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to 
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

b) Financial Assets Measured at Fair Va.lue 
Financial assets are measured at fair value through OCI if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold these 
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms .of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are 
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Further, in cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election based on its business model, 
for its investments which are' classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income. 

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI is carried at FVTPL. 

On transition to lnd AS, the Company has opted to continue with the carrying values measured under the previous GAAP as at 1st April, 2015 of its 
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and used that carrying value as the deemed cost of these investments on the date of 
transition i.e. 1st April, 2015. 

iii. De-recognition of Financial Assets: 
The Company de· recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the financial 
asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an 
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the 
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. 

B. Equity Instruments and Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered 
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument 

i. Equity Instruments 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity 
instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Equity instruments which are issued for 
consideration other than cash are recorded at fair value of the equity instrument 

ii. Financial Liabilities 
1. Initial Recognition 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL,loans and borrowings and payables as appropriate. All financial 
liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 



HEADLAND FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

: NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 
2. Subsequent Measurement 
The meas urement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 
- Financial liabilities at FVTPL 
Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL. 
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on 
liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it 
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument Financial guarantee 
contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly atttibutable to the issuance of the 
guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of Joss a.llowance determined as per impairment requirements of lnd 
AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation. Amortisation is recognised as finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

- Financial liabilities at amortised cost 
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Any difference 
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 
integral part of the EIR The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

3. De-recognition of Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. When an existing financial 
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, 
such an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and recognition of a new liability. The difference in the 
respective canying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

C. Offsetting Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to 
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

VI Derecognltion of financial Instruments 
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expires OJ it transfers the finacial asset 
and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under lndAS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's 
Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

VII. Impairment 

a. Financial assets 
The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or 
loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to life time ECL. For all other financial 
assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL. unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial 
recognition in which case thoseare measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss 
allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or 
loss. 

b. Non-financial assets 
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual 
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an 
asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of dispoSal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset 
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the canying amount of 
an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are 
taken into account: If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.' These calculations are corroborated by valuation 
multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators. 

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
1. Intangible assets a.nd property, plant and equipment 

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability wheneer events or changes in circumstances indicate that their 
canying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing. the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell 
and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from 
other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. 

11. Provisions 
A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that is reasonably estimable, and it is 
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash 
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. 
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.. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

VIII. Taxation 

I. Current Tax 
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the financial statement of 
profit and loss becauseof items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The 
Company's current tax is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

In case the Company is liable to pay income tax u/s llS)B of Income Tax Act. 1961 (i.e. MAD, the amount of tax paid in excess of normal income tax is 
recognized as an asset (MAT Credit entitlement) only if there is convincing evidence for realization of such asset during the specified period. MAT credit 
entitlement is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. 

IL Deferred Tax 
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary diferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the 
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. 
Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it Is probable that taxable profits will be available 
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. 
The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset 
realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at 
the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

Ill. Current and deferred tax for the year 
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly 
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 

IX. Inventories 
All inventories are stated at lower of 'Cost or Net Realizable Value'. 

A. 'Incomplete Projects' include cost of land for which the Company has not entered into sale agreements and in other cases where the revenue 
recognition is postponed 'Incomplete Projects' also include initial project costs that relate to a (prospective) project. incurred for the purpose of 
securing the project These costs are recognized as expenditure for the year in which they are incurred unless they are separately identifiable and it 
is probable that the respective project will be obtained. 

B. Cost included in inventory include costs incurred upto the completion of the project viz. cost of land, services and other expenses (including 
borrowing costs) attributable to the projects. Cost formula used is average cost 

X. Borrowings and Borrowing costs 
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the liabilities are de-recognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is 
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR The EIR amortisation is 
included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Interests and other borrowing costs included under finance costs calculated as per effective interest rate attributable to qualifying assets, which takes 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are allocated as part of the cost of construction I development of such assets. Such allocation is 
suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted and, no costs are allocated once all such activities are substantially 
complete. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from 
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss kccount 

XI. Cash Flow Statement 
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any 
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash 
flows. The cash flows from operating. investing and fi'!ancing activities of the company are segregated 

XII. Cash and cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or 
less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding 
bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management 

XUJ. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of 
embodying economic benefits of resources will be required to settle a reliably assessable obligation. Provisions are determined based on best estimate 
required to settle each obligation at each balance sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current 
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of 
time is recognised as a finance cost 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence would be confirmed by the occurrence 
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. A contingent liability also arises, in rare cases, 
where a liability cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. 

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. 
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. 
• NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

XIV. Recent a ccounting pronouncements 
lndAS 116 
On 30th March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified lnd AS 116 Leases, under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2019 which is applicable with effect from 1st April, 2019. 

lnd AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition,measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and 
the lessor. lnd AS 116 introduces a single lease accounting model for lessee and requires the lessee to recognize right of use assets and lease liabilities for 
all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is low value in nature. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to 
the statement of profi t and loss. lnd AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in lnd AS 17. 

As per lnd AS 116, the lessee needs to recognise depreciation on rights of use assets and fi nance costs on lease liabilities in the statement of profit and 
loss. The lease payments made by the lessee under the lease arrangement will be adjusted against the lease liabilities. 
The Company is evaluating the requirement of the a mendment and the impact on the financial statements. The effect on adoption of lND AS 116 is 
expected to be insignificent 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Note 3. Property, plant and equipment 

Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at 1st April, 2017 
Additions 
Disposals 
Balance at 31st March, 2018 

Accumulated depreciation 

Balance at 1st April, 2017 
Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Depreciation expense 
Balance at 31st March, 2018 

Carrying amount as on 31st March, 2018 

Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at 1st April, 2018 
Additions 
Disposals/Discardment 
Balance at 31st March, 2019 

Accumulated depreciation 

Balance at 1st April, 2018 
Eliminated on disposalf discarment of assets 
Depreciation expense 
Balance at 31st March, 2019 

Carrying amount as on 31st March, 2019 

Computers and 
Laptops 

33,176 

33,176 

33,176 

33,176 

Computers and 
Laptops 

33,176 

33.176 

33,176 
33,176 

Office Equipment 

6,200 

6,200 

6,200 

6,200 

Office Equipment 

6,200 

6,200 

6,200 
6,200 

Total 

Total 

(in~) 

39,376 

39,376 

39,376 

39,376 

39,376 

39,376 

39,376 
39,376 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Note 4. lnvesbnents 

NonCurrent 

Capitallnvesbnent in Partnership Finns( Refer Fooblote) 
M/ s Rising Glory Developers 

Total 

Fooblote: 
D il fl eta so d . . I f h" fi nvestments rna e m capita o ·partners JP mn: 

Name of Partners 

Hubtown Limited 
Ackruti Safeguard System Private Limited (up to 31st july 2018) 
Citygold Education Research Limited 
Citv2old Farmin2 Private Limited (up to 31st July 2018) 
Diviniti Projects Private Limited 
Halitious Developers Limited (up to 31st July 2018) 
Headland Fannin2 Private Limited (up to 31st july 2018) 
Heddle Knowledge Private Limited (up to 31st july 2018) 
Heet Builders Private Limited 
Subhsiddhi Developers Pvt Ltd. (up to 31st July 2018) 
Sunstream Citv Private Limited (up to 31st July 2018) 
Upvan lake Resort Private Limited (up to 31st July 2018) 
Vega Developers Private Limited (up to 31st july 2018) 
White bud Developers Limited (up to 31st july 2018) 
Yantti Buildcon Private Limited (up to 31st July 2018) 
Total 
Total Capital of the finn in~ 

Note 5. Other assets 

Non-current 
Advances to land owners (Refer Footnote) 

Total 

Foomote: 

As a t 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

31st March, 2019 

Profit Sharing Ra tio 

25.00% 
-

25.00% 
-

25.00% 
-
-
-

25.00% 
-
-
-

-
-
-

100% 
1,50,000 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

10000 
10,000 

31st March, 2018 

Profit Sharing Ratio 

20.00% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 

10.66% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
100% 

1,50,000 

6,10,000 
6,10,000 

No agreement has been entered into for the above advances paid to landowners (fanners) in earlier year's. Advances amounting to U0,43,94,105/ ­
has been debited to land cost during the previous year. Out of the same, an amount of~ 2,58,62,166/ - is carried as Inventory. 

Note 6. Inventories 

Land and ancilliary costs (Refer Footnote to Note 5) 
Total 

Note 7. Cash and cash equivalents 

Balances with banks: 
- in current accounts 
Cash on hand 

Total 

Note 8. Other financial assets 
.cu.m:nt 
Current account balances in partnership firm (Refer note 22) 
Others 

Total 

5,59,89,777 
5,59,89,777 

4,46,128 

4,46,128 

20,523 
20,523 

5,59,89,777 
5,59,89,777 

8,70,162 
35,943 

9,06,105 

14,87,728 

14,87,728 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Note 9. Equity share capital 

Authorised Share Capital: 
10,000 (P.Y.31st March, 2018: 10,000) Equity Shares of~ 10/· each 

999,000 (P.Y.31st March, 2018: 999,000) 8% non cumulative convertible preference 
shares of nOO/· each 

Issued and subscribed capital comprises: 
10,000 (P.Y.31st March, 2018 : 10,000) Equity Shares of~ 10/· each 

Footnotes: 
(i) Recondliation of the number of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year. 

Balance at 1st April, 2017 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2018 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2019 

(ii) Details of shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares 

Fully paid equity shares 
Hubtown Limited with Beneficiary Owners 
Total 

31st March, 2019 
No of shares held % holding of this 

class of shares 

10,000 100% 
10,000 100% 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

100,000 

99,900,000 

100,000 

100,000 

Number of shares 

10,000 

10,000 

10,000 

As at 
3151 March, 2018 

~ 

100,000 

99,900,000 

100,000 

100,000 

Share Capital 
(in~) 

100,000 

100,000 

100,000 

31st March, 2018 
No ofshares held % holding of this 

class of shares 

10,000 100% 
10,000 100% 

(iii) Equity shares held by its holding company or its ultimate holding company subsidiaries or associates of the holding company or the ultimate 
holdin2 company: ' · 

Holding Company 
Hubtown Limited with Benificiary Owners 
Total 

31stMarch,2019 31"tMarch, 2018 

10,000 10,000 
10,000 10,000 

(iv) Terms 1 rights attached to Equity Shares : 
The company has a single class of equity shares having a par value of~ 10/· per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The 
company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the 

ensuing annual general meeting. 
In the event of liquidation of company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all 
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 



HEADLAND FARMING PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Note 10. Other Equity 

Retained Earnings 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Profit/( Loss) attributable to the owners of the company 

Total 

Note 11. Other financial liabilities 

Current 
Business Advance from related party (Refer Footnote and Note 22) 
Payable to related parties (Refer note 22) 
Other payables 
Statutory dues 
Others 

Total 

Footnote: 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

f 

(2,03,61,018) 
(9,05,853) 

(2,12,66,871) 

7,38,04,000 
2,500 

5,90,469 

7,43,96,969 

As at 

31st March, 2018 

f 

(32,49,054) 
(1,71,11,964) 

(2,03,61,018) 

7,62,69,000 
2,500 

15,42,882 
92,000 

7,79,06,382 

The Company has received interest free advances from it's Parent Company, considering the nature of business in which the Company operate, 
the amounts so received are considered to be repayable on call 1 demand as the repayment period of such amounts so received is not 
measureable precisely. 

Note 12. Other liabilities 

Current 
Other payables : 
- Statutory dues 

Total 

Note 13. Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 
Provision for Tax 
Less: Advance Tax Paid 

Total 

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate 

8,500 
8 ,500 

32,17,830 

32,17,830 

Since the taxable income is negative, there is no current tax payable; hence reconciliation has not been provided . 

.. 

6,500 
6,500 

43,72,410 
(30,20,664) 
13,51,746 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Note 14. Revenue from operations 

Sale of plot 
Other operating Revenue: 

Liabilities written back to the extent no longer required 
Advances written off recovered 

Total 

Note 15. Other Income 

Advances received from Body corporate appropriated 
Miscellaneous Income 

Total 

Note 16. Costs Of Development 

Land cost 
Total 

Note 17. Changes In Inventories Of Land And AndiUary Costs 

Opening Inventory 
Less: 
Purchase Return · Land 
Expenses incurred on above land writton off 

Less: Closing Inventory 
Total 

Note 18. Finance Costs 

Delayed/ penal interest on loans and statutory dues 
Total 

Note 19. Other Expenses 

Professional Fees 
Advances and other be bit balance written off (Refer Footnote to Note 5) 
Expense incurred/allocation on purchase return written off 
Land non-utilization charges 
Other expenses (Refer footnote) 

Total 

Footnote: 
Auditors Remuneration (included jn the other expenses) 
Audit Fees 

Total 

Note 2 0. Earnings Per Share (EPS) 

Basic And Diluted Earning Per Share 

Basic and Dilute d EPS 

Year ended 

3111 March, 2019 
~ 

935 000 
9,35,000 

150 
150 

5,59,89,777 

5,59,89,777 

5,59,89,777 

3 38 410 
3,38,410 

1,13,035 

13,17,730 
92 352 

15,23,117 

35000 
35,000 

(90.59) 

Year ended 

31" March, 2018 
~ 

27,44,625 

46,78,125 

74,22,750 

6,00,00,000 
7,00000 

6,07,00,000 

305,00000 
3 05,00000 

3,71,24,757 

8,01,250 
7 93144 

3,55,30,363 

5,59,89,777 
(2,04,59,414) 

1,65194 
1,65,194 

69,948 
7,36,94,730 

7,93,144 
4,27,680 

41852 
7,50,27,354 

35,000 
35000 

(1,711.20) 

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share are as follows: 

Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to the owners of the Company (9,05,853) (1,71,11,964) 

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic and diluted earnings per share 10,000 10,000 

F . Note 21. a1r va ue measu.remen 

Fair Value measure ment 3t " March 2019 31" March, 2018 
FVPL/ FVPL/ 

Particulars FVOCI Amortised Cost FVOCI Amortised Cost 
mn~A<:<:Pt<: 

Investments . . 10000 
Other financia l assets 20523 . 14,87 728 
Cash and cash eauivalent . 4 46128 . 906105 
Total of Financial Assets . 466 651 . 2403 833 

I l:ln~nrl~l I bhllltla< 

Trade oavables . . . . -Other Financial ~'"~"~ . 7,43 96969 7 79 06 382 

Total ofFinaJA. ~ . , ........ n , "·"'·"' 
~ I~ )} 
~ 
'!'.: 

" ~ ~ 

• ---- -
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NOTES TO THE FJNANOAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MAR Of, Z019 

Note Z2. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (As per IND AS· Z4) 

A. 
I 

II 

IJI 

Name of the related parties and related parties rela tionship 
Holding Company 

Other Fellow Subsidiaries 

Firm In which Company Is a partner 

Footnote: 
Related party relationship are Identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors 

B. Transactions with related parties and balance as at year end· 
Sr. Nature of Transaction 

No. 

Business advaDces taken/ recovered /adjusted 
Hubtown Umited 

II BusiDess Advance given/ repaid/adjusted 

Hubtown Umited 

Ill On behalf payments adjusted 
Heddle Knowledge Pvt Umlted 

Jv Share ofloss/ profit from partnership firm 
Rising Glory Developers 

v BusiDess advances taken/ recovered 1 adjusted 
Rising Glory Developers 

Note: Previous year figures are given in the brackets 

Sr. Balance outstanding 

No. 

Balance Payables 
Hubtown Umited (Holding Company) 
Heddle Knowledge Pvt Umlted (Others Fellow Subsidiaries) 

II Balance Receivables 
M/s Rising Glory Developers 

Hubtown Limited 

Heddle Knowledge Pvt. Ltd., 

M/s Rising Glory Developers 

Holding 
Company 

10,33.000 
(1,00,000) 

34,98,000 
(14,50,000) 

(-) 

(-) 

Otbers Significant 
InDue nee 

(·) 

(·) 

(2,500) 

(-) 

(-) 

As at 
31st Ma.rch, 2019 

7,38,04,000 
2,500 

20,523 

in~ 

Firm In wblcb Company is a 
partuer 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

20,523 
(1,580) 

14,97,728 
(-) 

in~ 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

7,62,69,000 
2,500 

14,87,728 
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·NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

· Note 23. Financial Risk Management Objectives 

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk. credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's focus is to foresee the 
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. 
1) Market Risk 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument which fluctuate because of changes in market prices. 

Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest 
rates. The company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to company's debt obligations with floating interest 
rates. 
· The Company has received interest free advances from its holding company and hence it is not exposed to interest rate risk. 
2) Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a finandal instrument or customer contract leading to a financial loss. 
The company is not exposed to credit risk from its operating activities or trade receivables since the agreement of sale of land is executed only on 
receipt of full consideration. 
Credit risk from balances with banks and inter corporate loans is managed by the company's treasury department in accordance with the company's 
policy. 

3) Liquidity risk 
The operating cash flow requirements are met by interest free funding from shareholders. 

Note 24. Capital Management 
The primary objective of company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong capital ratios in order to support its business and 
maximise shareholders value. The company's board of directors reviews the capital structure on an annual basis. 

Gearin~: Ratio 
In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management. amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants 
attached to the borrowings that define the capital structure requirements. 

The gearing ratio at the reporting period was as follows: 

Unsecured Borrowings 

Interest accrued 
Total Debt 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 
Net Debt (!\) 

Equity Share Capital 
Other Equity 
Total Equity (B) 

Debt Equity Ratio A/B • 

• Since there are no borrowings gearing ratio has not been computed. 

Note25. 

Asat Asat 
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

4,46,128 
(4,46,128) 

(2,12,66,871) 
(2,12,66,871) 

9,06,105 
(9,06,105) 

1,00,000 
(2,03,61,018) 

(2,02,61,018) 

a. The company has obtained permission for purchase of Agricultural lands admeasuring 442.15 hectors in the District Raigad as per villages 
referred in the order dated 12th March 2008 and the details of land shown in the annexure to said order from Directorate of Industries, 
Maharashtra State, for setting up Industrial Estate, Flatted Building. readymade build space, plots custom Built Campuses for IT & ITES services 

sector. 
b. Further same is subject to permission from town planning department and Agricultural Land Ceiling Act and the provisions of section 36 and 

36 A of Maharashtra Land Revenue Code 1966 and of the Maharashtra Restoration of Lands to scheduled Tribe Act 197 4 and permission and 

approval from other Government bodies. 
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• NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

· Note 26. 

The accumulated losses of the Company have resulted in complete erosion of the net worth of the Company. The Company's management is, 
however, of the view that the said erosion is temporary in nature as the Company has made strategic investments in certain assets 1 projects, the 
proceeds of which would when fructified, would result in turnaround of the Company. The Company to that extent does not consider the erosion of 
the net worth as an impediment to its status as a going concern. 

Note 27. Contingent Liability 
The company does not have any contingent liabilities as on the balance sheet date as certified by the management and relied upon by the auditors. 

Note 28. 
In the opinion of the board of Directors of the Company, all the items of current assets, current liabilities & loans and advances continue to have a 
realisable value of atleast the amount at which they are stated in the balance sheet 

Note 29. 

The Company has vide meeting of Board of Directors dated 0910212019 accorded consent to Amalgamation along with other six transferor 
company (Fellow Subsidiary) into Citygold Education Research Limited the transferee company. Further Draft Scheme of Amalgamation was placed 
before the Board and approved in the said meeting. The Directors 1 signatories of the company are authorized to take all necessary steps to initiate 
the amalgamation. 

Note30. 
The Company has initated the legal proceedings against land aggregatorslfanners which has been written off in earlier years. However during the 
year the Company has received lrecoverd certain amount 

Note 31. 

Previous year's figures have been regrouped I recast wherever necessary. 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

~ 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Place: Mumbai 
Dated: 26th May, 2019 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

JASMIN RATHOD 

Director 
DIN:03140671 

Dated: 26th May, 2019 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements ofMjs. HEDDLE 
KNOWLDEGE PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company") which comprises the Balance 
Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other 
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for 
the year then ended and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after 
referred to as "Ind AS financial statement'). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by 
the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the financial 
position of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and loss (including other comprehensive 
income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind 
AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS 
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these 
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance(including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 



accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under 
Section 133 of the Act. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing 
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the lnd AS financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
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exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in 
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent 
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We 
communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of 
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters 
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should 
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by 
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure A" statement on the matters specified 
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

II. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 

of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 
income), the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of changes in equity dealt with 
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid lnd AS financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 
March, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 



disqualified as on 31st March, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate Report in "Annexure B"; and 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 
position in its financial statements. 

ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts 
for which there were any material foreseeable losses; and 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 30917 
UDIN : 19030917 AAAABB2168 
Place: Mumbai 
Date : 26th July,2019 



ANNEXURE"A" REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HEDDLE 
KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 3tstMARCH, 2019; 

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and 
explanations given to us, we state that: -

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets; 

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the Management during the year 
and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification; 

(c) The Company does not own any immovable property therefore provision of clause 
3(1)( c) of the said order are not applicable; 

(ii) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at the reasonable intervals by 
the management during the year. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of 
inventory as compared to book records were not material and have been appropriately 
dealt with in the books of accounts; 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted 
any secured or unsecured loans to companies; firms or other parties covered under section 
189 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'). Therefore, provision of clause 3(iii), 3(iii)(a), 
3(iii)(b), 3(iii)( c) of the said order are not applicable to the company; 

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any 
guarantees or any security to the parties covered under section 185 and 186. Therefore, 
the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year, Therefore the 
provisions of clause 3 (v) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not 
applicable to the Company; 

(vi) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company 
has not crossed the threshold limit as prescribed by the Central Government under sub­
section (1) of section 148 of the Act for maintenance of cost records and hence the 
provision for maintenance of records are not applicable to the Company; 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, in our opinion, except for dues in respect of Tax deduced at 
Source and Interest on tax payable, the Company is generally regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues, including Service tax, duty of customs, Value added tax, 
cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate 
authorities. There was an amount of Service tax of~ 1,67,612 and Interest on tax 
payable~ 15,31,866/- outstanding as at the last day of the financial year for a period 
exceeding six months from the date they became payable. 

(b) On the basis of our examination of documents and records of the Company, and 
explanation provided to us, there are no disputed dues in respect of Income Tax, 
Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Goods & Service Tax 
or Cess. 



(viii) As the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution or 
bank or Government, nor has it issued any debentures as at the balance sheet date. 
Therefor, the provisions of Clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(ix) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer 
(including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(x) Based on the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by 
the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its 
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year; 

(xi) The Company has not paid or provided managerial remuneration during the year and 
hence, the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable. 
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4 
(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(xiii) The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the 
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions 
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required under lnd AS 24, Related Party 
Disclosures specified under section 133 to the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2015. 

(xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment I private placement of shares or 
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year, the provision of clause 3(xiv) of the 
Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company; 

(xv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given 
by the management, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company; 

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45 lA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

L.J. KOTHARI & CO 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

~~ 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 30917 
UDIN: 19030917AAAABB2168 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 26th July, 2019 



"ANNEXURE B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
IND ASFINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act'1 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of HEDDLE 
KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company") as of 31st March, 2019 in conjunction 
with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that 
date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note'1 and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, 
both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risks. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, includin~ the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of thelnd AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting. 



·. 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation offinancial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that; 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

(3) providereasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has ,in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2019, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company, considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No.: 30917 
UDIN: 19030917AAAABB2168 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 26th July,2019 



HEtJDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2019 
Particulars 

ASSETS 
1 Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Investments 
(c) Current tax assets (Net) 
Total Non-Current assets 

2 Current assets 
(a) Inventories 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Investments 
(ii) Trade receivables 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 
(iv) Other financial assets 

(b) Other current assets 
Total Current Assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
1 Equity 

(a) Equity share capital 
(b) Other equity 
Total Equity 

2 Liabilities 
Non-Current Liabilities 
(a) Provisions 
Total Non-Current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Trade payables 
(ii) Other financial liabilities 

(b) Other current liabilities 
(c) Provisions 
Total Current Liabilities 
Total Liabilities 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountants 

L _1 ,o~ 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Mumbai 

Date: 26th July, 2019 

Note 
No. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

4 
7 
8 
9 

10 

11 
12 

13 

14 
15 
16 
13 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

9,58,872 

1,08,79,351 
1,18,38,223 

69,24,489 

44,506 
12,17,75,000 

3,42,902 
18,72,02,489 

31,62,89,386 
32,81,27,609 

1,00,000 
(12,41,51,081) 

(12,40,51,081) 

7,02,857 
7,02,857 

6,32,639 
42,54,36,674 

2,47,23,231 
6,83,289 

45,14,75,833 
45,21,78,690 
32,81,27,609 

As at 
31st Ma rch, 2018 

~ 

10,95,876 

10,000 
87,77,251 

98,83,127 

41,857 
35,10,21,600 

3,93,181 
5,22,08,860 

5,00,000 
40,41,65,498 
41,40,48,625 

1,00,000 
(10,04,24,540) 

(10,03,24,540) 

4,39,818 
4,39,818 

1,64,67,899 
49,51,72,887 

17,14,660 
5,77,901 

51,39,33,34 7 
51,43,73,165 
41,40,48,625 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

,_ \ ~"' 
r KHILEN SHAH 

Director 

Director 

DIN: 03134932 

Date: 26th July, 2019 



HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 
Particulars 

Income 
Revenue from Operations 
Other Income 
Share of Profit I (Loss) of Firm 
Total Income 

II Expenses 
Changes in Inventories of Land and ancilliary costs 
Employee Benefits Expense 
Finance Costs 
Depreciation Expenses 
Other Expenses 
Total Expenses 

Ill Profitl (loss) before Tax 
Tax Expense 

Excessi(Short) provision for taxation in respect of earlier years 
IV Profiti (Loss) for the Year 

v Other Comprehensive Income 
Remeseaurement of the net defined benefit liabiliy I asset 

Vl Total comprehensive income for the Year 

V11 Earning per equity share of nominal value of~ 101- each (in~ 
Basic and Diluted 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even da te 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 

Chartered Accountants l]' 
~~ ')· "o 

.,J ,.. , • .. 

LALIT KOTHARI -J. I, ,7 ,If? 
Proprietor "J!PJ] '.t;'I"(-
Membership No. 30917 ~Reo Accc"'f> 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 26th july, 2019 

~ 

Note 
No. 

17 
18 

19 
20 
21 
22 
23 

24 

Year ended Year ended 
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

~ ~ 

(3, 71,00,000) 37,17,80,000 
1,71,24,903 10,08,29,774 

20,524 (1,580) 
{1,99,54,573) 47,26,08,194 

(69,24,489) 18,06,05, 765 
78,82,464 72,54,842 
10,50,593 1,68,573 

1,37,004 1,02,679 
16,42,376 28,49,89,247 

37,87,948 4 7,31,21,106 
(2,37,42,521) (5,12,912) 

{2!37,42,521) (5,12,912) 

15,980 (7,68,929) 

(2,37,26,541) (12,81,841) 

(2,374.25) (51.29) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

0~\.-A,.~ 
"" \ ~~EN S~AH 

Director 
DIN: 03134932 

Date: 26th july, 2019 



HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 
Particulars 

I. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM OPERATING ACfiVITIES 

Net profit I (Joss) before taxation as per Statement of Profit and Loss 
Add I (Less) : 
Depreciation 
Share of Profit I (Loss) of firm 
Remeseaurement of the net defined benefit liabiliy/ asset 
finance Costs 
Advances and other debit balances written ofT 
Other lncome(Penalty Recovered) 
Gain on fair valuation of Investment in Mutual Funds 
Sale of fiXed assets 

Operating profit before working capital changes 
Add I (Less) : 
(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories 
(Increase) I Decrease in trade and other receivebles 
Increase I (Decrease) in trade and other payables 
Increase I (Decrease) in provisions 
Direct taxes (paid)/refund 

Net cash now from operating activities 

II. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Inn ow I (Outnow) on account of : 
Sale I (Purchase) of fiXed assets 
Increase/Decrease in long term investments 
Acquisition/ Sale of current investment 
Net cash now from investing activities 

Ill. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING AITIVITJES 
Inn ow I (Outnow) on account of: 
finance costs paid 
Net cash now from financing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ( I + II + Ill) 

Add: Balance at the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Components of cash and cash equivalents (Refe r Note 8) 
Cash on hand 
Balances with Banks 
-in Current accounts 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accountan~ 

L • ' pC ~ 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Mumbai 

Date: 26"' July, 2019 

31st Mar ch, 2019 
~ 

(2,37,42,521) 

1,37,004 
20,524 
15,980 

10,50,593 
25,609 

(13,00,500) 
(2,650) 

(53,440) 
(2,37,95,961) 

(69,24.489) 
9,47,27,363 

(6,33,55,932) 
3,68,427 

(8,01,600) 
2,40,13,769 

2,17,808 

10,000 
(20,524) 
(10,524) 

(2,57,563) 
(2,57,563) 

(50,279) 

3,93,181 
3,42,902 

3,42,902 
3,42,902 

31st March, 2018 
~ 

(5,12,912) 

1,02,679 
(1,580) 

(7,68,929) 
1,68,573 

18,43,90,690 

(1,537) 
1,83,136 

18,40,73,032 
18,35,60,120 

30,43,15,902 
(29,37,19,980) 
(19,39,14,837) 

8,55,174 
(11,076) 

(18,24, 7 4,817) 
10,85,303 

(9,52,117) 

(9,52,117) 

(1,68,573) 
(1,68,573) 

(35,388) 

4,28,569 
3,93,181 

46,096 

3,47,085 
3,93,181 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

M~HAH 
Director 

Director 
DIN: 03134932 

Date: 26"' July, 2019 



HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMrTED 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 
Particulars 

l. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net profit I (loss) before taxation as per Statement of Profit and Loss 
Add I (Less) : 
Depreciation 
Share of Profit 1 (Loss) of Firm 
Remeseaurement of the net defined benefit liabiliy I asset 
Finance Costs 
Advances and other debit balances written off 
Other lncome(Penalty Recovered) 
Gain on fair valuation of Investment in Mutual Funds 
Sale of ftxed assets 

Operating profit before working capital changes 
Add 1 (Less) : 
(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories 
(Increase) I Decrease in trade and other receivebles 
Increase f (Decrease) in trade and other payables 
Increase I (Decrease) in provisions 
Direct taxes (paid)frefund 

Net cash flow from operating activities 

II. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Inflow f (Outflow) on account of: 
Sale I (Purchase) of fixed assets 
Increase/Decrease in long term investments 
Acquisition/ Sale of current investment 
Net cash flow fTom investing activities 

Ill. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Inflow I (Outflow) on account of : 
Finance costs paid 
Net cash flow from financing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (I+ II+ Ill) 

Add: Balance at the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Components of cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 8) 
Cash on hand 
Balances with Banks 
-in Current accounts 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARI & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 
Chartered Accounta2Jr 

L ' "~t ___. 

LALIT KOTHARI 
Proprietor 
Membership No. 30917 

Mumbai 

Date: 26th July, 2019 

31st March, 2019 
~ 

(2,37,42,521) 

1,37,004 
20,524 
15,980 

10,50,593 
25,609 

(13,00,500) 
(2,650) 

(53,440) 
(2,37,95,961) 

(69,24,489) 
9,47,27,363 

(6,33,55,932) 
3,68,427 

(8,01,600) 
2,40,13,769 

2,17,808 

10,000 
(20,524) 
(10,524) 

(2,57,563) 
(2,57,563) 

(50,279) 

3,93,181 
3,42,902 

3,42,902 
3,42,902 

31st March, 2018 
~ 

(5,12,912) 

1,02,679 
(1,580) 

(7,68,929) 
1,68,573 

18,43,90,690 

(1,537) 
1,83,136 

18,40,73,032 
18,35,60,120 

30,43,15,902 
(29,37,19,980) 
(19,39,14,837) 

8,55,174 
(11,076) 

(18,24,74,817) 
10,85,303 

(9,52,117) 

(9,52,117) 

(1,68,573) 
(1,68,573) 

(35,388) 

4,28,569 
3,93,181 

46,096 

3,47,085 
3,93,181 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

tV~ 
KHILENSHAH 

Director 

Date: 26th July, 2019 



HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE PRJVATE LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 (in ~> I 

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 
As at 1st April, 2017 
Changes in equity share capital 
As at 31st March, 2018 
Changes in equity share capital 
As at 31st March, 2019 

B. OTHER EQUITY AND CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS 

Balanceat31st March 2017 
Profit I (Loss) for the Year 
Remeasurement of net defined benefit recognised in other comprehensive 
income 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 
Balance at 31st March 2018 
Profit I (Loss) for the Year 
Remeasurement of net defined benefit recognised in other comprehensive 
income 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 
Ba lance at 31st March, 2019 
The accompanYing notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR L.J. KOTHARJ & CO. 
Firm Registration No. 105313W 

L- chazere~;~ -J~·. ~~~o 
LALIT KOTHARJ n t • 7 p .* 

" • • A'<-':g 
Proprietor "•' 
Membership No. 30917 

Mumbai 

Date: 26th July, 2019 

Note Amount 

11 
1,00,000 

1,00,000 

1,00,000 

Reserves and Surolus Total 
Reta ined Earnings 

(9,91,42,699) (9,91,42,699) 
(5,12,912) (5,12,912) 

(7,68,929) (7,68,929) 

(12,81,841) (12,81,841) 
(10,04,24,540) (10,04,24,540) 

(2,37,42,521) (2,37 ,42,521) 

15,980 15,980 

[2,3 7,26,541) (2,37,26,541) 
(12,41,51,081) (12,41,51,081) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

c:t >~ 
KHILEN SHAH 

Director 
DIN: 03134932 

RAJEEVAN PARAMBAN 
Director 

DIN:03134932 

Date: 26th July, 2019 



HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

• ]'iote 1. Statement or Si2J)Iflcant Accounting Policies. 

·1.1 Company Overview 
Heddle Knowledge Private Limited is a private limited Company domiciled in India, incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. The main object of the company 
is to acquire by purchase, lease or otherwise, agricultural land for fanning. to establish and run farms and to Construct, e rect, acquire, equip, lease, furnish, 
convert. adapt, improve, develop, operate & manage all sorts of Agricultural Parks, Industrial Parks, Special Economic Zone & related infrastructure facilities, 
commercial & social infrastructure facilities & amenities. 

1.2 The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 26u. July, 2019. 

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies followed by the Company 

I. Basis of preparation of financia l Statements 

£1) Compliance with lnd AS 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standa rds (hereinafter referred to as the ' lnd AS1 as notified by 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act1 read with of the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as 
amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. 

(H) Historical cost convention 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following: 
1) Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value; 
2) Assets held for sale· measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell; 
3) Defined benefit plans· plan assets measured at fair value; 

(Ill) Current non-current classification 
All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current. wherever applicable, as per the operating cycle of the Company as per the guidance set 
out in Schedule Ill to the Act. Operating cycle for the business activities of the Company covers the duration of the project/ contract including the defect liability 
period, wherever applicable, and extends upto the realisation of receivables (including retention monies, if any) within the credit period normally applicable to 
the respective project. 

11. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of lnd AS requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, 
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

a) judgements 
Classification of property 
The company determines whether a property is classified as investment property or inventory property. Investment property comprises land and 
buildings that are not occupied substantially for use by, or in the operations of, the company, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business, but are held 
primarily to earn rental income and capital appreciation. These buildings are substantially rented to tenants and not intended to be sold In the ordinary 
course ofbusiness. lnventory comprises property that is held for sale in the ordinary course of business. Principally, these are properties that the 
company develops and intends to sell before or on completion of construction. 
b) Estimates and assumptions 
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its 
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future 
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are 
reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 

Ill. Revenue reco2J)Itlon 
Revenue is recognised to the extent that It is probable that the economic benefits will accrue to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured 
and also when it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made and that there is buyers' commitment to make the comple te payment 

A. Revenue from Sale of Land 
Revenue from sale of land's recognized when the company satisfied performance obligation at a point in time i.e. when company is transferred to the 
customer which is usually possession of land to customer. 
Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which IS the consideration, adjusted for discounts, rebates, price concessions, returns and 
fi nancing component if any, as specified in the contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf of the 
government 
The Company has adopted Jnd AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers, with effect from April 1, 2018. lnd AS 115 establishes principles for 
reporting information about the nature, amount. timing and uncertainty of revenues and cash flows arising from the contracts with its customers and 
replaces lnd AS 18 "Revenue· and Guidance Note on ·Accounting for Real Estate transactions· for entities to whom Jnd AS is applicable. 

B. Interest and dividend: 
Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it Is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of 
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding at the effective interest rate 
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net 
carrying amount on initial recognition. 

C. Others: 
Other revenues 1 Incomes and costs 1 expenditure are accounted on accrual, as they are earned or incurred. 

D. 



HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

IV. Property plant and equipment and depreciation I ammortlsation 

A. On transition to lnd AS, the Company has opted to continue with the carrying values measured under the previous GAAP as at 1st April, 2015 of its 
Property, Plant and Equipment and use that carrying value as the deemed cost on the date of transition i.e. 1st April, 2015. 

B. Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction including attributable Interest and finance cost, if any till the date of 
acquisition/installation of the assets, less accumulated depreciation/amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, If any. 

C. Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repa irs and maintenance costs are charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. The cost and related accumulated depredation are eliminated from the fi nancial statements, either on 
disposal or when retired from active use and the resultant gain or loss are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

D. Depredation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depredation on additions to 
assets or on sale/ disposal of assets is calculated pro-rata from the month of such addition, or upto the month of such sale/disposal, as the case may 
be. 

Asset Category Estimated useful life (In Years) 
Vehicles 10 
Computers & Laptops 3 
Fumitures & Fixtures 10 
Office Equipments 5 
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant equipment are reviewed at each financial year and adjusted 
prospectively, if appropriate. 

V. Financlallnstruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

A. Investment and Financial Assets 
i. Initial recognition 

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold 
these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from these financia l assets is included in finance 
income using the effective interest rate ("EIR1 method. Impairment gains or losses arising on these assets a re recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 

ii. Subsequent measurement 
For purposes of subsequent measurement. fi nancial assets are classified in followin~ cate~ories: 

a) Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to 
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

b) Financial Assets Meas ured at Fair Value 
Financial assets are measured at fair value through OCt if these financial assets are held within a business model with an objective to hold these 
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Movements in the carrying amount are 
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Further, in cases where the Company has made an Irrevocable e lection based on its business model, 
for Its Investments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized In other comprehensive income. 

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI is carried at FVTPL. 

iii. De-recognition of Financial Assets: 
The Company de-recognises a finandal asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the finandal 
asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset. the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an 
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset. the Company continues to recognise the 
finandal asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. 

B. Equity Instruments and Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities and equity instruments Issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered 
into and the definitions of a fi nancial liability and an equity instrument 

i. Equity Instruments 
An equity instrument Is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity 
instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Equity instruments which are issued for 
consideration other than cash are recorded at fair value of the equity instrument 

ii. Financial Liabilities 
1. Initial Recognition 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and borrowings and payables as appropriate. All financial 
liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 



HEDDlE KNOWlEDGE PRIVATE liMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAl STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 
2. Subsequent Measurement 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 
- Financial liabilities at FVTPl 
Financial liabilities at FVTPl include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL 
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on 
liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss. 
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it 
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument Financial guarantee 
contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the 
guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind 
AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation. Amortisation is recognised as finance income in the Statement of Profit and loss. 

-Financial liabilities a t amortised cost 
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Any difference 
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in the 
Statement of Profit and loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and loss. 

3. De-recognition of Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. When an existing financia l 
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, 
such an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and recognition of a new liability. The difference in the 
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss. 

C. Offsetting Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to 
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

VI Derecognitlon of financial instruments 
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash nows from the financia l asset expires or it transfers the finacial asset 
and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under lndAS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's 
Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

VII. Impairment 
a . Financial assets 

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECl) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or 
loss. loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to life time ECL. For all other financial 
assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECl, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial 
recognition in which case thoseare measured at lifetime ECL The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss 
allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or 
loss. 

b. Non-financial assets 
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual 
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an 
asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fa ir value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, 
unless the asset does not generate cash innows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of 
an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash nows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that renects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are 
taken into account If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation 
multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators. 

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
i. Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability wheneer events or changes in circumstances indicate that their 
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing. the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell 
and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash nows that a re largely independent of those from 
other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. 

11. Provisions 
A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that is reasonably estimable, and it is 
probable that an outnow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected futu re cash 
nows a t a pre-tax rate that renects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. 



HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

VJII. Taxation 
i. Current Tax 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the financial statement of 
profit and loss becauseof items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The 
Company's current tax is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

In case the Company is liable to pay income tax ufs 115)B of Income Tax Act, 1961 (i.e. MAT), the amount of tax paid in excess of normal income tax is 
recognized as an asset (MAT Credit entitlement) only if there is convincing evidence for realization of such asset during the specified period. MAT credit 
entitlement is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. 

II. Deferred Tax 
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary diferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the 
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. 
Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available 
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. 
The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset 
realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at 
the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

iii. Current and deferred tax for the year 
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or Joss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly 
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 

IX. Inventories 
All inventories are stated at lower of 'Cost or Net Realizable Value'. 
A 'Incomplete Projects' include cost of land for which the Company has not entered into sale agreements and in other cases where the revenue 

recognition is postponed. 'Incomplete Projects' also inc.lude initial project costs that relate to a (prospective) project, incurred for the purpose of 
securing the project These costs are recognized as expenditure for the year in which they are incurred unless they are separately identifiable and it 
is probable that the respective project will be obtained. 

B. Cost included in inventory include costs incurred upto the completion of the project viz. cost of land, services and other expenses (including 
borrowing costs) attributable to the projects. Cost formula used is average cost 

X. Borrowings and Borrowin2 costs 
Borrowing are initally recognised at Net off transation cost incurred and measured at amortised cost Any difference between the proceeds ( net of 
transation costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in statetment of profit and loss over ther period of the borrowings using the effective interest 
method. 

Interests and other borrowing costs included under finance costs calculated as per effective interest rate attributable to qualifying assets, which takes 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are allocated as part of the cost of construction I development of such assets. Such allocation is 
suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted and, no costs are allocated once all such activities are substantially 
complete. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from 
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Account 

XI. Cash Flow Statement 
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any 
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash 
flows. The cash flows from operating. investing and financing activities of the company are segregated. 

XII. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short· term deposits with an original maturity of three months or 
less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding 
bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management 

XIII. Provisions, contingent llabllitles and contingent assets 
A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of 
embodying economic benefits of resources will be required to settle a reliably assessable obligation. Provisions are determined based on best estimate 
required to settle each obligation at each balance sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current 
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of 
time is recognised as a finance cost 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence would be confirmed by the occurrence 
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. A contingent liability also arises, in rare cases, 
where a liability cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. 
Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the fi nancial statements. 

XIV. Recent accounting pronouncements 
lndAS116 
On 30th March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified lnd AS 116 Leases, under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2019 which is applicable with effect from 1st April, 2019. (m S 116 sets out the principles for the recognition,measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee a 

- L tb e sor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lease accounting model for lessee and requires the lessee to recognize right of use assets and lease liabil' 

7
all eas s with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlymg asset IS low value m nature. Currently, operating lease expenses are c:h)f{il)ll;it'()-...,. 

1 ~tement of profit and loss. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requi rements in Ind AS 17. ~ 
... ' 

tttper Ind AS 116, the Jessee needs to recognise depreciation on rights of use assets and finance costs on lease liabilities in the statement of p 
ss. The lease payments made by the lessee under the lease arrangement will be adjusted against the lease liabilities. ~ 

The Company is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the impact on the financial statements. The effect on adoption of IN D AS 116 W 
expected to be insignificent G -....:;:,.__..,:::>"" 



HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH1 2019 

Note 3. Property, plant and equipment 

Computers and Furniture and 
Vehicles 

Office 
Total 

LaJ!lOJ!S Fixtures EguiJ!ment 
Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at 1st April, 2017 4,26,116 9,26,340 24,90,855 10,59,760 49,03,071 
Additions 11,41,040 11,41,040 
Disposals (10100,122) (10,001122) 
Balance at 31st March, 2018 4,26,116 9,26,340 26,31,773 10,59,760 50,43,989 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

Balance at 1st April, 2017 4,26,116 9,26,340 23,92,260 10,59,760 48,04,476 
Eliminated on disposal of assets (9,59,042) (9,59,042) 
Depreciation expense 1,02 679 1 02,679 
Balance at 31st March, 2018 4,26,116 9,26,340 15,35,897 10,59,760 39,48,113 

Carrying amount as on 31st March, 2018 10,95,876 1095 876 

Computers and Furniture and 
Vehicles 

Office 
Total 

LaJ!tOJ!S Fixtures EguiJ!ment 

Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at 1st April, 2018 4,26,116 9,26,340 26,31,773 10,59,760 50,43,989 
Additions 
Disposals/Discardment 4,261116 9,26,340 10159,760 24,12,216 
Balance at 31st March, 2019 26,31,773 26,31,773 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

Balance at 1st April, 2018 4,26,116 9,26,340 15,35,897 10,59,760 39,48,113 
Eliminated on disposal/discarment of assets 4,26,116 9,26,340 10,59,760 24,12,216 
Depreciation expense 1,37,004 137 004 
Balance at 31st March, 2019 16,72,901 16,72,901 

Carrying amount as on 31st March, 2019 9,58,872 9,58,872 



HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Note 4. Investments 

Non Current 

A) Capital Investment in Partnership Firms 
M/s Rising Glory Developers (Refer Footnote) 

Total 

B) Current Investments (At FVTPL) (Quoted) 

Investment In Mutual Fund · Daily Dividend Plan: 
(State Bank of India Mutual Fund : 26.419(P.Y.: 24.989) Units of n675.03/· each) 

Total 

Footnote: 
Details of Investments made in capital of Rising Glory Developers (partnership firm): 

Name of Partners 

Hubtown Limited 
Ackruti Safe~n~ard Svstem Private Limited (up to 31st July 20181 
Citvl!old Education Research Limited 
Citygold Farming Private Limited (up to 31st july 2018) 
Diviniti Projects Private Limited 
Halitious Developers Limited (up to 31st July 2018) 
Headland Farming Private Limited (up to 31st july 2018) 
Heddle Knowledge Private Limited (up to 31st July 2018) 
Heet Builders Private Limited 
Subhsiddhi Developers Pvt Ltd. (up to 31st july 2018) 
Sunstream City Private Limited (up to 31st July 2018) 
Upvan lake Resort Private Limited (up to 31st July 20181 
Vega Developers Private Limited (up to 31st july 2018) 
White bud Developers Limited (up to 31st July 2018) 
Yantti Buildcon Private Limited (up to 31st July 2018) 
Total 
Total Capital of the firm in~ 

Note 5. Current Tax Assets (Net) 

Advance Tax paid 
Less: Provision for Tax 
CurentTax Asset 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

44,506 

44,506 

31st March 2019 
Profit Sharing Ratio 

25.00% 
. 

25.00% 
. 

25.00% 
. 
. 
. 

25.00% 
-
-
-
-
-
-

100% 
1,50,000 

1,08,79,351 

1,08,79,351 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

10,000 

10,000 

41,857 

41,857 

31st March 2018 
Profit Sharing Ratio 

20.00% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.34% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 

10.66% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
5.33% 
1000/o 

1,50,000 

87,77,251 

87,77,251 



HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Note 6. Inventories 

Inventories (lower of cost or net realisable value) 
- Incomplete projects, at cost (Refer Footnote to Note 19) 

Total 

Note 7. Trade Receivables 

Current 
Unsecured, considered good 

Other trade receivables 
Related Party (Refer Note 28) 
Total 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

f 

69,24,489 
69,24,489 

2,15,000 
12,15,60,000 

12,17,75,000 

Footnote :Trade Receivable includes~ 9,27,30,000 from a Director (Refer Footnote 28) 

Note 8. Cash and cash equivalents 

Balances with banks: 
- in current accounts 
Cash on hand 

Total 

Note 9. Other financial assets 

Current 
Security deposits 
Business Advance to a related party (Refer Note 28) 
Advances to others 
Other receivables (Other than Trade Receivables) : 
- Related Party (Refer Note 28) 
-Others 

Note 10. Other assets 
Current 
Advances to land owners 

Total 

3,42,902 

3,42,902 

13,57,75,466 
5,00,01,500 

6,69,463 
7,56,060 

18,72,02,489 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

f 

6,27,41,600 
28,82,80,000 

35,10,21,600 

3,47,085 
46,096 

3,93,181 

25,100 

5,00,61,437 

13,54,463 
7,67,860 

5,22,08,860 

5,00,000 
5,00,000 



HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Note 11. Equity sha re capital 

Authorised Share Capital: 
10,000 (P.Y.31st March, 2018: 10,000) Equity Shares of~ 10/ - each 

9,99,000 (P.Y.31st March, 2018: 9,99,000) 8% Non-Cumulative Convertible 
Preference Shares of~ 100/- each 

Issued a nd subscribed capital comprises: 

10,000 (P.Y.31st March, 2018 : 10,000) Equity Shares of ~ 10/ - each fu lly paid up 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

1,00,000 

9,99,00,000 

1,00,000 
1,00,000 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

1,00,000 

9,99,00,000 

1,00,000 
1,00,000 

Number of shares Share Capital 
(in ~) 

(i) Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning a nd at the end of the year. 
Balance at 1st April, 2017 10,000 1,00,000 

Add : Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st Ma rch, 2018 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2019 

(ii) Details of shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares 

31st March, 2019 
No of shares held % holding of this 

class of shares 

Fully paid equity shares 
Hub town Limited with Benificiary Owners 10,000 100% 

(iii) Terms/rights attached to each class of shares: 

10.000 1,00,000 

10,000 1,00,000 

As at 31st March, 2018 
No of shares held o/o holding of this 

class of shares 

10.000 100% 

The company has a single class of equity shares having a par value of~ 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per 
share. The company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of 
shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting. In the event of liquidation of company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to 
receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of 
equity shares held by the shareholders. 



HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Note 12. Other Equity 
Retained Earnings 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Prior Period Errors 
Profit/( Loss) attributable to the owners of the company 
Items of OCI recognised directly in retained earnings 
Balance at the end of the year 

Note 13. Provisions 
Non-current 
Employee Benefits 

Provision for Gratuity 
Provision fo r leave benefit 

Total 

.c.w:um 
Employee Benefits 
Provision for Gratuity 
Provision for leave benefit 

Total 

Note 14. Trade payables 

.c.w:um 
Due to micro and small enterprises (Refer Footnote) 
Due to others 

Total 
Footnote: 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

f 

(10,04,24,540) 

(2,37,42,521) 
15,980 

(12,41,51,081) 

6,21,248 
81,609 

7,02,857 

2,49,101 
4,34,188 

6,83,289 

6,32,639 
6,32,639 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

f 

(9,91,42,699) 

(5,12,912) 
(7,68,929) 

(10,04,24,540) 

4,30,302 
9,516 

4,39,818 

4,24,210 
1,53,691 
5,77,901 

1,64,67,899 
1,64,67,899 

As per information available with the company regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the Micro Small 
Medium Enterprises Development, Act 2006 (MSMED Act), none of the suppliers of the company are registered under MSMED Act, and the same 
has been relied upon by the auditors. 

Note 15. Other financial liabilities 

.c.w:um 
Current account balance in firms and joint ventures 
Business Advances ((Refer Footnote) (Note 28) 
·From related parties 
·Others 
Other payables 
· Related Party (Refer note 28) 
·Others 

Total 

Footnote: 

4,34,00,000 

38,09,76,000 
10,60,674 

42,54,36,674 

12,591 

6,97,31,483 
4,34,00,000 

38,09,76,000 
10,52,813 

49,51,72,887 

The Company has received interest free advances from it's Parent Company, considering the nature ofbusiness in which the Company operate, 
the amounts so received are considered to be repayable on call I demand as the repayment period of such amounts so received is not 
measureable precisely. 

Note 16. Other current liabilities 
.c.w:um 
Advance from customers 
Other payables : 
· Employee Benefit Payable 
·Statutory dues 
Overdrawn bank balances as per books of accounts 

Total 

2,24,00,000 

65,103 
16,34,308 

6,23,820 
2,47,23,231 

65,103 
11,42,362 

5,07,195 
17,14,660 



HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Note 17. Revenue from operations 
Sale from operations : 

Sale of Plot 
Less: Sales Return (Refer Footnote to Note 19) 
Total 

Other operating revenue : 
Advances written off recovered (Refer Note 36) 
Total 

Note 18. Other income 

Compensation I surrender of rights 
Gain on Fair Valuation of Investment in Mutual Funds 
Surplus on sale I discardment offtxed assets (Net) 
Sundry creditors balance written back 
Excess provision written back 
Other Income 
Total 

Note 19. Changes In Inventories Of Land and Ancilliary costs 
Opening Inventory 
Less: 
Purchase Return- Land 
Expenses incurred on above land writton off 

Year ended 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

1,02,40,000 
4,63,40,000 

(3,61,00,000} 

16 50,000 
(3,44,50,000) 

2,650 

1,31,58,722 
13,031 

13,00,500 
1,44,74,903 

Year ended 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

37,17,80,000 

37,17,80,000 

37,17,80,000 

10,00,00,000 
1,537 

1,83,136 
6,30,000 

15,101 

10,08,29,774 

30,43,15,902 

2,65,86,154 
9 7123,983 

18,06,05,765 

Closing Inventory (Refer Footnote) ____ ___:6~9:..:,2=..4!.!..4.:..:8~9;_ _______ _ 
Total (69,24,489) 18,06,05,765 

Footnote: During the year Company has received sales return ofRs. 4,63,40,000/- and the cost of good sold of the same is Rs.1,01,50,447 /-. 
The part of inventory (plot) has been sold at Rs. 1,02,40,000/- and its cost of goods sold is amounting toRs. 32,25,958/-. 

Note 20. Employee benefit expenses 
Salaries, bonus, etc. 
Contribution to provident and other funds 
Staffwalfare Expenses 
Total 

Note 21. Finance Costs 
Delayed/penal interest on loans and statutory dues 
Total 

Note 22. Depredation Expenses 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 
Total 

Note 23. Other Expenses 
Brokerage 
Advances and other debit balances written off 
Work in progess written off (Land expenses) 
Security Expenses 
Legal and professional fees 
Other expenses (Refer Footnote) 
Total 

Footnote: 
Auditors Remuneration (included in the other expenses) 

Audit Fees 
Total 

76,35,506 
2,03,034 

43,924 
78,82,464 

10,50,593 
10,50,593 

1,37 004 
1,37,004 

10,03,200 
25,609 

1,80,910 
4,32,657 

16,42,376 

35,000 
35 000 

68,30,206 
4,05,234 

19 402 
72,54,842 

1,68,573 
1,68,573 

102 679 
1,02,679 

18,43,90,690 
9,66,23,983 

1,03,202 
28,28,186 
10,43,186 

28,49,89,247 

35,000 
35 000 



HEDDLE KNOWLEDGE PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Note 24. Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share 

Basic and Diluted EPS 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

(2,374.25) 

As at 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

(51.29) 

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share are as follows: 

Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company (in~ (2,37,42,.521) (5,12,912) 

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic and diluted earnings per share 10,000 10,000 

Note 25. Financial Rlsk Management Objectives 

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's focus is to foresee the 
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. 
1) Market Risk 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of futu re cash flows of a financial instrument which fluctuate because of changes in market prices. 

Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The 
company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to company's debt obligations with floating interest rates. 

· The Company has received interest free advances from its holding company and hence it is not exposed to interest rate risk 
2) Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract leading to a financial loss. The 
company is not exposed to credit risk from its operating activities or trade receivables since the agreement of sale of land is executed only on receipt of full 
consideration. 

Credit risk from balances with banks and inter corporate loans is managed by the company's treasury department in accordance with the company's 
policy. 

3) Liquidity risk 
The operating cash flow requirements are met by interest free funding from shareholders. 

Note 26. Capital Management 

The primary objective of company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise 
shareholders value. The company's board of directors reviews the capital structure on an annual basis. 

Note 27. Fair Value Measurements (~) 

31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 
FVPL&FVOCI Amortised Cost FVPL&FVOCI Amortised Cost 

Einancial Assets 
Investment 44506 - 41,857 10 000 
Other financial assets - 18 72,02,489 - 5,22,08,860 
Trade Receivables - 12,17,75,000 - 3510 21600 
Loans - - - -
Cash and cash equivalent - 3 42,902 - 3 93181 
Total 44,506 30,93,20,391 41857 40 36 33 641 

Einancial Liabilities 
Trade oavables - 6,32,639 - 16467 899 
Other Financial liabilities - 42,54,36,674 - 49 51 72 887 
Total - 42,60,69,313 - 511640 786 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019 

Note 28. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 

A. Na.me oftbe re lated parties and related parties relaUons blp 
I Holding Company 

II Fellow Subsidiary 

Ill Firm In wblcb Company Is a partner (up to 31st )uly,2018) 

IV Key Management personnel and tbelr rel;,tJves 

Footnote: 

Hubtown Umited 

Citygold Farming Private Umited 
Citygold Education Research Ltd 
Headland Farming Private Umited 

M/s Rising Glory Developers 

Mr. Khilen V Shah 
Mrs. Meha Rushank Shah 
Mrs. Pratiti K. Shah 
Mrs. Rushank Shah 

Related party relationships are identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors 

B. Transaction w1th Related Parties-

Sr. 
No. 

Nature of Transaction 

Bwlness adva.nces taken/ recovered I adjwted 
Hubtown Umited 

Otygold Education Research Ltd 

IJ Bwlness Advance &lvenf repaldfadjwted 
Hubtown Umited 

Ill On behalf payments made/ received (includlnc relmbursment of expenses) 
Hubtown Umited 

Citygold Education Research Ltd 

Otygold Farming Private Umited 

Headland Farming Private Umlted 

lv Compensation I surrender of RJchts I received 
Cltygold Education Research Umlted 

v Loan taken 
Akrutl Safeguard Systems Private Umited 

vi Share or loss from pal1nersblp llrm 
RlslngGiory Developers (up to 31st )uly,2018) 

vii Sale or plot 

c. 

Mr. Khllen V Shah 

Mrs. Meha Rushank Shah 

Mrs. Pratltl K Shah 

Balance Payables 
Hubtown Umited 
M/s Rising Glory Developers 

Bal..nce outstand.lng 

Akrutl Safeguard Systems Private Limited 
Rublx Trading Private Umited 

IJ Balance Receivables 
Headland Farming Private Umited 
Citygold Farming Private Umlted 
Citygold Education Research Ltd 
Mr. Khilen V Shah 
Mrs. Meha Rushank Shah 
Mrs. Pratiti K Shah 
Mr. Rushank V Shah 

Hubtown Umited 
M/s Rising Glory Developers 

Footnotes: 
Previous year figures are given In brackets. 

Hold1ng 
Comp..ny 

71,10,000 
(23.27,89,111} 

(-) 

20,45,25,000 
(32,62,30,400) 

8,08,051 
(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

Fellow Subsidiary 

(-) 
89,00,000 

(-) 

(-) 

(·) 
4,3S,OOO 

(5,17,68S) 
2,50,000 

(18,74,778) 

(2,500) 

(10,00,00,000) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

Firm In wblcb 
Company Is a 

partner 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(·) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

20,524 
(-1580) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

As at 

31s t March, 2019 

14,00,000 
37,95,76,000 

2,500 
5,84,278 

89,82,68S 
9.27,30,000 

2,19,00,000 
69.30.000 

12,68,75,466 
20,524 

(in~ 

Key M..nagement 
personnel, their 

re latives ..nd 
enterprises 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(-) 

(17,60,30,000) 

(1,83,50,000) 

(2,32,00,000) 

As at 

3 1st March, 2018 

6,97,31,483 
12,591 

14,00,000 
37,95,76,000 

2,500 
8.34.278 

10,05,17,685 
15.35.30,000 

1,28,50,000 
2,19,00,000 
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Note 29. Post Retir ement Benefit Plans 
The Prinicipa l assumptions used for the purpose of the a cturial valuations were as follows, 
Gratuity: 
Discount Rate 
Expected rate of salary increase 
Expected average remaining service 

Service cost 
Current service cost 
Past service cost and (gain)lloss from settlement 
Net interest expense 
Component of define benefit cost recognised in profit or loss 

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability: 
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) 
Acturial (gains) I losses for the period 
Acturial (gains) I losses arising from experience adjustments 
Adjustment for restriction on the defined benefit asset 
Component of defined benefit cost recognised in other comprehensive income 

Total 

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation 
Fair value of plan assets 

Funded status 

Movement in PV of defined benefit obligation 

Opening define benefit obligation 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Actuarial (gains) and losses on obligation 
closing define benefit obligation 

Movements in fa ir va lue of plan asstes 
Opening fair value of plan assets 
Interest income 
Return on plan asstes (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) 
Contribution from employer 
clsoing fair value of plan assets 

Asset Information: 

Gratuity Fund 

Expected Payout; 
Expected Outgo First Year 
Expected Outgo Second Year 
Expected Outgo Third Year 
Expected Outgo Fourth Year 
Expected Outgo Fifth Year 
Expected Outgo Sixth to Tenth Years 

Sensitivity Analysis: 

Year ended 
31st Mar ch, 2019 

~ 

7.64% 
5% 

8.98 

1,27,253 

59,595 
1,86,848 

3,035 
(19,015) 

(15,980) 

1,70,868 

17,19,730 
8,49,381 

(8,70,349) 

15,12,947 
1,27,253 

98,545 
(19,015) 

17,19,730 

6,58,435 
38,950 
(3,035) 

1,55,031 
8,49,381 

Total Amount 

PVO Payout 
8,80,015 

12,180 
13,006 
13,897 
14,859 
91,076 

Year ended 
31st March, 2018 

~ 

7.67% 
5% 

9.52 

76,670 

1,189 
77,859 

7,68,929 

7,68,929 

8,46,788 

15,12,947 
6,58,435 

(8,54,512) 

6,29,034 
76,670 
38,314 

7,68,929 
15,12,947 

6,13,065 
37,125 

8,245 

6,58,435 

Total Amount 

As of 31st March, 2019, every percentage point increase in discount rate will affect our gratuity benefit obligation Rs.14,27,293. 
As of 31st March, 2019, every percentage point decrease in discount rate will affect our gratuity benefit obligation Rs.15,65,224. 
As of 31st March, 2019, every percentage point increase in salary escalation rate will affect our gratuity benefit obligation Rs. 15,65,736. 
As of 31st March, 2019, every percentage point decrease in salary escalation rate w ill affect our gratuity benefit obligation Rs. 14,25,823. 

Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumptions is computed by varying one actuarial assumption used for the valuation of the defined benefit 
obligation by one percentage, keeping all other actuarial assumptions constant 
Projected service cost as on 31st March, 2020 is Rs. 1,34,344. 

Narrations: 
1 Analysis of Defined Benefit Obligation 

The number of members under the scheme have remained same. The total salary has increased by 2.73% during the accounting period. The 
resultant liability at the end of the period over the beginning of the period has increased by 16.09% 

2 Expected rate of return basis: 
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Note30. 
a. The company has obtained permission for purchase of Agricultural lands admeasuring 442.15 hectors in the District Raigad as per villages referred In the order 

dated 12th March 2008 and the details orland shown in the annexure to said order from Directorate of Industries, Maharashtra State, for setting up Industrial 
Estate, Flatted Building. readymade build space, plots custom Built Campuses for IT & ITES services sector. 

b, Further same Is subject to permission from town planning department and Agricultural Land Ceiling Act and the provisions of section 36 and 36 A of Maharashtra 
Land Revenue Code 1966 and of the Maharashtra Restoration of Lands to scheduled Tribe Act 1974 and permission and approval from other Government bodies. 

aid to farmers for which no a cement have been entered 

Note 32. 

As at 31st March, 2019 
(Amount In t ) 

As at 31st March, 2018 
(Amount In t) 

5,00,000 

The accumulated losses of the Company have resulted in complete erosion of the net worth of the Company. The Company's management is, however, of the view that 
the said erosion is temporary in nature as the Company has made strategic Investments in certain assets f projects, the proceeds of which would when fructified, would 
result in turnaround of the Company. The Company to that extent does not consider the erosion of the net worth as an Impediment to its status as a going concern. 

Note 33. Contingent Uablllty 
There is no contingent liability towards Income Tax. GST, MVAT /Sales Tax. Service Tax and Profession Tax. 

Note 34. 
In the opinion of the board of Directors of the Company, all the items of current assets, current liabilities & loans and advances continue to have a realisable value of 
atleast the amount at which they are stated in the balance sheet 

Note 35. 
The Company has vide meeting of Board of Directors dated 09/02/2019 accorded consent to Amalgamation along with other six transferor company (Fellow 
Subsidiary) into Citygold Education Research Limited the transferee company. Further Draft Scheme of Amalgamation was placed before the Board and approved in the 
said meeting. The Directors f signatories of the company a re authorized to take all necessary steps to initiate the amalgamation. 

Note 36. 
The Company has lnitated the legal proceedings against land aggregatorsffarmers which has been written off in earlier years. However during the year the Company 
has received f recoverd certain amount 

Note 37. 
Previous year's figures have been regrouped I recast wherever necessary. 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the flnandal statements 
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